# Phoenix Journal #165



**By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn** 

# **Table Of Contents**

CHAPTER 1	
THE NEWS DESKby Phyllis Linn 1/19/96	1
LOPEZ DECISIONPROMPTS CALL FOR RELEASE	
OF MOST FEDERAL PRISONERS	1
DEATH OF A-15	2
INTERNATIONAL THREAT TO HEALTH FREEDOM	3
CHAPTER 2	5
72 HOUR KIT CHECKLIST	5
WATER	5
FOOD	5
EXTRA CLOTHING	5
WARMTH & SHELTER	5
LIGHT SOURCE	5
TOOLS	
IMPORTANT PAPERS	5
MONEY	5
FIRST AID SUPPLIES	5
SPECIAL NEEDS	5
STRESS RELIEVERS	5
COMMUNICATIONS	6
PERSONAL SANITATION	6
PORTABLE CONTAINER	6
ADDITIONAL ITEMS	6
CHAPTER 3	7
THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 1/30/96	7
MORE CONFIRMATION ON DEPOPULATION	
K-9 UNITS TO SNIFF OUT CANCER	7
UMBILICAL-CORD BLOOD BANKS	8
BETA CAROTENE BASHING	
VIRUS USED TO CONTROL TOAD PLAGUE IN AUSTRALIA	
MUTANT BUGS	9
CHAPTER 4	11
BEWARE OF THE INTERNET by Dr. John Coleman	11
CHAPTER 5	
UPDATE ON MICHAEL by Michael Maholy 1/30/96	13
CHAPTER 6	18
THE PLAGUES THAT THREATEN US ALL by Dr. John Coleman	18
CHAPTER 7	
THE C.I.A. PIPELINE by Michael Maholy	
RANGER-1, NORTH ATLANTIC	
"ROCKET LAUNCHERS, ANYONE?", PART XXI	24

CHAPTER 8	33
NEW WORLD ORDER OR NEW WORLD CHAOS?	33
FROM SOLTEC'S PERSPECTIVE by Soltec 10/29/92	33
CHAPTER 9	
A GLIMMER OF HOPE!	
"FIFTH COLUMN" PURGES MORE	
TOP-LEVEL GOV'T CROOKS	
VINCE FOSTER, MOSSAD SPY?!	
THE HILLARY CONNECTION	
TRAVELGATE AND WHITEWATER:	
A SECOND LOOK	44
AN OFFER THAT'S HARD TO RESIST	
RUNNING SCARED	
WHOSE PUPPET IS JANET RENO?	
FOREIGN RULERS TOPPLE	
WHO'S IN CHARGE?	
"BOP TROT":	
CLEANING OUT RATS' NESTS IN THE STATES	
JOIN UP	
CHAPTER 10	
THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 2/10/96	
THE TINY VICTIMS OF DESERT STORM	
CLUSTERING	
FINDING THE CAUSE:	
PB PLUS PESTICIDES?	
INOCULATIONS?	
GULF WAR HYPOCHONDRIA	
ANTI-MALARIAL SUCCESS	
MENINGITIS REPORTS NATIONWIDE	
BALTO: NOT WHAT YOU THINK	
CHAPTER 11	60
JUDGES WHOSE NAMES DID NOT APPEAR ON THE ELECTION BALLOT	
by Gary Wean 2/9/96	
CONTACT:	
PART ONE OF A TWO-PART SERIES	
CHAPTER 12	74
THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 2/16/96	
PEACEKEEPERS IN BOSNIA	
SUFFER RASHES, POST-TRAUMATIC STRESS	74
BOSNIA REALITIES	
EXPANDING COSMOS	75
JUDGE HAROLD H. GREENE: TELECOM CZAR	
FRETS OVER NEW INDUSTRY RULES	75
CITIZENS OF THE SOIL	
CHAPTER 13	

STATE SUPREME COURT RULING	79
HITE CASE SETS FLIMSY PRECEDENTON NON ELECTION OF JUDGES	
by Gary Wean 2/9/96	79
CONTACT:	79
PART TWO OF A TWO-PART SERIES	79
CHAPTER 14	94
SUPREME COURT RULINGS ON JUDGES "ELECTIONS"	94
1. ELECTIONS <— 171	94
2. JUDGES <— 3	94
3. ELECTIONS <— 27	95
4. JUDGES <— 3	95
5. STATUTES <— 77(1)	95
6. STATUTES <— 101(1)	95
ELECTIONS < 171	98
NOTES OF DECISIONS	101
1. CONSTRUCTION AND APPLICATION	
25304. INCUMBENT IS ONLY NOMINEE;	
HOW NAME PLACED ON BALLOT	102
WHEN REELECTED	102
1. VALIDITY	102
2. IN GENERAL	103
3. RESIGNATION	103
HISTORICAL NOTE	103
8202. ARRANGEMENT ON BALLOT.	104
8203. JUDICIAL INCUMBENT	105
ONLY NOMINEE.	105
8204. DEATH OF JUDICIAL	105
INCUMBENT NOMINEE; EXTENSION	105
PROVISION FOR JUDGES.	105
CHAPTER 15	106
A TIMELY MESSAGE FROM GARY WEAN	
RE: A CONSTITUTION FOR THE WORLD by Gary Wean 6/5/94	106
5/27/94 #1 HATONN	
A CONSTITUTION FOR THE WORLD	110

# THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 1/19/96

# <u>LOPEZ DECISION</u> PROMPTS CALL FOR RELEASE OF MOST FEDERAL PRISONERS

This was sent in by Michael Maholy, who could probably use this decision to secure his own release from federal prison. From the January issue of *MEDIA BYPASS MAGAZINE* (1-800-4-BYPASS), this article was written by Pat McMillan, [quoting:]

More than 60 percent of federal prisoners are locked up for IRS violations, political and victimless crimes, etc. They and most other federal prisoners are incarcerated in violation of the *Constitution of the United States*. Every one of them, except those being held for the crimes of treason, piracy on the high seas, counterfeiting gold or silver coin or committing a criminal act in Washington, D.C., or on some military reservations can be freed from the sentences imposed upon them by the federal courts.

Every word you have just read is true. This was proven as recently as April 26, 1995 in the Supreme Court's landmark *Lopez* decision. This writer believes that federal prisoners who do not fall into the categories enumerated above can get out of prison by filing a writ of habeas corpus and an appeal of their own conviction based on challenging federal jurisdiction to bring charges against them for crimes they were convicted of, if they occurred within the borders of a state.

More than a century ago, attorneys seized inordinate power in the court system. Prior to that time, every person who was charged in federal court with a crime that allegedly occurred with the borders of a state, and who challenged federal territorial jurisdiction, gained his freedom by either having his case dismissed or his conviction overturned and being set free. Consider the following passage, quoted in the 1995 *Lopez* decision, where the Great Chief Justice John Marshall made clear in his famous decisions of *New York v. Milne* 36 U.S. (11 Pet.) 102 (1837) and *People v. Godfrey* 17 Johns. 225 (N.Y., 1819) that the federal government is prohibited by the *Constitution* from assuming any police power within a state.

The chief justice made clear that under the *Constitution*, the federal government was specifically restrained from exercising any general police power whatsoever within a State which is not specifically enumerated in the *Constitution*. But this creates a conflict of interest for the attorneys, who in representing the accused in a criminal matter can charge much higher fees than if they simply pointed out to the judge that the *Constitution* granted him no jurisdiction in the case. This conflict of interest extends, of course, to the prosecutor and even to the judge himself. After all, if the defense attorney needs the business to justify his livelihood, so do they. The consequences, with respect to justice for the citizen, are catastrophic.

The problem is compounded by the illegal and unconstitutional Executive actions called "Executive Orders", in which the executive branch arrogates unto itself the authority to legislate, beginning with The War and Emergency Powers Acts. While that is the subject of a whole separate dissertation, suffice it to say

that with the emergency order enacted by FDR on March 9, 1933, the *Constitution* was illegally suspended and a state of war was quietly declared on all Americans by the corrupt officials who have taken over control of the executive branch of our government. In 1978, Congress, via reaffirmation of the Emergency and War Powers Act, further acquiesced to the executive branch and allowed treason against "We the People" when they approved the addition of a clause that provided for the seizure of life and property of any person within the United States, without the necessity of stating a cause or purpose.

What happened on April 26, 1995 to change all of that? The Supreme Court upheld the Appeals Court Decision in the *Lopez* case, that the Commerce Clause of the *Constitution*, upon which every single federal police agency relies for its authority to assume police powers within states, did not grant them the authority they claimed, and that Congress had violated the *10th Amendment* by approving adoption of federal general police power statutes and agencies to enforce them:

"On appeal [for the first time in over a century, a federally charged American], the respondent [Lopez], challenged his conviction based on his claim that 922(q) [the federal crime he was convicted of] exceeded Congress's power to legislate under the Commerce Clause. The Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit agreed and reversed respondent's conviction. It held that, in light of what it characterized as insufficient congressional findings and legislative history, section 922(q), in the full reach of its terms, 'is invalid as beyond the power of Congress under the Commerce Clause.' 2F, 3d 1342, 1367-1368 (1993)."

Also, since all attorneys are charged with being competent to represent a defendant, they "knew or should have known" that the jurisdiction defense would have saved those individuals convicted of crimes only cognizable in state courts, and this writer believes they can be sued under Title 42, USC 1983, et. Seq., for conspiracy with government agency officials to violate their civil rights. Big bucks await those who have the dedication to see such a suit through. [You may want to call Media Bypass for a copy of the entire article and sprinkle it around judiciously.]

# DEATH OF A-15

The January 18 issue of *THE ANTELOPE VALLEY EDITION OF THE* (Los Angeles) *DAILY NEWS* notes the death of Barbara Jordan. In his book *Death of Camelot*, Ronn Jackson claims she is known as A-15 on the super-powerful, world-controlling Committee of 16, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON—Barbara Jordan, the congresswoman and scholar who stirred the nation with her Churchillian denunciations of the Watergate abuses of President Richard M. Nixon, died Wednesday in her home state of Texas at the age of 59. Afflicted with multiple sclerosis, Jordan died from viral pneumonia as a complication of leukemia, according to officials of the University of Texas in Austin, where she taught. [Did she belong to the super-secret high-ranking Committee of 16? Be open to all possibilities, further, as Commander Hatonn said during the Sunday 1/21/96 meeting, this is a most important event as Barbara Jordan was murdered and the clues lie all around us for the assimilating. The elimination was carried out by the same group who have tried diligently to bump off Dharma. Much turmoil is afoot, both good and bad, at the very highest levels these days, as the Front Page story also infers.]

# INTERNATIONAL THREAT TO HEALTH FREEDOM

Are you familiar with the United Nations/World Health Organization's Codex Alimentarious Commission (Codex)? Perhaps not, since they keep a low profile and hold their meetings in Rome, Italy. It may pose the greatest threat to health freedom in the world today! From No. 10 - February 1996 issue of the *FDA CRIME REPORT* (published by the Life Extension Foundation 1-800-841-5433),[quoting:]

Remember the GATT Treaty to foster international trade? Well, congress mindlessly gave away a large chunk of U.S. sovereignty by signing this 3,000 page treaty, which has given decisions made on an international level considerable influence over our internal affairs. Under GATT, the nations of the world can be penalized heavily by the World Trade Organization if they oppose the decisions of obscure international commissions like Codex (which are influenced heavily by large multinational corporations) [*like the international drug cartel?*] Under GATT, member nations (such as the U.S.) must "harmonize" their rules governing the manufacture of health and medical products with new international standards so as to be "in line" with them. Each nation can either accept the dictates of the Codex Alimentarious Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses regarding labeling and manufacture of dietary supplements, or it can create its own standards—provided they conform to GATT's standards on cost/benefit analysis and on creating and reviewing scientific data for risk assessment.

Any nation which does *not* accept the Codex standards for dietary supplements can be heavily sanctioned (fined) by the World Trade Organization (WTO). The WTO will have the right to levy enormous fines on any nation that gets "out of line" with the potential ability to cripple entire sectors of that nation's economy! AT their last meeting, the Codex Commission's Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses was comprised of 18 delegates, representing either countries or international organizations. The Commission meets every two years. Any delegate can propose a change in Codex standards. If the proposal goes through...it becomes part of the official Codex Alimentarius. The problem is that the German delegation has proposed radical changes in the rules governing dietary supplements which, if passed and implemented, would require a doctor's prescription for the vast majority of dietary supplements now available in this country. Called the "Proposed Draft Guidelines for Dietary Supplements", the German plan calls for the following:

- 1. No dietary supplement can be sold for prophylactic (preventative) use or therapeutic use;
- 2. No dietary supplement sold as a food can exceed potency (dosage) levels set by the commission;
- 3) Codex regulations for dietary supplements would become binding, (which means that the escape clause within GATT that allows a nation to set its own standards would be eliminated);
- 4. All new dietary supplements would automatically be banned unless they go through the Codex approval process. [The international drug cartel has all the bases covered. They control the fertilizer/pesticide industries which have depleted our soil and caused malnutrition in our people. They control the drug industry and the AMA which mis-diagnose the symptoms of malnutrition with hard-to-pronounce, symptom-orientated, disease terminology, and which they go on to "treat" (the "trick" might be safer) with THEIR alternatives: chemotherapy; radiation; surgery; Ritalin and Prozac, and thousands of other synthetic drugs which suppress the immune system and cause side effects that are often preferable to the original symptoms! Is there an alternative? Of course, but if you

aren't allowed to hear about it or obtain it, it doesn't exist as far as you are concerned. Truth is being silenced, as we march down the yellow brick road to the New World Order.]

## 72 HOUR KIT CHECKLIST

#### WATER

Stored in a portable container. Rotate regularly. Have at least three gallons per person (for a three day supply). Have a water purification method.

### **FOOD**

Suitable for long term storage. Packaged to prevent water damage. Include cups, utensils, paper plates and a can opener, if needed.

#### EXTRA CLOTHING

A complete outfit of warm clothing for each family member. Include extra socks, and underwear. Include walking shoes.

#### WARMTH & SHELTER

Coats, hats, scarves, and gloves for everyone include warm blankets (wool or emergency blankets are best). Rain ponchos, garbage bags, and/or umbrellas to keep off the rain. Warm Packs or other heat source. Pup tent or tarp.

## LIGHT SOURCE

Flashlight with extra batteries or a chemical lightstick. Kerosene lanterns are fine, but any flame may pose a hazard, especially near potential gas leaks. Have at least two quick and safe light sources in your kit.

#### **TOOLS**

Pocket knife, lightweight shovel, duct tape, matches, pocket sewing kit, screwdriver.

# **IMPORTANT PAPERS**

Important family documents (such as birth certificates, marriage certificates, insurance forms, wills), addresses and phone numbers of relatives, and places to meet if separated.

## **MONEY**

Keep at least \$20 in your kit. Be sure to include quarters for phone calls, etc.

# FIRST AID SUPPLIES

Pain relievers, bandages, antiseptics, clean cloths, burn ointment. Include any personal medications.

# **SPECIAL NEEDS**

For babies: diapers, ointment, bottles & pacifiers, hand towels, special foods, and other supplies as needed. Consider the needs of elderly people as well as those with handicaps or other special needs.

# **STRESS RELIEVERS**

Card games, books, small hobbies, hard candy, Bible. For childen: small toys, paper and pen, favorite

security items.

# **COMMUNICATIONS**

Portable radio with batteries, signal mirrors, whistles, red flags, signal flares.

# PERSONAL SANITATION

Sanitary napkins, razors, toothbrush, hand soap, dish soap, towels, toilet paper.

# PORTABLE CONTAINER

Such as a book bag, backpack, or duffel bag. Should be easy to carry and lightweight. Shoulder straps are best for traveling long distances.

# **ADDITIONAL ITEMS**

Added as carrying weight and expense of kit will allow: Extra food, camp stove and cooking equipment, tents, sleeping bags, sun block, insect repellant, portable toilet.

# THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 1/30/96

# MORE CONFIRMATION ON DEPOPULATION

Recently newspapers across the country carried the Associated Press release whose headline warned: **Infectious diseases on rise throughout America, world**. Although this report does not prepare the populace to prevent or to deal effectively with a deadly pandemic, it does have mind-control value—it prepares the mind to accept the concept and its eventual reality. Articles of this type have been recurring with telling regularity. This article appeared in the January 17 issue of the *JOHNSON CITY* (Tennessee) *PRESS*, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON—Infectious diseases are on a global rebound, killing thousands more Americans, surviving potent antibiotics and possibly evolving into stronger bugs as the climate changes, a coalition of doctors warned Tuesday. The world is "more vulnerable than ever before," said **Nobel laureate** Joshua Lederberg, who led a call by the *Journal of the American Medical Association* and 35 other international medical journals for a global battle against infections. [*Once again we have the foxes calling for increased security in the hen house!*] The development of antibiotics once had doctors predicting infectious diseases would be conquered by now. Instead, in the past decade new infections such as the AIDS virus suddenly began killing hundreds of thousands, older diseases like tuberculosis returned and bacteria began evolving to defy treatment.

Tuesday, doctors in 21 countries published 242 studies to illustrate the scope of the threat. Among the most alarming: **The U.S. death rate from infectious diseases rose 58 percent between 1989 and 1992**, and a snapshot of middle America found antibiotic resistance growing fast. That doesn't mean people should panic, Lederberg emphasized. Instead, the finding should persuade world governments and drug makers to fund research to fight back. [Note the two options presented: panic and/or get the government/drug companies (creators of the problem) to do something. Nowhere is it suggested that we educate ourselves and take effective, natural measures to protect ourselves.]

Here, infectious diseases became the third-leading killer of Americans in 1992, claiming more than 166,000 lives, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention reported. Mortality from septicemia, a rapid form of bacterial blood poisoning, increased 83 percent, and deaths from respiratory tract infections rose 20 percent.

In Columbus, Ohio, antibiotic resistance is rising among patients with a dangerous form of bacterial pneumonia that spreads to the blood stream, reported Dr. Joseph Plouffe of Ohio State University.

<u>K-9 UNITS TO</u> <u>SNIFF OUT CANCER</u> The next two articles weaken any confidence I might have had in the medical establishment's ability to restore the world to a state of health. They are always barking up the wrong tree! This article appeared in the January 15 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

TALLAHASSEE—The dermatologist and the dog trainer watched as George the award-winning schnauzer circled a patient, sniffing until he came to a suspected cancerous mole. The dog sniffed hard, then sat down. "Show me," said trainer Duane Pickel. The dog lifted his paw and gently touched the spot. A lab test confirmed it was cancer. "At least in our limited project, dogs could be trained to scent and detect melanoma," said Dr. Armand Cognetta, a dermatologist who specializes in skin cancer. Cognetta and Pickel, a retired officer from a police K-9 unit, worked two years on a pilot study that ended last fall. Melanoma is the deadliest skin cancer and the fastest-growing type of cancer in the country. The dog correctly identified cancer in at least four of the seven volunteers, and perhaps five depending on how one test is interpreted, Pickel said. Now it's up to medical peers to review the results, said Cognetta, who still has his doubts about whether dogs are able to detect skin cancer. But he said dogs might be trained to find other cancers, or detect other diseases in Third World countries without high-tech medical equipment. [Good grief! More of the same medical theology of find "it", then slash and burn.]

#### UMBILICAL-CORD BLOOD BANKS

This recent Associated Press offering demonstrates that there is a seeming endless supply of "wrong trees" to bark up—or at best, expensive long shots, [quoting:]

WASHINGTON—Alexander Goldman was a healthy newborn, but doctors drained his still-pulsating umbilical cord and raced to deep-freeze the precious drops—just in case he ever needs the blood. Private companies are signing up pregnant women such as Alexander's mother nationwide to freeze their babies' umbilical cord blood in the hopes it might fight lethal diseases that attack the children later in life. Scientists caution these transplants are highly experimental and the government is about to regulate them, but some mothers say it's biological insurance they can't refuse. "If it doesn't work, you know you tried everything for your child," said Alexander's mother, Cathy Goldman of Charlestown, Mass. "If doctors say to me one day, 'Unfortunately you didn't have any cord blood,' how would I feel?"

Cord blood is a rich source of stem cells, the building blocks that produce blood cells. Certain diseases and cancer chemotherapy destroy these stem cells, meaning patients need a transplant to survive. But cord blood has not yet been proven a better alternative to bone-marrow transplants in most patients. And only one in 10,000 babies will develop a disease treatable by cord blood, said transplant pioneer Dr. Pablo Rubenstein of the not-for-profit New York Blood Center. Still, at least four U.S. companies are recruiting pregnant women to freeze and store their babies' umbilical cord cells. They charge \$300 to \$1,500 up front, with yearly storage fees of \$75 to \$150.

#### BETA CAROTENE BASHING

The headline reads: **Beta carotene pills don't help, may hurt, new studies indicate**. From the *THE ANTELOPE VALLEY EDITION OF THE* (Los Angeles) *DAILY NEWS*, [quoting:]

Two large studies have found that, contrary to the beliefs or hopes of the millions of Americans who take it, beta carotene, a vigorously promoted vitamin supplement, is completely ineffective in preventing cancer

or heart disease. One of the studies found that it **might** even be harmful to some people. Federal health officials said they hoped this would spell the end of the beta carotene **fad**. The idea that a simple supplement capsule might fend off cancer and other diseases, they said, has simply proved too good to be true. [Mainstream medicine is based on the idea that the more COMPLICATED, expensive, and controlled, the better!] "With clearly no benefit and even a hint of possible harm, I can see no reason that an individual should take beta carotene," said Dr. Richard Klausner, director of the National Cancer Institute. **The institute financed both studies**. [He who pays the piper calls the tune!]

Beta carotene occurs naturally in fruits and vegetables and is converted to vitamin A in the body. The cancer institute recommends that, rather than rely on supplements, people eat low-fat diets abundant in fruits and vegetables, whose hundreds of substances combined **might** foster the disease protection that has been sought in beta carotene. [Granted, it is always best to KEEP IT SIMPLE—by eating foods in their natural state of creation. The more mankind meddles, the less the value of the food. Unfortunately, it has become increasingly difficult to find REAL food, raised in mineral-rich, pesticide-free soil. So we are forced to supplement our diets.]

One of the beta carotene studies, the Physicians' Health Study, involved 22,071 doctors who were randomly assigned to take 50 milligrams of beta carotene or a dummy pill every other day. The study ended Dec. 31, after 12 years, with the conclusion that beta carotene supplements did not protect against cancer or heart disease. [No surprise there! Beta carotene is no silver bullet and could not be expected to neutralize the long list of health destroying lifestyle and dietary habits of most Americans (doctors included). It's interesting how such tests are set up: in the second study all the subjects were at high risk for lung cancer because they smoked or had worked with asbestos.]

To underscore the importance of the new findings, Klausner announced them at a news conference Thursday at the National Cancer Institute in Bethesda, Md., without waiting for the usual publication in a medical journal. [Humph.]

# VIRUS USED TO CONTROL TOAD PLAGUE IN AUSTRALIA

From the January 21 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, [quoting:]

Scientists hope a virus from Venezuela will save a pristine tropical wetland wilderness from a plague of South American cane toads. The brown amphibians, which have poisonous skin, were brought to Australia in the 1930s when farmers hoped they would rid sugar cane crops of destructive insects. [More meddling. Destructive insects usually attack substandard crops raised on depleted soil—it's nature's way of getting rid of its mistakes.] Without natural predators, the toads multiplied. Now millions are found across northeastern Australia. Researchers are checking to see whether one of more than 50 iridoviruses might hold the answer to the control of the toad. Lab tests will be conducted to test their effectiveness. [Then will we need to devise something to combat out-of-control iridoviruses?]

# **MUTANT BUGS**

Shades of the cane toad plague! From the December 26 issue of *THE MODESTO BEE*, [quoting:]

Jiminy Cricket! Biotechnologists are building better bugs. After spending years struggling with the technical difficulties of adding new genes to arthropods—the group of organisms that includes insects, spiders and mites—scientists at last have succeeded in making genetically engineered bugs and are preparing to release their first creations. Last month, University of Florida entomologist Marjorie A. Hoy became the first to ask the U.S. Department of Agriculture for permission to release a genetically altered arthropod into an outdoor test plot. The agency is now considering that request, which involves a genetically enhanced line of beneficial "predator mites". The tiny, wingless, eight-legged creatures are about the size of the period at the end of this sentence and feed on spider mites, their crop-damaging cousins. Other researchers are putting finishing touches on engineered insects that may be ready for maiden flights next year, including cotton-munching moths that scientists have endowed with "suicide genes". [Something they picked up from the Project Monarch?]

But this multilegged menagerie is heading for legal flypaper. Biotech gadfly Jeremy Rifkin, president of the Foundation on Economic Trends, a Washington-based public interest group, filed a lawsuit last Friday against USDA to prevent any release of engineered arthropods until the ecological risks are more thoroughly addressed. "We are playing with ecological dynamite here," Rifkin said. "These are alive and can reproduce and can mutate from generation to generation very quickly. They can proliferate over large territories and cannot be recalled after they are released."

# BEWARE OF THE INTERNET

by Dr. John Coleman

From the July 1995 issue of Dr. John Coleman's *WORLD IN REVIEW*, [quoting:]

"The intelligence agencies are surfing the Internet," I was told in November 1994. Since then, I have been investigating exactly what this means, and what I discovered is quite disturbing. The first thing I learned about Internet is that there are no frontiers, no borders, no barriers in Cyberspace. The second thing is that the National Security Agency (NSA), the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA) and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) regularly and systematically "surf Internet" looking for what they call "servers of sensitive information" which could mean anyone providing information that the federal government does not want you to have.

The third thing I found is that foreign intelligence friends of the United States can patch into American "servers" at anytime they want, and that cooperation between the intelligence agencies and law enforcement officials of most Western countries, and just plain government snoopers, is very strong.

The snoopers have gone to Congress to warn of the dire dangers they say will come to our shores from "Islamic fundamentalist terrorists". This has become the catch-all rationale behind demands for greater and greater snooping powers for government agencies, with a corresponding whittling away of the protection afforded by the *4th* and *5th Amendments* to the *United States Constitution*. The enemies of our Republic were successful in getting the Omnibus Counterterrorist Act passed, which contains among other provisions, the "guilty by association" provision found in the former USSR's penal code. The Liberal/ Marxist uproar over the McCarthy hearing has failed to draw a corresponding protest from either side today; in fact, as I have said elsewhere, I viewed with amazement the love affair between powerful members of the Republican party in the House and Senate with the Clinton/Schumer "antiterrorist" legislation, in comparison with which the Joe McCarthy era pales into absolute insignificance. The Republican party leadership in the House has heartily embraced the Clinton/Schumer legislation to destroy the *Constitution* of the United States.

The vast, untrammeled information field created by Internet is now the main battleground between the *Bill of Rights* and U.S. intelligence agencies, the FBI, and law enforcement agencies of every hue and stripe. And what a battleground it is, with no end in sight, until the snoopers get what they want via government edicts, which look and sound remarkably like those contained in the constitution of the former USSR, of which I have a correctly translated copy.

The FBI wants immediate controls slapped on Internet. As a result of the scare tactics used on Capitol Hill, Socialist Rep. Charles Schumer succeeded beyond his fondest hopes in getting the Omnibus Counterterrorism Act tabled before the Congress. And worse yet, FBI Director Freeh is demanding that Congress give him unlimited powers to stop citizens from using encryption codes to protect their privacy, both electronic and telephonic, as if he has the right to know everything about every citizen. Again, I

watched one of the recent hearings on Capitol Hill at which Freeh appeared as a witness, and the love-fest between him and certain Republican Party legislators, does not auger well for the *Bill of Rights*.

This love-fest is being done under the guise of "fighting terrorism, and in support of this contention, the government mentions a number of Muslim organizations operating legally and lawfully in the United States. Freeh wants these organizations to be prevented from sending their information over Internet. Singled out for special attention was the Committee for Legitimate Rights, which regularly denounces the corrupt dictatorship run by King Fahd of Saudi Arabia.

One fact which is just beginning to emerge is that a number of private companies are using spy programs to snoop on their subscribers and users. They want to help their companies—and probably the FBI—to identify "servers" and to track the way they use services like Internet, Compuserve. The excuse is that they need the information to draw up a proper profile of each consumer. This is more than likely then fed to the FBI, the NSA and the CIA if anyone comes up profiled as a possible "terrorist" or a supporter of "terrorist" causes.

You could fall into this category if, for instance, you are anti-abortion, pro-2nd Amendment, anti-Clinton. While it is clear that agencies like the NSA, the CIA and the FBI have their own snooping programs providing profiles of "suspect servers", intelligence sources told me that it is more than likely that agency files are being supplemented by private companies. INDEED, WE ARE ALREADY IN A TECHNETRONIC, ELECTRONIC CONCENTRATION CAMP.

Brian Ek, a Prodigy computer network spokesman, said, "I would not be at all surprised to see law enforcement agents conducting sting operations on all online services, including the Internet."

Let us not be silent about what this does: It tramples on the fundamental rights of freedom of speech, and the right to privacy in our homes, and in our papers. ANY movement could be dubbed "subversive" in terms of intelligence agencies "surfing" Internet and in terms of the Schumer/Clinton bill. What are "We, the People" going to do about these flagrant violations of the *Constitution*?

# <u>UPDATE ON MICHAEL</u> by Michael Maholy 1/30/96

While the Mena, Arkansas case that has been under intense investigation by several government agencies fades into history like the ghost of Christmases past, other sources continue to pursue the truth among the key players of the drugs-for-weapons enterprise. Whitewater Independent Counsel Kenneth Starr and members of his seek-and-destroy team have gutted the Razorback State from end to end and have by no means even begun to finish their search for the truth into allegations made by me and several other employees who became entwined under the rule of the "Masters" and the "lawmakers" of the one-world state within our own nation.

Starr's recent indictments of former Clinton business partners James MacDougal and Arkansas Governor Jim Guy Tucker are not likely to be the last. With a lot of pressure coming into FBI offices from people concerned about the illegal activities of "trusted" elected officials, the pot is nearly to its boiling point. I constantly receive letters from concerned readers of *CONTACT* (as well as from other sources) who tell me that they have other evidence of what has taken place down in the Arkansas Banana Republic and most of this information has merit.

I believe my allegations in the Pipeline series are what spearheaded this internal investigation. In fact, when the FBI questioned me about the murders of the two young boys, Don Henry and Kevin Ives, it pointed the finger at several law enforcement officers from Little Rock and Pulaski County, Arkansas. For several months a Little Rock grand jury, as well as the FBI, has been investigating my allegations and more damaging evidence is being uncovered. As I have told you in the past, the targets of this probe are a handful of suspected drug dealers from northwest Arkansas, a Little Rock prosecutor, and several members of the state patrol and the county sheriffs association. Names such as Don Tyson, Dan Lasater, Jim Guy Tucker, Roger Clinton and others are now at the top of the lists of people being investigated.

One might ask just why should this case bother the higher-ups at the White House. I personally could think of two very good reasons. Through my testimony, two of the alleged drug dealers under suspicion for their involvement in the murders have been linked through law enforcement intelligence information to two prominent Arkansas businessmen who just happen to be very, very close friends and business partners of Bill and Hillary Clinton. That's correct, the husband and wife who "We, the People" entrusted to guide our nation toward a moral and solid future. Also, after digging deeper into the plot, the gruesome double homicide was found to be connected with the not-so mysterious Mena drug-trafficking crowd. No, people, it was not I who stabbed or bludgeoned the two young boys who were then left on the railroad tracks along the Pulaski-Saline County line that night on the outskirts of Little Rock. But it was indeed I who had the courage to expose this matter to the authorities. IT was I who alerted the agencies and gave them the information and details that they need to get their investigation rolling. It was later established that the two boys had stumbled upon a Mena narcotics drop site shortly before a major drop was scheduled. Coupled with the fact that the boys had also found the location of the laboratory used for making the drug methamphetamine at a nearby farm house, their captors were left with little choice of what to do with the boys.

Just last week I was called to the prison telephone to speak with the attorney of the Republican Representative from Iowa, Jim Leach, who is also the chairman of the House Banking Committee. I was told that Mr. Leach is very interested in the Mena cover-up and has since dispatched two aides to begin a preliminary investigation and he is expected to call a hearing very soon. He also warned me about entrusting any further information to the FBI or the DEA at this time because of the political nature of the investigation. The most obvious question I now ask myself is: Just WHOM do I trust? Obviously, because of my situation, TRUST is not one of my strong points. I would like to be an idealist, but like so many, I have been too often fooled and even lied to by some of my closest friends—and even loved ones. Am I a fool for disclosing the true nature of the evil intentions of some of the most powerful people on Earth? Perhaps. But to fully understand my position, you must consider just what really took place, what events led up to all of this.

Let me start at the beginning when the DEA first started its probe into my affairs. Here I was, a young man who, at that time, could be considered a low profile, yet prominent citizen of Arkansas, who would very quietly come and go in and out of the state at a moment's notice. Being labeled a "Yankee" due to my Chicago origins, I was viewed rather suspiciously by the "natives". They wondered just what this young man was into to enable him to live so comfortably. Surely it was not his trout fishing business on the White River, because a business like that would yield no more than 40K a year. Yet this young man was living in a home that was worth over \$500,000; he had a condo in Florida and cars, trucks, boats, and other assorted playthings that could not be acquired with annual income of a trout fishing guide. Even combined with his military pension, it did not cover his expensive lifestyle. So they assumed I was involved in illegal activities, and indeed I was! One might say I was in over my head and sinking fast.

Soon the DEA and state authorities launched their investigations. Part of an investigation is surveillance—who accompanied me to certain events, places, gatherings, etc.? I was being closely monitored, as I am to this very day. After a lengthy investigation, a case file was prepared. Just as case files are made on everyone who falls under the suspicions of the FBI and other agencies—as well as those who have a history of prior crimes. As the case continued, the search led to other prominent figures of the Arkansas political scene—remember the hunters gathering at Clinton's private duck-slaughter house in "The Killing Fields" from the Pipeline series? Now the originators of the investigation into my lifestyle had a dilemma on their hands.

First of all, they needed to wrap up their case against me as quickly and quietly as possible, before the involvement of the very people who put them into office became public. They would need to get me alone, set me up and arrest me, or even better yet, to kill me and cover any loose ends that would eventually lead inspectors to the big fish. But the files on the FBI and DEA investigations leaked out and were reported by members of the Fourth Estate! So what happened next? An internal investigation to track down the source of the leaks. This is precisely what happened in the beginning of my case. It had now come to the attention of the Clintons that I was going to eventually pull in some of their closest personal friends and even relatives if I get arrested—or at least that is what they perceived as my first line of defense.

There are mountains of legal files that pertain to the Mena cover-up, which also pertain to my case. As the pieces of the puzzle come together, more and more of the picture is coming into view. Even now, there are new developments in the case which even I did not know about until recently. Not long ago two senior inspectors from the DEA security division were dispatched to Arkansas to try to track the paper trail left

by the money laundered by Barry Seal, myself, and several others. This is coming to light through the investigations into the Whitewater Development scandal. The inspectors are not worried about all of the DEA files that have been turning up, but rather, just a few of them. One of the most important files is on Dan Lasater, and another points the finger towards Don Tyson, the poultry magnate.

Through my own contacts, I have also discovered that even my first attorney, the late Gene Worshem, a highly recognized attorney who was once connected with the Rose Law Firm in downtown Little Rock, was my betrayer. He was withholding all the damaging evidence that would have implicated the Clintons for their part in the illegal activities. As you see, it was not just George Bush and Oliver North involved in the smuggling business, but the Clintons were also brought into the fold. When you are the governor of a state, especially Arkansas, you damn sure are aware of what goes on in your own back yard! My attorney advised me to plead guilty to these crimes in order to protect his circle of prominent friends, or face the consequences of a very lengthy prison sentence. We're talking about 35-40 years. I turned over to Gene Worshem several maps, photos, and other documents that would have incriminated several top law enforcement officers as well as their bosses. I recently telephoned attorney Gene Worshem's office in regard to the files pertaining to statements I was instructed to make to the federal sentencing judge, George Howard Jr., another close friend of the Clintons. The secretary's reply was that it was not a good time to speak with Mr. Worshem. When questioned as to when would be a good time to contact or speak with him, her response was, and I quote, "on Judgment Day!" Becoming annoyed, I asked her exactly what she meant by that remark. She then replied that Gene was DEAD! I inquired as to the circumstances of his death, to which she replied that she was not at liberty to discuss it. So now we have another 30 or so people who had information or evidence into the illegal activities of the Clintons who will "tell no tales". (Are we on the same page, readers?!)

You had better believe I was sold out by my attorney. He took a lot of money from me only to fool me, to lie to me, and to have me plea to charges I never should have, such as the five-year sentence for firearms violation. This firearms charge, which was recently ruled to be unconstitutional by the Supreme Court, should never have been issued against me in the first place. But neither I nor my wife knew any better, as neither of us had ever been in trouble with the law up until that night in 1991, just prior to the 1992 presidential elections. So once again, I was guilty of being foolish and placing my fate in the hands of someone I thought I could trust. Luckily I have the original documents and photos that will, upon my release, expose these tyrants once and for all!

Now the word from my sources is that our good friend Webster Hubbell is possibly heading for an extension of the prison term handed to him by who else but the infamous "Honorable" George Howard Jr. This is due in part to the fact that I am very familiar with the federal sentencing guidelines, and to the information I supplied to the staff of independent investigator Kenneth Starr. Mr. Starr was very disturbed by the leniency of the sentence, plus the fact that he also found out that the recent probe into the testimony given by Hubbell was fraudulent. You must understand that a federal judge is bound by law to sentence you in accordance with where your crime places you in the federal guidelines. At a Senate Whitewater Committee hearing, it has come to light that Hubbell perjured himself by stating that he had never had any of the Vincent Foster files in his possession. He was supposed to be helping in the investigation by Kenneth Starr into the affairs of the Madison Guarantee Savings and Loan and the Rose Law Firm. You see, friends, unknown to the public, a deal was cut with Hubbell and the Justice Department in which his full cooperation was exchanged for a lighter sentence. Say now, what about me?! Why am I not cut a deal? Because

Itell the truth and these people in government can't handle that at all! It was, however, always thought by the investigators that Hubbell would hold out to protect the First Lady. It has just come out the David Kendall, the Clintons' private attorney had confirmed that in 1993 Hubbell had sent him four original documents/files from the Rose Law Firm that came from Vince Foster's office, but Kendall was quick to defend Hubbell in stating that he did not know how. The bottom line is that Hubbell can now be expected to be released in late January by the Senate Whitewater Committee and hopefully will face new criminal charges. It is very important to see here just how all of these happenings down in Arkansas have a unique common denominator and how the pieces of the puzzle are now starting to come together. Do you people realize that I have been one of the key players in exposing the players and their corrupt evil games?

If any of you have been following the Vince Foster cover-up, you may have learned that certain documents that were said to have been stored at Foster's home had been missing since his reported suicide. Now we are told that these very incriminating documents were removed to the offices of the Rose Law Firm within the first 48 hours after Foster's death. These lost documents will shed some very damaging evidence in the Whitewater hearings. At first it was feared by investigators that the documents were destroyed, but now it looks as though they have remained intact. OR, could this be more trickery from within the Clinton Elite circle of power? Perhaps another false trail to throw off the ever-approaching hounds? What bothers me—and I'm sure, thousands of other Americans—is that the now newly-located documents are said to be located in the safety of the Clinton/Gore campaign headquarters in downtown Little Rock. But the Foster papers are not the only Whitewater-related documents being stored at the president's campaign headquarters. I am told that a huge load of private Clinton papers was moved there last fall in the dead of night. It seems that the documents and personal papers came from the basement of the First Commercial Bank building and from the Worthen Bank. By the way, people, these two banks were the money laundering headquarter for many of the pilots involved in drug smuggling as well as for corrupt political figures from Arkansas, Texas, and Louisiana. Along with documents seized for review were papers from the Rose Law Firm (Hillary's former employer) and Jennings and Bryan, the firm in which senior White House aide Bruce Lindsey was a partner.

The transfer of papers was organized by Betsey Wright, Clinton's former chief of staff, who also has remained a loyal friend to the first family. It is said that Wright even gave the transfer of the documents a code name: PROTOCOL! Several of the boxes were said to have PROTOCOL stamped on them, some two full truckloads of paperwork. The Starr investigators believe these documents deal not only with the Clintons' Whitewater property, investment, and other suspected laundering techniques, but they may also contain details pertaining to yet another land deal called FLOWERWOOD. These documents will reveal the close, tightly knit relationship between the Clintons and some other well known wealthy businessmen from northwest Arkansas—Don Tyson, the poultry king and Sam Walton of the famous Wal-Mart retail stores. There is a lot of money—perhaps hundreds of millions of dollars—floating around out there that the Clintons want to dig their talons into.

Last but not least, I must relay to you the new developments with my ol' buddy, Mr. Dan Lasater. You all remember him, don't you?—the Arkansas bond daddy who had a fetish for cocaine and young pretty women. Now that ol' Dan has once again been in the spotlight, due in part to my story of the CIA Pipeline and other reports filled with allegations of wrongdoing, Lasater is really on the outs with his one-time good friend Bill Clinton. Why? Because Dan Lasater, a once-convicted cocaine distributor, who was pardoned back in the late 1980s by the then-governor Clinton, is now about to be indicted once again. Lasater, who

thought he had been keeping a low profile since his 1986 drug conviction, is about to have a run-in with the IRS. With information I supplied to officials last fall about Mr. Lasater's dealings and money laundering habits, the FBI finally got around to doing a little investigating into my disclosures. And what do you know, BINGO!! Lasater, who was renowned in the Arkansas capital for his semi-public drug parties, handled some \$664 million in state bond sales and earned over \$1.6 million in fees during Clinton's tenure as Arkansas governor. So people, we can expect to see Mr. Lasater in upcoming media events, but I expect that they will be in the form of a little IRS indictment party. You have to get indicted to be invited. And by the way, the buried money that was found at my home was said to be part of Lasater's—thus the attempt by the IRS to re-indict me, as well, back in early '95, while I was being transferred to Leavenworth, Kansas.

So, there you have my latest up-date. The next time you hear that poor Mr. and Mrs. Clinton are having money problems due to the overbearing legal problems caused by the mountain of evidence piling up around them, maybe you could suggest to them that they ask one of their old friends, Don, Dan or Sam for a small loan—say of a couple million or so. Or maybe they could simply withdraw a few million from their daughter's offshore account. I'm sure she wouldn't mind helping out poor mom and dad.

In closing I would like to thank all of you who have given me all your love and support. Some of you have been deceived by those out there with false promises and attempts to lure you with dreams of this or that, despite repeated warnings to beware of false prophets. If you are one of those, please do not lose faith in the Light of Truth. And to those of you who have stood by me throughout my ordeals, a very special thank you from the bottom of my heart, for it is your inspiration that has kept me going in my continuing fight against government corruption at the highest levels. Thank you also to my many Canadian friends and especially to the hardworking staff at the *CONTACT*. With a little bit of luck, and a lot of prayer, I may soon realize my freedom. Pray with me as I will pray for all of you. May the light of Truth guide you all.

The Keeper of the Flame,

/s/Michael Maholy

Michael Maholy #18365-009 Kings P.M.B. 700 Yankton, SD 57078

# THE PLAGUES THAT THREATEN US ALL

by Dr. John Coleman

Editor's note: Last week's CONTACT presented three important articles on the engineered depopulation plagues which are being unleashed upon the unsuspecting masses RIGHT NOW. There was the Front Page story relating the military route for infecting a nation, the page 22 story about unnecessary vaccination deaths and crib deaths, and the page 24 outlay relating more on deadly new bugs introduced thru the routes of vaccinations and military. This article, from Dr. Coleman's World In Review, from February 1994, is yet more important news about this subject.

From the February 1994 issue of Dr. John Coleman's World In Review, [quoting:]

In 1983 (updated 1992) I wrote a monograph under the same title, which was an account of my investigation into the use of deadly viruses and bacteria as weapons of war. The three nations producing such weapons are Russia, the United States and Great Britain. In the United States, research is carried out at the Los Alamos, Cold Spring Harbor, and at the Army's Fort Detrick laboratories, chemical and Bacteriological Weapons Research. In Britain research is carried out at the Weapons Research facility at Porton Down, England. The Russians have, since 1934, done their research at the Academy of Medical Sciences at Novosibirsk, as well as Puschino, Vladivostok and Alma Ata.

My monograph gave a lot of detail about the types of diseases that would sweep the world, including of course, the AIDS virus. In WIR, I also gave details about the created Vibro-19 cholera bacteria that has been released in India, and this was properly identified. Much of what I wrote has since transpired.

Diseases that are not new, but are not quite the same as the older versions of themselves, have now started to surface. I strongly suspect that yellow fever, for one, has been worked on in one or more of the aforementioned laboratories. Yellow Fever, once the scourge of tropical countries in the 18th and 19th centuries was thought conquered, but has staged a remarkable comeback.

My intelligence source told me that there is a major yellow fever epidemic about to erupt around the world. "People tend to think of yellow fever as solely a tropical disease, but the fact is that it is poised to spread to Europe, the United States, South Africa, Australia and Latin America. The carrier, the 'Aedes aegypti' mosquito is found in the United States and Australia. Such an epidemic could explode within the next 18 months," he warned. The A. aegypti mosquito also carries dengue fever, which is currently reaching epidemic proportions in Africa. It is well known that yellow fever follows in the footsteps of dengue fever.

From information obtained through intelligence sources, it would appear that the arbovirus yellow fever virus may have been "modified" so that it is now able to attack any of the body cells, with particular emphasis on brain, kidney and liver cells. The "modification" of this tiny yellow fever virus concerns its ability to more rapidly copy genetic into DNA and far more rapidly than before, replicate itself in much the same way as the HIV virus does, while its "borrowed" gene gives it immunity against previously effective antibiotics and vaccines.

How is the "modification" accomplished, and is it only by natural means or also by laboratory means? Remember, the senior diplomat of the Committee of 300, Lord Bertrand Russell, stated categorically that there are too many people on Earth, and that a concerted drive must be made to get rid of the excess population. Russell advocated a return of the Black Plague as a means of accomplishing this task. The *Global 2000 Report*, a genocidal plan to eliminate 2 billion people by the year 2010 was accepted as official United States policy by former President Carter. The report is based upon Russell's stated goals, and also upon the writings of another Committee of 300 "diplomat", H.G. Wells, who went even further than Russell in advocating the culling of the human race.

Human pathogens become resistant to treatment by developing mechanisms of resistance. This could possible be laboratory-induced mechanisms, or a natural resistance built up by the virus or bacteria. IT is well known that by "borrowing" a gene and then passing it from one bacteria and/or virus to another, a remarkable resistance is built up to treatment by known medical means. Is "borrowing" possible to accomplish through laboratory experiments? Certainly, Cold Spring Harbor, Fort Detrick, Los Alamos and Porton Down have such capabilities.

It is known in certain intelligence circles that Professor Gurchev, the great Russian microbiologist and virologist carried out experiments with microbes and viruses that showed how a single microbe or virus could "escape" the antibiotic or ELF radiation bombardment directed at it, and immediately transfer its "escape gene" to others. Once the process was begun, Gurchev noted, it did not take long before millions of microbes and/or viruses acquired the new "escape" gene.

Intelligence contacts told me that they believe this is why modern medical methods of treatment of diseases, which he enumerated, are failing":

Tuberculosis. It has definitely been established and confirmed that there is a new strain of T.B. bacteria resistant to all known forms of treatment, including the drug, isoniasid. This new T.B. bacteria has been found in 26,000 people suffering from the disease in the United States, and is spreading world-wide. It is highly contagious and is easily passed through direct and indirect contact, such as coughing and sneezing droplets, and via the air circulating inside airliners which, due to engine design, has drastically reduced the flow of fresh air into the cabin.

Pneumococcus. In 1977 a new stain of a drug resistant microbe of this disease was discovered by South African scientists. It turned out to be resistant to penicillin and all antibiotic drugs. This could be significant, in that the first HIV attack on the world's population was aimed at the blacks of Africa and Brazil. It does not surprise me in the least that the new killer pneumococcus surfaced in South Africa.

Intelligence sources are of the belief that the black population of South Africa will be decimated by diseases when the situation created by the seditionists in Washington gets out of hand, and expectations and promises made by the ANC fail to materialize. Pneumococcus kills between 50,000 and 60,000 people every year, through meningitis and bloodstream infections and the death toll is rising very rapidly. Meningitis outbreaks are becoming endemic in Africa and Asia, and are on the rise in the United States.

Staphylococcus. Once easily controlled, this microbe can now only be controlled by a single antibiotic, vancomycin. My intelligence source told me that he believes this is one of a series of diseases that have a

"borrowed gene". Medical reports indicate that increased dosages of vancomycin against this infection are becoming more and more necessary. Staphylococcus is a real danger in hospitals where it enters through wounds and gets into the bloodstream, but generally, anybody who suffers a cut or a wound could become a victim of this disease.

Enterococcus. This is another scourge of hospitals that used to be easy to treat with a variety of antibiotics. Now, enterococcus has the ability to withstand almost all treatments. It ranks as the third most frequent disease patients in hospitals acquire. It causes urinary tract infections which can only be treated with the antibiotic, vancomycin. Nobody can say just how far these "miracle viruses and microbes" have progressed, nor is it certain that they came into being by a natural process, given the massive amount of experimenting carried out by chemical and bacteriological (CAB) warfare weapons research institutions that has been going on since 1934.

Meningitis. This disease is rampant throughout the world today, particularly in Africa and Asia, where all known forms of medical treatment have failed to stem the tide. Thousands of meningitis deaths in Africa get wrongly reported as death due to other causes. Meningitis continues to be a serious problem in underdeveloped countries, but has also made its presence known in the United States in recent years.

Malaria. There are more than 200 million people suffering from a new strain of malaria which carries with it a huge new increase in the number of deaths. The new strain attacks the human immune system in much the same way as the AIDS virus. Thus far, the standard treatment has proved less than effective. The United States is not immune to malaria, and the new strain has already put in an appearance in Louisiana and Florida.

To return to yellow fever. Once it has invaded the human cell, the virus finds its way into internal organs like kidneys, liver, and the brain, destroying cells it invaded along the way. Internal bleeding is very widespread, at which point 90 percent of those infected by it lapse into a coma and die. The remaining 10 percent, do not go into a coma, and recover, henceforth immunized against further yellow fever attacks. The laboratories mentioned herein are striving to recreate conditions in the survivors defense mechanism, and reproduce them as an antidote.

My source told me: "There are huge tracts of the Amazon jungle where yellow fever is smoldering like an underground fire, just waiting to break out. If it does, the overcrowded cities of Brazil will be the first to be hit. People will die like flies all over Latin America and the disease will spread to the Eastern Seaboard.

"Following the experiments conducted with the yellow fever virus, the number of cases in Africa suddenly exploded by 500 percent or more in the late 1980s. Was this due to natural causes, or was it because the "modified" yellow fever arbovirus can now replicate more rapidly than before? Everything is set for a massive urban outbreak of yellow fever as the A. aegypti has staged a remarkable comeback in Africa, Colombia, Venezuela, Surinam, Panama, Brazil, Ecuador.

"Although these countries all had effective eradication systems, the yellow fever mosquito is back with a vengeance, breeding out of control in slums and shantytowns from Lagos to Rio. Standard insecticides are all but useless against it. Already very substantial epidemics of dengue fever have appeared all over Africa and Latin America. It will not take very much of an effort to start a yellow fever epidemic among the

shantytowns that now litter the urban scene in Mexico, Sao Paulo, Panama, from where it could be quickly carried to the United States via infected airline passengers en route to Miami and New Orleans, the two cities that are considered the most favorable environment for the disease.

"Both these cities have large populations of the A. aegypti carrier. It would not take long for anywhere from 100,000 to 200,000 people to fall victim to yellow fever in New Orleans, of whom 20 percent would die very quickly. Remember, there is no cure for yellow fever. The World Health Organization has practically no stocks of yellow fever vaccine, and it is doubtful if enough vaccines could be readied to curb an outbreak, even in one city the size of say, Rio de Janeiro or Sao Paulo.

"Asia is a huge potential yellow fever plague prospect. The A. aegypti mosquito abounds, and literally millions of cases of dengue fever have occurred. Asia is a plague nightmare just waiting to happen. Thus far, there has been no attempt to vaccinate populations on a mass scale, the reasons for which have some connection with the Global 2000 program. In Africa, every rising generation of young children shows a big increase in yellow fever cases. Right now only 10 percent of African children are getting inoculated against yellow fever, and that means that 17 million children are at risk of getting the disease.

"Even as we talk, yellow fever is spreading throughout the world, yet, in the United States and Europe, no one is taking measures against it, as though a curtain of silence has been rung down. The West is not quite as much at risk as Asia and Africa, but with an increasing number of shantytowns around urban areas of the United States, where poor sanitation and unhygenic conditions prevail, yellow fever could strike as hard as it does in Asia and Africa. The United States is not a safe island."

Here are some of the questions I asked my source, along with his answers. I have included a question about AIDS being carried by mosquitoes and the common flea, the latter because of a recent denial by the Centers for Disease Control that AIDS can be transmitted by flying, stinging and biting insects:

JC: You have told me a great deal about the experiments going on at various chemical and bacteriological war (CAB) laboratories. Where do you think the most serious "Modifications" to viruses are being done?

Source: Undoubtedly this is taking place at Cold Spring Harbor in New York State and at Fort Detrick in Maryland. It is also happening at the British Weapons Research facility at Porton Down, and at several places in Alma Ata and Vladivostok in Russia. It would be a mistake to think that Russia has closed its CAB sites down, that is not the case.

JC: Is there any type of vaccine that is recognized as protection against the yellow fever virus?

Source: Most certainly, but these are all after-the-fact type vaccines. There was one that was developed more than 50 years ago, which is excellent, but it is used to stamp out epidemics, rather than protect against them.

JC: What is the best way to halt yellow fever from spreading?

Source: The best way is to attack the mosquito, especially in its breeding ground. But the environmental movement has banned the use of DDT, the most effective pesticide against A. aegypti. In fact in several

countries, mosquito eradication campaigns were halted due to pressure from environmental groups under United States control. Another way is of course to clear the shantytowns and slums, burn them to the ground, clear up standing water and clean up the whole area, but here again, "human rights" advocates would forbid it.

JC: Are there any countries where yellow fever epidemics are ongoing? One does not hear anything about such matters on *CBS Evening News*, nor for that matter on any of the networks.

Source: There are yellow fever epidemics raging at the present time in 33 of Africa's 46 countries, and virtually nothing is being done to stop it, and no attempts are being made to mass-vaccinate the population of these countries. There are also thousands of cases of yellow fever in Brazil, Panama, Nicaragua and other Latin American countries, while dengue fever is rampant in these countries also.

JC: Is there no new vaccine that could be used against yellow fever? Surely, with all the extraordinary advances in medical science, we should have something.

Source: The answer is that we do, but for some reason it is not being used. The World Health Organization, for instance has no supplies of this excellent vaccine, of which a single shot will last for a lifetime. Yet, WHO is not doing anything with it. I don't know why, for instance, this vaccine is not included in the package that demands vaccinations against polio, TB, measles and diphtheria? Why is it necessary for children to be inoculated against these diseases, but not against yellow fever?

JC: I want to ask you about the so-called "arboviruses" of which yellow fever is one. This is because I have been long held the view that the HIV-tye mosquito and the common flea are potential carriers of HIV. There was a court case in California recently, where a homosexual man sued a pest control company that refused to furnigate his apartment, after they heard that he was HIV positive.

The man said the pest control company made lots of appointments to rid his apartment of fleas, but never kept any of them. It turns out that the pest company's employee refused to go to the apartment, because he said, "the apartment was full of fleas and I did not want to get AIDS by being bitten by them. The Centers for Disease Control gave expert testimony that it is impossible for AIDS to be carried by mosquitos, and especially not the flea. Now, you and I both know that in so far as the mosquito is concerned, certain types are known to spread AIDS, but how about the flea?

Source: Well, I think that you are right. Fleas have been known to carry the HIV virus, and I believe the technician was correct in not wanting to expose himself to the risk of a possible flea bite that might have given him AIDS. This is perfectly possible and most likely the CDC was lying, in order not to sound the alarm. They have never admitted that arboviruses can be carried by stinging flies and/or mosquitoes, so why would they change their story now? Of course, they cannot deny that bubonic plague was not spread by fleas, there is too much evidence to the contrary. So, if the flea can transmit bubonic plague, why not the HIV virus, and why not the yellow fever virus? It is one of more than a hundred arboviruses that multiply in biting insects like ticks and fleas.

JC: What is the yellow fever vaccine called, and how effective is it? What side effects does it have?

Source: The vaccine is known as 17D and was originally a product of the old Rockefeller Institute. AS far

as I know, more than 200 million people have been vaccinated with 17D since the 1950s, and only 18 died from encephalitis—a side effect of the drug. But there is nothing in the works to bring the deadly nature of yellow fever and the strong possibility of epidemics breaking out all over the world, to the attention of the American people. The cost of a shot is, I believe, a little more than \$7, or perhaps \$8.

# THE C.I.A. PIPELINE by Michael Maholy

# <u>RANGER-1</u>, <u>NORTH ATLANTIC</u> "ROCKET LAUNCHERS, ANYONE?", PART XXI

Editor's note: The last time we presented Michael Maholy's "inside" story about The C.I.A. Pipeline was in our 1/2/96 CONTACT on p. 13, where he called that installment: "Operation Odessa".

After evacuating the *Odessa* offshore oil and gas drilling rig that met its fate in the warm, tropical waters off the Mexican Yucatan, I flew back to Houston, Texas to await further orders from my handler in Langley, Virginia. I went to the offices of Zapata Oil, a George Bush family-owned business in downtown Houston on Westheimer Avenue. The tall skyscraper-style building had its own heliport on the roof, making the take-off and landing of company-flown helicopters much easier than to come and go from the Houston airport.

I was still in shock over what I had just found out early that morning about the fiery explosion that killed 46 workers, all in the name of national security. How bogus, I thought, and how desperate these corrupt officials must have been to have ordered the massacre of so many human beings. I remember getting that feeling that overcame my body when I traveled to Algiers, Louisiana with Frank Adams and Nick Pena, the two C.I.A. mercenaries who had a very "adequate" method of interrogating subjects. I felt myself sliding deeper and deeper into the muck of the C.I.A. and their games. With the information I possessed, I fully understood the consequences of ever trying to evade them in any shape or form, including trying to bow out gracefully. There are many roads into their game, but only two ways out: behind bars or in a body bag.

Once at Zapata headquarters, I met up with a couple of Israeli friends of George Bush and Oliver North. These two men were in charge of the North Atlantic arms shipments from the Middle East, via Ireland, and on to America. Both men once trained under Michael Hararri, a top Israeli general who was retired and was working for General Manuel Noriega in Panama. Noriega's secret police unit, dubbed "Pegasus Unit", was also trained in the arts of assassination, explosives, and covert tactics by this man from Israel. He was taken by the *U.S.S. Swordfish*, a nuclear submarine, to Angola, Africa, just minutes before the 1989 invasion of Panama by American troops. The real plan, by the way, people, was for General Noriega to escape and evade the raiders, along with the Israeli. However, he spooked and went to the safety of the church instead, resulting in his capture. The whole raid was deployed to take the drug business back where it belonged—in the hands of George Bush and The Company.

The two men from the Middle East with whom I was to meet had much of the sensitive data pertaining to the destruction of the *Odessa* and also of its sister drilling rig, *Ranger-1*, which was located in the icy waters of the North Atlantic off the coast of Newfoundland. This rig was also owned by the Bush family. It was also under a C.I.A. contract and leased out to a company called the Shamrock Drilling Corp. The rig was used as a counterintelligence reconnaissance rig that was first used to funnel arms and money to

support the I.R.A.'s movement in Northern Ireland, but had since become involved in all the above—plus the drug trading in America.

With all this illegal activity came a bigger problem. It seems that somehow, somewhere there was a breach in security. The Israelis would never stand for any leak of information to the general public via the news media. In other words, just as the *Odessa* had met with a tragic disaster, plans were in the making for another unfortunate "accident" on *Ranger-1*.

I was wondering just where and how I fit into these plans. After all, I was merely a trusted and highly skilled cable monitor who had worked mainly in the southern zone of Central and South America. Granted, I had, over the years, intercepted sensitive data being transmitted from one banana republic to another, and been involved in several arms and drug transactions, but as far as I was concerned, all of these operations were for the cause of national security. And furthermore, I was in no position to argue. As it turned out, my assistance was required in going to the *Ranger-1* and retrieving documents and tapes made during normal operational procedures—basically the same thing I had done on the *Odessa*. But the question that was racing through my mind was: just how expendable was I to these people? Would this be my last operation for God and country?

My life seemed to be moving a mile a minute. One minute I found myself in the tropical paradise of South America and the next in the land of the longhorn steer! The only thing that would calm my nerves was the potent marijuana joint and two fingers of any type of strong booze. What the hell, I thought, you only go around once in life, why not grab all the gusto I can! Plus the greed had been eating away at my heart. I already had money to burn stashed away back at my mountain retreat, but the lure of more easy money was clouding my drug-affected mind.

The two Israeli Mossad agents began to tell me about a large load of L.A.W.s rocket launchers that were en route from Ireland to the United States. In all, there were 150 of these American-made mini-missiles that could take out a tank at a mile away. The weapons were destined to go eventually into Nicaragua and into El Salvador, but first they would be coming through New York on their way to Chicago. The problem was that someone, perhaps one of the workers on the *Ranger-1* was leaking important information to a contact up in Canada. They were afraid that the whole plan would be in danger because of this one man's actions, and therefore, he would have to be dealt with quickly.

I received a FAX that was in code, of course, from my handler in Langley. I was told to go home to Arkansas and await further contact, which would be coming soon. I did exactly that. I hopped a commercial flight from Houston International and flew to Little Rock's Adams Field that very same day. I was tired, as usual, from the operation down at John Hull's ranch that involved unloading all the small arms that would be traded for cocaine. It was this cocaine that induced a series of telephone messages left on my recorder at my mountain home in the Ozarks. Everyone who was anyone in the area had been calling, looking for the drug. The very first message on the recorder was from Roger Clinton. Any idiot knows better than to mention drugs of any type on the telephone—that's how stupid Roger Clinton was. But if you know of the addiction that cocaine can have on you, rationality is not one of its strong traits.

Roger had left a number from the Little Rock area where he could be reached, adding that he hoped it would be soon. Roger Clinton had political connections back then, much the same as he does today. I

planned to reach Roger as soon as possible, as I could use him to enter the elite circle of power that runs the state of Arkansas. One of the next calls on my recorder was from Dan Lasater from his condo in the Quapaw Towers of downtown Little Rock. As with Roger, I tried to get in touch with Lasater quickly. There must have been a dozen messages left on the recorder, all wanting something from me. All had the same thing in common—drugs! I always made sure to take care of the big fish first!

I then contacted my father who was watching over my only child, a son, Michael. I told him that I would be over to pick him up as soon as I had cleared up some loose ends. On the day I went to get him, my father had a blank look in his eyes—eyes that were normally sky blue and cheerful. My father and I took a walk into the nearby woods that day. The topic of this father-son conversation was about what I had been doing with my life. He had warned me to get out now, before becoming too deeply involved with the government. Although he did not know much of what was going on, he sensed, as a father would, that something was very wrong somewhere. He could see that I was living far beyond the means of what salary I would normally be receiving. He knew that I was throwing around large amounts of cash and investing in this and that. He told me of the neighbors' suspicions because of the suddenness of my coming and going on planes that landed in my own back yard in the middle of the night. This just didn't seem to fit the laid back, rustic lifestyle of the mountains where I lived. My business suits cost more than a lot of my mountain neighbors make in six months. To sum up our conversation, my father was really asking out of the love and concern of a father, to get out while I could and get back on the right track—a normal and moral life. What he didn't understand was that it may have already been too late. As for my mother, she said nothing of any deep concern about me or my lifestyle. You see, mother was a very bad alcoholic who spent the majority of her life on the inside of a bottle, eating aspirins and causing heartaches for anyone who would run with her. It was my father who suffered for putting up with her habits.

My son and I drove to the nearby town and rented some movies. He always liked action movies. *Rambo* was the thing back then, and even this chop-chop guy, Chuck Norris. I remember watching one of these films with him, and he had seen something on the film and asked me if that was what I was doing while I was gone so much. I just kind of chuckled and answered, "not hardly, son," but the sad reality was that I was probably doing things much worse. He once saw a L.A.W.s rocket fired on *Rambo 1*, *Firstblood*, and exclaimed how "neat" it would be to have one of them. Out of curiosity I asked him what he would do if he did have one. His reply was that he would take down the biggest buck deer that he could find. It made me stop and think for a moment. Here we were, father and son, both wishing we could get our hands on some L.A.W.s rockets. Only my wishes were about to come true very soon!

150 of the rocket launchers were about to come into the United States and I was scheming on how to divert several of these weapons in my direction. Once again I must point out how I became blinded to rational thinking throughout my days of weapon and drug smuggling. I mean, how many of you reading this have ever though about teaching your son how to fire a L.A.W.s rocket?!

The time I spent with my son was once again cut short by another coded FAX message from my handler in Virginia. I was to proceed immediately by commercial flight to Chicago and to report to the Israeli Embassy in downtown Chicago. Once there, I would meet the same two people I met down in Houston and would receive a brief from them on further orders. Now these Israeli people, they are shrewd and intelligent operators. Unlike the Colombians, who parade around with flair and style, openly flashing weapons, money, jewelry, and fast cars. The Israelis, on the other hand, do nothing of the kind. They are

more precise and calculating on their movements. They did not care to show their bravado the way the Colombians did. The Israelis were much more professional, more organized, and much more powerful than their Colombian counterparts. The Israelis got their training at a very young age—years and years of fighting for their homeland. I made mental note of all of this. I did not want to forget exactly with whom I was dealing. I had to lose my backwoods Arkansas ways and revert to my Southside Chicago tactics. I would not be eating mangos and papaya in a bamboo shack overlooking some volcano this time. I would be dining from the plates of Bavarian china, silver forks and spoons for eating this and that, and drinking wine that would have cost most people a month's pay. I had to play the role. These were extremely dangerous, but highly educated agents with whom I was dealing now, not some rebel farmers who liked to shoot automatic weapons into the jungle just to watch the bananas fall. When these people fire a weapon, odds are better than even that someone was going to be dead!

I was met at Chicago's O'Hare International Airport by two men who would escort me to the Israeli Embassy downtown. The two other men from Houston were waiting for me just as the FAX said. I was to go to the *Ranger-I* drilling rig, via Halifax, Nova Scotia, retrieve all the documents and radio-taped data and then return to Chicago. Simple enough, I thought, but I could not help asking myself: Why me? Why me, when any number of other agents could do the very same work. There were no messages to decode. Once again, my mind started to replay the scene of the disaster on the *Odessa*. Is this where my time will come, out in the endless reaches of the cold North Atlantic? I was positive they were going to get rid of me this time. But something did not make sense. They could get rid of me at anytime, anywhere! I mean, it was true I was getting paid handsomely for my mission—money, of course, that I really didn't even need at this point in time. But it wasn't the money that they would kill for. I guess it was the adventure that drove me into undertaking such risks. The thought of going to places most people only view in travel magazines. Adventure! Join the Navy! See the world! At times the blood would rush through my veins so fast it would make my body jerk. But there was no turning back now. All systems were go!

The two Israelis had been thoroughly briefed about me. They knew of my Naval Intelligence background, my ties with Bush and North, even about the boys from Miami, Max Mermelstein, Rafa Salazar and Carlos Ledher. They knew I was a connoisseur of good food, good dope, good wine, and good women. They would make sure to it that before I left for the North Atlantic, I would sample more than my share of all of the above. One thing you can say about the Israelis: they are very gracious hosts!

We started the evening with dinner at one of Chicago's finest restaurants. If my memory serves me correctly, I had the calamari as an appetizer, followed by a Maine lobster that was perhaps the largest I had ever seen, garnished with many other seafood delights. All with a nice white wine—and a lot of it, I might add. There is something prestigious about the atmosphere in the expensive downtown Chicago restaurant and the people who frequent such places. If my ol' friends could see me now. And in this circumstance, one did. An old friend from my childhood days in Chicago who had made it big in the unions was there with his wife for dinner. This man and I had not seen each other for over 15 years. We could not help but stop to chat for a few moments. I envied his being able to dine with his wife, get up and go to a regular job in the morning, live a normal life. He had no idea that in less than 48 hours, I would be shredding vital government documents that our government was keeping from people like him, like you. We finished our meal, then it was time for my date. Off into the night for a trip around the world with one of the highest-priced hookers money could buy, in the town of reputed crime legends—John Dillinger, Bugs Moran, and of course, Al Capone. For me, it was off to a night at the opera. *Madame Butterfly*, anyone?!

The following morning I would once again go to the Israeli Embassy in downtown Chicago where I would meet up with Stan Palmer, the U.S. intelligence chief who was assigned to work on this project at the orders of George Bush. He was a tall man with a very youthful face that belied his fifty years. I had the strange feeling that his look of innocence had misled many people in the past. He was, as a matter of fact, a well-seasoned veteran of the C.I.A. who displayed a keen sense of accomplishment. From the start of our conversation with my Israeli team members, I sensed once more that this operation promised to be more than I had bargained for. I was picking up bad vibes, and there were other evil omens, such as that the planning and the activities surrounding this operation had a very similar resemblance to the one that had taken place down in the Yucatan. My Israeli operative, Yaki Spillman and his partner, Uri Cohen, seemed uncharacteristically tense and nervous about the mission to the North Atlantic. Apparently for them, there was a lot at stake with all the L.A.W.s rockets that were supposedly waiting for us on *Ranger-1*, far out at sea in the gloomy, dark, frigid waters of the North Atlantic.

Stan Palmer was George Bush's man who was handling the details of the Israeli weapons connection. Palmer had just recently restationed back in the states after serving a few years in the Middle East where he was a station chief. Palmer asked me if I would go to the *Ranger-1* and deprogram-decode the computer systems, shred some documents, and recover any visible trace of ongoing operations.

He would supply me with the combination to the safe, as well, and the two Israelis as back-up in case of any trouble. Again I could not help but wonder, why me(?), when any one of a dozen others who had specialized in my field of expertise could have done the same job. George Bush, himself, knew of my dislike for the frigid North Atlantic, as I had spent a big part of my Naval Intelligence training up at the D.E.W. line in northern Greenland above the 82nd parallel, monitoring for incoming I.C.B.M.s from Russia and Red China. I had contracted frostbite in my feet while on duty there, and the cold dampness of the northern air would bite into my skin, making for a very unpleasant trip. But then again, there was the lure of easy money. Palmer stated that I would have fifty-thousand deposited in a bank account at the Worthen Bank in downtown Little Rock, Arkansas as soon as I got on a flight from O'Hare International. From O'Hare, the two Israelis and myself would fly to Montreal, Canada, where we would catch another private flight up into Halifax, Nova Scotia. Once in Halifax, we teamed up with yet another American C.I.A. agent whose name was Dick Coleman. Coleman was the liaison between the I.R.A. and the Israelis. Dick Coleman was also with the agency for several years and was deployed to the movement in Northern Ireland because he was familiar with the ways of the Irish, since his mother was from Dublin. His father was some type of political idol to the Jewish Israeli movement in Tel-Aviv.

After spending an evening going over the plans again for our peaceful assault on the computers on *Ranger-1*, my two Israeli counterparts and I and Dick Coleman set out to enjoy some of the fine cuisine of the homeland of Nova Scotia. This is a land of many rocky shorelines, with large inland trees. A very beautiful, but remote area of the world. To the east lies the seemingly endless North Atlantic with its dark, deep-blue waters that never seem to calm. To the west lies the mainland, New Brunswick, then the delta of the St. Lawrence Seaway and on into the interior of Canada's beginning wilderness. On the map, Quebec lies directly west of Halifax, just to give you some type of directional sense.

The menu that night was, of course, seafood, and, I might add, it was some of the best in the world. Perhaps the chill of the salty night air made me that much more hungry, but whatever, I ate until I almost burst at the seams. Another nice thing I enjoyed at the time while in Halifax was that the people were all

very friendly. After dinner we went to the local disco, where everyone was smoking a high quality marijuana and hash. I could not believe the boldness of the patrons who frequented the pub-disco. I mean, they just lit up as if no one cared whether it was legal or not. The women looked like Swedish models, mostly blonde-haired, blue-eyed, and extremely friendly. However, there would be no time for one-night stands that night—something I still kick myself in the rear end for to this day. Oh, well, it's probably for the best. The trio of men I was with had business on their minds. I could tell that they were very anxious to get out to Ranger-1 and do what had to be done. One very interesting item that I would like to point out here and bring to your attention, is that during our dinner conversation, a very vital tidbit of information had been brought to my attention. The two Israelis had mentioned some weapons that were brought into the Port Everglades and Miami River area the previous year that were destined to go to Nicaragua, but somehow ended up in Little Rock, Arkansas! The light in my head lit up like a Christmas tree! Then the names began to surface. Names like Barry Seal, Max Mermelstein, Oliver North and Terry Reed. It seems that these were the players in the shipment of weapons that arrived while I was involved in the Ten Thousand Islands operation in southern Florida. The direction the conversation was leading made me quite uncomfortable. I was quite sure they knew of my close connection with Seal and Mermelstein and that perhaps they were baiting me with details that I would relay upon my return to the Mecca of corruption, the banana republic of Arkansas. Although keeping me in a hazy fog of marijuana and hashish, they knew I was taking note of the conversation.

The following morning we left for Gander, Newfoundland, where we boarded a Hercules helicopter that would fly us some 300 air miles to the isolated *Ranger-1*, semi-submersible drilling rig. Upon viewing this mammoth rig from the air, I realized just how remote and hazardous this type of work was for those who toiled in the Northern Atlantic. An extremely dangerous line of work indeed. And as my luck seemed to have it, there was a blue norther coming straight down the chute, the mainstream of the Atlantic that meant harsh, rough sea conditions. I was thinking to myself how only a few weeks ago I was complaining about the hot-humid tropical air and how heavy and hard to breathe it was. Now after setting foot on the icy, sea-sprayed heliport, I wished I was once again down south, way down south. But the reality of the situation was that I was not. In fact, I was three thousand miles from home in the middle of the frozen north and to be quite frank, I could not wait for the return flight home.

A North Sea drilling rig is composed much differently than a rig that works in southern waters. Since it will be exposed to the raw forces of Mother Nature, a constant gale-force winds and high rough seas, the outer fabrication is much more complex. Every integral piece of equipment must have reinforced welds. I had a habit of always looking at how well a rig was built. Perhaps engineering was a sort of built-in character trait, but I would always study structures, be it buildings, bridges, boats, planes, or whatever. The massive *Ranger-1* was indeed a well built unit. There were seven different levels, all with state-of-the-art design, much the same as on *Zapata-7*. After a quick tour of the operations, we went to the gallery for a fine meal, then retired to our berths for an hour or two of much-needed rest. The night ahead would prove to be full of surprises, both for me and the crew of *Ranger-1*.

As I lay in my assigned, private state-room, I could hear the howling winds of the North Atlantic, screaming like a banshee in the night. I gazed out my porthole window and saw waves that were merely rolling when I arrived, now climbing to 30 feet with white caps at the crest. The wind was coming straight out of the north. Off in the distance, I could see small, blue-green iceberg breakoffs—a beautiful sight that I had not seen since my tour of Greenland back in the 70s. Although mesmerized by the sight, a dark fear swept

through my entire body. Knowing that any contact with the frigid Atlantic waters could result in hypothermic death in a matter of minutes was always in the back of my mind. It was a helpless feeling, out in the middle of nowhere in this ferocious storm. My only comfort came in knowing that my mission would only take one night and the next morning I would hop a helicopter, be back on the mainland by noon, and by early evening I would be smoking pot, drinking gin, and in the arms of a beautiful woman. But you know the old saying, "The best laid plans..." This storm was only in its infancy and bound to intensify by midnight. I would later learn that this was what the C.I.A. and the Israelis had been counting on to cover the deployment of their operation—one of the most powerful storms in the last five years.

The next morning we went down to where the cache of L.A.W.s rockets were housed along with thirty-six cases of Russian AK-47 rifles. The crates were marked with Israeli inscriptions and had come from Northern Ireland—Dublin, to be exact. We made a quick inspection of the goods and then reported back up to a room in which we discussed our next move. Outside, the winter storm was still gathering up steam and directed our way.

It was now time for me to go to the control tower and do what I did best—decode all sensitive date and destroy what needed to be destroyed. This took perhaps six hours of intense searching through records, the ship's logs, rig talley and all documents that pertained to the smuggling operations that were conducted within the past two years on *Ranger-1*. I tried to hurry as I wanted off that rig before the flight was cancelled in the event of any E.A.M. systems activation, but before I could finish I was notified that we would have to wait the storm out for a few days or at least until it let up. I had virtually no say-so in the matter as, at the time, I was simply in their employ.

This would give me more time to view the North Atlantic deep sea drilling operation. As mentioned before, due to the harsh and demanding conditions of the setting Mother Nature provided for the monumental task of penetrating deep into the Earth, the right design had to be altered to fit the circumstances of its immediate surroundings. There were places on the rig where a person would get lost forever as there were numerous compartments that supplied the strength to keep the rig from buckling under the heavy winds and high seas frequent in this area. To convey what I'm trying to explain, try to imagine a cubic yard of salt water that weights in at about one ton. That's a cube, three by three feet. That's not much water, yet the weight of that amount moving at a speed of, let's say, five knots, the average speed of the Atlantic current on a calm day, is enough to crush steel bulkheads. Now if you multiply the velocity of the waves that continually crash into the rig structure, this process will weaken the molecular makeup of the steel and render it weak. Over the years, the constant wearing away causes severe structural damage. Fortunately, the designers and insurance underwriters fully understand this and they plan for such in their architecture. Now here again, another crime comes into play. What do you do to a multi-million dollar rig that has served its purpose over a period of many years while it has made untold amounts of money for its owners, but is now in dire need of constant repair and refabrication due to the incredible stress put on it? Add the fact that this rig has also been involved in many corrupt covert smuggling operations and that information could get leaked out at any given time, and you begin to see the most viable option. Do you see the pattern developing here? Just as I had suspected, another "accident" waiting to happen!

Later that night, at about 0300 hours, I was awakened by the familiar sounds of the chop-chop-chop noise a helicopter makes when landing on this monster of an ocean. I got up, stretched out and strode out of my cabin to see what all the commotion was about. Six, maybe seven, men got off the chopper and came into

the gallery area. These men were not dressed in military garb, nor were they the regular roughnecks who were all too familiar to the industry. These were Israelis and Frenchmen who had that certain air about them—a look I had seen many times. Once more I got that lump in my throat and the gut-wrenching feeling that something was about to happen. They all carried their equipment bags with them and they also had heavier bags being unloaded at the chopper. When I inquired of my two Israeli counterparts as to what all of this was about, I was told matter-of-factly to go back to my quarters and get some more rest—and that the following day we would try to fly out as a lull in the storm may provide the break we needed. They explained the new men off as a repair crew that was there to check any stress-related damages to underwater parts of the rig! Bingo! My inner radar was now on full alert! Operation *Odessa* instantly came into my mind. Needless to say, I could no longer sleep as I was beginning to get increasingly paranoid about the fact that I was trapped like a rat with nowhere to run.

I would resort to the medication that had always worked so well for me in the past, a couple of potent joints and some booze that one of the workers had supplied me with. I remained awake the rest of the night. While once stepping out of my berth to attempt to ease my worried mind, I was abruptly ushered back to my stateroom, being told that the examination of the rig required that no unauthorized movement of personnel would be allowed. This was more than I could take. I was no one's prisoner. I immediately defied the young seaman's orders and walked directly to the control room, which looked more like a N.A.S.A. command center with all the latest computer software and gadgets. I spoke with one of the Israeli men with whom I had come about the nature of the project the commandos were sent to do. Again, I received the same response I had gotten the night before, only to have a decisive "finished" to the man's voice. That was it, done deal! I knew right then and there that the real reason was that they were sent to destroy this mountain of steel anchored to the bottom of the North Atlantic. It was simply a matter of time now. I knew—whether it meant getting killed or not—I was going to be on the next flight out!!

The next day at around 1200, I was told to wrap it up and prepare for the emergency flight out. Believe me, I was more than ready to go. I was so ready to move, in fact, it was as though there was smoke coming out of my rear end. Five of us boarded the chopper and flew back to Gander, Newfoundland, leaving the strike team behind with all on board. I felt like kissing the landing pad upon arrival, but my thoughts were of those left back on the rig.

After a brief meeting with Coleman, the Israelis, and another Washington correspondent, I would soon be on my way back to the states, back to the laid back hills of Arkansas. Coleman would advise me not to get too involved with Barry Seal or the Miami boys, as they were looked upon by the upper echelon in Washington as renegades who would be dealt with in the near future. There was also talk of money, lots of money, and how it was suspected that I should learn a lesson or two from the Algiers incident along with Russell Hebert, Seal's half-brother. My greed would catch up with me, or so I was told. I couldn't imagine this man talking to me of greed! He was one of the puppet masters in the game of lust, corruption, and greed—not to mention murder!!

I flew directly from Montreal back to Chicago and stayed over two more days, compliments of yet another Jewish liaison in the suburbs of Chicago called Elk Grove Village. It was an enjoyable weekend, hitting the bars, a couple of sporting events, and a Neil Young concert that I remember well.

Upon arriving home in the mountains, my FAX machine was again working overtime. My phone recorder

was full of incoming calls from everyone in the capital of Little Rock, of course, looking for this or that. I needed to call Barry Seal first and tell him about the conversations I had overheard during the past week concerning him and several others. As it was, I could not reach him, but I was, however, able to reach Max Mermelstein, down in Florida. After a brief discussion about what had transpired, he agreed it would be wise for him, Jimmy Cooley, and Mickey Monday to fly up to the Ozarks for a little trout fishing. At the end of our phone conversation, having settled on the details of his trip to Arkansas, Max then asked me if I had heard anything about a North Seas drilling rig being sunk by a tremendous storm off the coast of Newfoundland. I became dizzy and almost dropped the phone. The same feeling came over me as when I heard about the *Odessa*. I told him we could discuss that when he got here.

My next call was to my handler to see about the rocket launchers and the AK-47s and if they had made it to their destination. He informed me that they were en route and that I would receive five of the self-propelled rockets along with five of the AK-47s as a bonus for a job well done. Bonus or bribe? Not knowing exactly where I stood, I graciously accepted his offer. They would, in fact, make a nice addition to my collection of weapons. Then getting up the courage to ask about the disaster of the oil rig, I was informed that the decision had been made months in advance, and I should be grateful that I had nothing more to do with the operation than I had. Back then, I only took orders, the puppet masters pulled the strings and I'd dance the jig. The official cause of the disaster was that the huge waves created by the storm had knocked out a starboard porthole, thus causing the computer room that controlled the ballast of the rig to malfunction—this causing a severe list of the rig to the port side and, taking on large amounts of water, the rig went down.

There were no known survivors found and, to this day, the rig rests in 700 feet of icy cold North Atlantic Ocean. Once again, George Bush and friends made millions off the heartache and sorrow of others. This man should be tried for the murders that he orchestrated along with his henchmen.

After that incident, I never again entered the North Atlantic waters. It's an eerie feeling that you get from an experience like that. Almost too much to bear at times. It's a feeling that no one else can possibly comprehend, and I wouldn't expect you to. At night when I toss and turn, images race through my dreams. I understand it's my past reaching out to tap me on the shoulder. I often wondered why my life was spared when so many others perished? I am still here today. Do you know? I wish I could say for sure what lies ahead in the unknown. I can't. Can you?

In the next chapter, things start to turn for the worst for Barry Seal and Max Mermelstein. The fishing was good, but the hunting was even better, at least for the MASTERS. On a final note, I would like to tell Kerbear and Lexi, in the land of the Sioux, that the "Ghost" is alive and well with me here. And for the other bears up in the shadows of the big mountain, remember that you are always in my deepest prayers.

THE KEEPER OF THE FLAME, /s/ Michael Maholy

Michael Maholy, #18365-009 Kings P.M.B. 700, Yankton, SD 57078

### CHAPTER 8

## NEW WORLD ORDER OR NEW WORLD CHAOS? FROM SOLTEC'S PERSPECTIVE

by Soltec 10/29/92

We reprint below a most striking review article by geophysical Commander Ceres Anthonious "Toniose" Soltec, taken from the 3/9/93 issue of CONTACT's predecessor, THE PHOENIX LIB-ERATOR. We offer this as the New World Order agenda for our country advances ever so steadily, like a cancer, yet without most citizens having the slightest awareness of what is going on. Remember, this was written over three years ago now! —Dr. Edwin M. Young, Editor-In-Chief

Soltec, present. I come in the Light of the Holy God of Creation, in service of the Hosts of Heaven. We come as the harbingers, preceding that which you would call the Second Coming. Our mission is to awaken God's people, to bring them into knowledge of the Truth, and ultimately to bring God's people home. I am honored to be in this service and I honor you ones who have opened your minds and hearts and are doing service unto God and unto those of your world.

The load is heavy, the path is mostly uphill and many are stumbling as the chaos builds momentum. Every second of your time can be marked by yet another atrocity aimed at your world. Chaos abounds everywhere you turn. Charity has been replaced by greed as the pickings grow more scarce. Men become as dogs, fighting over the scraps of meat left dangling off an old bone. Men and women defy the Laws of God and teach their children the same. Value is measured by the size of a person's bank account. Contaminated water and food supplies poison the bodies and minds. People live in the streets amongst filth, disease and poverty, struggle to keep warm and dry, and scrounge through the garbage for a morsel of food, while less than a block away the wealthy throw out enough food to feed every homeless person in America. People die by the thousands daily in Africa because they cannot grow any crops on their dead land, and the relief shipments are held up because of political games.

American businessmen use cheap labor of the foreign nations, keeping the people at below-poverty levels, while their bank accounts grow into fortunes. Your politicians lie to you about everything from AIDS to the Vietnam War and use you-the-people as pawns, willing to sacrifice you in order to gain the trophy. Your weather is controlled for the sake of money, your elections are fixed for the sake of money, sexual perversity is bought and sold for the sake of money, little children are turned into drug addicts and thieves for the sake of money, and people die in emergency rooms because of the lack of money. Your world is obsessed over the lust for money and more money. Chelas, the snowball is rolling perilously fast downhill, heading for a crash beyond your wildest nightmares!

What does this have to do with the geophysical changes taking place on your planet? Dear ones, it has everything to do with it. Don't forget, the goal is to take out nearly 6 billion of you and every means available will be utilized. If it means spending billions of your dollars to put one little satellite into orbit to create earthquakes, they will do it. If it means spending more billions on weather control, chelas, they will do it. As I have told you before, the only limitation they have is their imagination. They are using electromagnetic pulsing to alter your minds, television and radio for reprogramming your minds, religion to control

your minds, and economic collapses to turn you into subservient slave laborers. There is no place upon your planet where you can escape, for they have managed to blanket you worldwide. Between the grid networks and satellites, precious ones, there is nowhere to run and no place to hide. It is these actions that are the primary cause of the changes you are seeing taking place before your very eyes. And you are very deep into it.

Your politicians play games of control by hitting one another with "natural disasters"—earthquakes or hurricanes—and bombing runs to take out baby milk factories, and have absolutely no qualms about doing either. The only goal is total control of all the Earth and all those able to survive these terrific atrocities.

So, you feel quite safe and smug because the stock market did not crash through the floor this week? You got by without California dropping off the continent. Your economy grew 2.7% the third quarter, and the Centers for Disease Control is changing its name to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. So all the news has been just real good, right? And I have an asteroid for sale!

The Adversary is busy, very busy indeed. Your news is totally orchestrated and choreographed for their benefit. George Bush may have dropped the outward talk of *The New World Order*, but you can bet your last worthless nickel that his agenda has not changed one iota. All that you are hearing right now is pre-election dribble—all are saying only that which they believe you want to hear and will net them the most votes. All references to the state of your economy and the state of your world is rigged, and the emphasis is dependent upon who is telling the story.

You still have farmers losing every last dime and acre of land because of the fixed grain prices and controlled weather conditions and empty grain storage silos. Do they tell you this? Of course they do not, because both Democrats and Republicans are working madly to bankrupt every farmer in your nation to insure that you go hungry! The only issues you will hear addressed with any conviction is the mud-slinging at the other contender! They promise you heaven, and deliver unto you hell!

The earthquakes, volcanoes, tornadoes, hurricanes and typhoons are only going to increase, regardless of whether George Bush or Bill Clinton is your next President. The economy is going to continue to plummet, newly designed viruses will increase diseases to epidemic levels, more babies and young children will die of drug addictions and violent crimes, and all the while the politicians will continue to pass more restrictive laws until you have had the "will to continue" strangled out of you. And you will be left for dead in the gutters.

You will be forced to give up your air conditioning because of the ozone scandal, while the wealthy manufacturers of newly-designed, freon-free units line their pockets with your hard-earned dollars. You will be the ones whose bank accounts will be stripped bare when the banks collapse. You-the-people will be forced to pay the price for the arrogant and greedy ways of the Elite controllers. You will be reduced to slave status and they shall be your overseers and slave lords. The encampments are already being prepared for you.

Have I become cynical? No, chelas, I am only laying out the plans of the Adversary for your destruction. These ones on your globe are but pawns of the greater Adversary and, once they have been used for that one's benefit, will also be cast off like so much rotten meat. They have bought and believed the greatest of

all lies, because it appeals to their physical egos. Remember, the Adversary's only goal is to usurp power and destroy that which belongs to God and will use whatever manner available to accomplish that goal. You are in the midst of the oldest spiritual war known.

So what can you do about it? STAY CLOSE TO GOD AT ALL TIMES. DO NOT TAKE YOUR SIGHTS OFF OF YOUR GOALS. LOVE ONE ANOTHER—SUPPORT ONE ANOTHER IN YOUR MOMENTS OF WEAKNESS AND FEAR, AND ABOVE ALL, KEEP YOUR SPACE CLEAR AND STAY IN THE PROTECTION! You have been given knowledge and protection to carry out your tasks. If you ask, you shall also be given the strength—physically, mentally and emotionally to accomplish your work. Remember to be good to yourselves, for if you are so drained, not only will you not be able to continue, but you will have ill effects on others as well.

Yes, I am aware that when the Earth is moving beneath you at all times, and you are being bombarded by energy fields and scalar waves, that it is difficult to maintain your confidence and ability to function; however, remember also that you are NOT EVER alone in your trials. The Hosts are always at hand to guide you and support you. You have but to ask. You are in tough times and you must become tougher in order to cope and continue. If you should lose a material thing, perhaps you were too attached to it anyway. Know that with God you shall lack nothing. Most times, you can not see the Light ahead until the darkness around you has become all consuming. Dear, precious ones, the darkness is rapidly closing in around your world; but, there is Light ahead. You must simply keep going in order to reach it. For the joy that is in that Light is beyond that which you, at this time, are able to comprehend.

Continue to gather and distribute the information for this is the greatest service which you can do for your world. Know that the more cages you rattle and the more attacks which come upon you, the deeper into **The Truth** of it you are getting. Many inroads are being made by you ones who carry the burden, though at times we realize that it is difficult to see the impact that the *LIBERATOR* and all your other tasks are having. But take comfort in the notes and letters of thanks and confirmations that come to your place. Take the others, which are not always pretty, and know that these ones are striking out in fear, and that their attacks are but confirmations to you that a chord of Truth has been struck.

We are honored by your service and grateful unto all that you ones are accomplishing. Someday you will understand just what it is you have accomplished and, on that day, your joy will be unspeakable. If you should ever have any doubts about the importance of this mission, I suggest you go and hold a newborn child in your arms and feel its total trust and purity and then ask yourself if it is all worth it.

Perhaps I have strayed from writing totally of the Earth changes, but keep in mind that all these things I have spoken of are a part of those changes. They come attached and cannot be separated without losing part of it. As I informed you in the beginning, I, as a geophysicist, must take all occurrences into consideration in order to draw conclusions. Not all those facts are earthquakes and volcanoes, because all forces and energies are a part of those calculations. If I were to omit even one of these factors, then my conclusions would not reflect accuracy. So, though you may expect to hear only of physical conditions, I would ask that you keep this in mind.

Thank you for your service and your endurance as the "kitchen grows hotter". You are appreciated and held in much abiding love. Soltec to clear.

### CHAPTER 9

## A GLIMMER OF HOPE!

## "FIFTH COLUMN" PURGES MORE TOP-LEVEL GOV'T CROOKS

Editor's note: Just when you think you have the political situation basically figured out, new input arrives to pull the rug out from under you—or at least tie the pieces together in a new way. It really does ALL fit together! On his 1/14/96 End of The Line talk radio show, Jeff Rense recently interviewed James R. Norman, author of a most provocative article which appeared in this month's issue of Media Bypass magazine. (For a copy call 812-477-8670.) The topic is one mentioned briefly a couple of weeks ago by Commander Hatonn: the "Fifth Column" group of intelligence hackers who have forced the resignations of major movers and shakers on Capitol Hill by exposing their illicit Swiss bank accounts. Here is a transcription of the highlights of that interview (for a copy of the full taped interview see p. 15 for ordering information from End Of The Line). [Quoting:]

**JR:** Good evening once again, everyone. My guest tonight is one whom you will not soon forget. His name is James R. Norman and he will tell you things tonight that will leave you stunned, amazed, and astonished. But above all, his story may leave you with the hope that there just might be a future for this country's morally forlorn, ruthlessly corrupt, and remarkably inept governmental process, after all. James Norman is one of America's premier investigative journalists who puts his facts where many others place innuendo and hype. James Norman's articles appear in a number of publications, most notably in the current issue (Feb. '96) of *Media Bypass* magazine in an article entitled "Congressional Retirees Leaving Voluntarily and We Should All Believe in Mother Goose". I will now quote from the beginning of that article:

"One after another in recent months, big-name U.S. senators and representatives have announced that they are "retiring". Since the last election, a record 45 members of Congress have decided not to run for re-election or have outright resigned from office. Not in a hundred years has there been such an exodus. And it is not over. Dozens of other lawmakers and powerful governmental leaders are privately hinting that they may be leaving office soon. Nor are these departees the obscure back bench sitters. They are the among most powerful people in the most powerful government that has ever existed on the Earth, with egos to match. Take a look at the list. Look at all the committee chairmen or ranking minority members who would be committee chairmen if the Democrats regained control. Look at the powerful committees, the subcommittees they are on: appropriations, rules, armed services, agriculture. Look at the startling last minute withdrawal of retired general Colin Powell as a potential candidate for president, a job for which many pundits had him pegged as a shoo-in. Common sense and history teach that people with this kind of power, pay, and perks don't give them up easily or without good reason."

Here now to expose the incredible REAL reasons for the rash of retirements is my guest tonight, James R. Norman. Let's list some of the key congressmen, senators, politicians, and corporate executives that have "resigned" or "retired" recently, and perhaps you might mention some of the excuses they have been giving.

**JN:** Well, it's a laundry list. It's as long as your arm—some of the most notable names. In the first wave there was Sam Nunn, former chairman of the Senate Armed Services Committee; Pat Schroeder, ranking Democrat in the House; Mark Hatfield, the chairman of the Senate Appropriations Committee; Alan Simpson, big time Republican in the Senate. Then you have a whole slew of others: Paul Simon and Howell Heflin. Then you just had Bill Cohen, the senator from Maine, and now he's not running again. They're dropping like flies.

**JR:** Yeah, Clayborne Pell. James Exon?

**JN:** Yeah, Exon, too.

**JR:** And how many Representatives from Congress? Just a whole raft of them.

**JN:** I've lost track. In fact, since the story came out there's been a dozen more or so. The count is approaching 60 now, I think.

**JR:** What is the standard excuse that they're giving?

**JN:** It's amazing. A bunch of these people have said, "Oh, I want to go spend more time with my family." And then a bunch of others who have been interviewed on the TV talk shows and in the *Wall Street Journal* on in the *New York Times*, they say, "Oh, the tone of discourse in Congress is so uncivilized these days." "Nasty politics, to where we can't stand it now that the Republicans are in control."

**JR:** Morally repugnant to them.

**JN:** Yes, of course about a third of them are Republicans themselves. And look, things are no more nasty in Washington than they ever have been. I mean, it's always been politics; it's always been brutal. A lot of these people have just had no good excuse. They've just said, "Oh well, enough is enough. Time to go home. Been here long enough. I didn't want to do this all my life anyway."

**JR:** Right. Well, Pat Schroeder, as you mentioned in your article, said she wants to give up her \$133,000 a year job to be a writer.

**JN:** Pat, don't quit your day job to be a writer.

**JR:** Right. And Nancy Kassebaum, a very famous family behind her—Alf Landon, of course—wants to go back to, as you say, her little farm house on the prairie.

**JN:** Yeah. She did a long interview with the *New York Times* and the only plausible excuse she gave there in the story was, "Oh yeah, I've got this little farmhouse on the prairie in Kansas. I want to go back there." She's young; she's 62 or something like that.

**JR:** Right. How about Alan Simpson. He was carping about he has to raise \$10,000 a week just for reelection. It's just too expensive and too draining on him.

**JN:** Ohhh, in Wyoming? How much would it cost you to hand deliver a huge packet of propaganda to every person. And the fact of the matter is, he COULD raise \$10,000 a week with a few phone calls. These people are sitting on a gravy train.

**JR:** So the cost doesn't make it. I mean, it just isn't a problem to raise the money. People just don't walk away from these incredibly powerful, prestigious, status positions, without good reason.

**JN:** That's right.

**JR:** And your reason and your determined efforts to find out what happened has led us to an astonishing revelation here. What is really going on?

**JN:** Basically, it boils down to: somebody knows about their Swiss bank accounts.

**JR:** Aha! You mean there's graft and corruption and money going overseas without proper accounting?

**JN:** Yes. I know you are shocked that this could be happening, but in fact, yes. It's not been that big a secret, but what has happened is that, essentially, a handful of guys—former intelligence community guys—

**JR:** As in C.I.A.?

**JN:** C.I.A, N.S.A., the National Security Agency. There's a raft of government intelligence agencies. No one has any idea how huge the intelligence community is in this country. But some of these people are so fed up with the bipartisan corruption and payola that's been going on, that they just decided, in effect, to take things into their own hands.

**JR:** How many, James?

**JN:** I think it's just a handful of guys. I don't even know specifically. I'm told there's a group of five guys. They call themselves the Fifth Column. I've been dealing with, in particular, one of these guys—actually a couple of them for about eight months now. Their predictions have been really accurate. They've been telling me this is going to happen for months and months and I said, "Oh, come on! This is silly." Boy, next thing you know, you've got 50-60 retirements from Congress. It's like, what they've been telling me keeps coming true. There is no other explanation for this. What they have said makes sense. It's internally consistent and it's technologically feasible. This is what I'm learning from a whole bunch of bank computer people.

**JR:** Right. Before we get into the computer aspect of it, were they naming names to you? Were these people saying, "Okay, Senator Simpson is going to announce his retirement. Schroeder is going to bow out." Was it a name name kind of thing or just "a trend is coming, Jim Norman. Watch for it."

**JN:** Well, a little of both. It was mostly "the trend is coming, the trend is coming." Then they'd say, "Well, you're going to see a lady out West soon." BOING! There goes Pat Schroeder. "Now you're going to see a fellow in Alabama" BOING! There goes Tom Bevill—the king of pork, I think was his nickname. It was eerie. And this whole thing with Colin Powell. They were telling me months and months of this:

"Don't worry, Colin Powell ain't going to run for office. He ain't going to run for office. He ain't going to run for office." There was a huge, hoopla build-up for this thing. I mean, this was like a steamroller, rolling down hill to get Colin Powell—I mean, the cover of *Time*, the cover of *Newsweek*—guy was out there on the end of the springboard and he decided to go home!

**JR:** You could almost feel the energy mounting. You're right. It was a big massive effort to put him in there at one point, and all of a sudden, POP!—the balloon is gone. Amazing. Were you approached or did you ferret out these sources yourself through mutual contacts?

**JN:** The way this whole thing evolved is the most bizarre thing. I feel like a Woody Allen who stumbled into the midst of this huge thing that's going on here. I had no idea what I was getting into on this thing. I'm a business reporter. I've been a business reporter for twenty years.

**JR:** Well, you wrote for *Forbes* magazine.

**JN:** I was with *Business Week* for ten years. I worked at *Forbes* as a senior editor for five years. There I was doing sort of heavy duty financial investigative type of stuff. And I got looking into an oil company bankruptcy in Connecticut, which always smelled pretty fishy to me, because there was no reason for this company to have been losing money the way that it did. And in fact, when you back and look at the funny oil trading going on, it was a front to funnel money to yet another oil company that was financing arms sales to Iraq during the 1980s. It turns out it was one of a number of covert arms-funding mechanisms, money-laundering systems that were apparently being run and set up. That led me into looking at the government's use of some particularly interesting software, which was also being sold to the Iraqis. It turns up for use by their intelligence community. I said, "Now this is very bizarre."

**JR:** What was the name of that software?

**JN:** It turns out there has been a very long-running legal case in Washington involving a little company called Inslaw.

**JR:** Sure. The Inslaw is the thing that led to the death of Danny Casolaro and a lot of other problems.

**JN:** Yes. Inslaw was just one of many things that Danny was looking at. He was also looking at arms sales. He was also looking at offshore bank accounts. In fact, I think that was the approximate thing that led to his death, because he was found—supposedly committed suicide—but in fact, he had his wrists slashed like 12 times in a motel room in Martinsburg, Virginia, which happens to be the home of a major IRS data facility. My information is that he probably had gained access to some IRS data he wasn't supposed to have on some people and they didn't want him to have it. [The oil company in Connecticul] turned out to be a front for arms sales for Iraq and among the other stuff that was getting sold to Iraq by this Chilean arms dealer, Carlos Cardon, was software for use by Iraq's intelligence community.

**JR:** The Inslaw software.

**JN:** Yes, what people believed was the derivative of the Inslaw software. It was originally called PROMIS. It was designed for tracking legal cases. The thing about this software is that it was easily customized

without having to rewrite all the code. You could just rewrite some stuff on the front end and it would go and track anything you wanted it to track, which would make it greatly adaptable, particularly in an intelligence use, where you are developing elaborate files on people. It also turns out it customized for use in the banking system—for tracking money—particularly in tracking it in the form of wire transfers. It became extremely valuable in connection with a major intelligence effort this country undertook, beginning in the early 1980s. It was called "Follow the Money". It was an effort to surveil foreign banking transactions. We've been doing this since the early 1980s now. It's probably been one of the greatest intelligence coups ever accomplished on the planet. We've been scooping up vast amounts of data on money flows. In fact, Bill Casey, former head of the C.I.A.—he crowed that his crowning achievement of his time in the intelligence community was this establishment of what amounted to real time surveillance of world money flows.

Partly the way they did it was by installing bugged software and bugged computers in most of the world's major banks, which the banks, sort of knowingly accepted, just because they had to if they wanted to do business in New York. Some of them might not have understood just how elaborate the surveillance was. The point is that there was this massive banking intelligence effort underway. This we've got on the record for people who were involved in that during the Reagan Administration. Now to accomplish that the National Security Agency, which is the signal intelligence arm of our government, used various front companies—cut-outs, as they would be called. One of these companies, we've learned, was a company in Little Rock. It's name was Systematics. It was owned by Jackson Stevens 100%.

**JR:** You mean ARKANSAS?

JN: Arkansas.

**JR:** A coincidence, if there ever was one.

JN: Yeah. This is a company—a small company—for bank data processing, but somehow or another it ended up—especially in the late 1980s—landing contracts all over the world to install banking software. Very curious. One of the key interface people between Systematics and the NSA was Vincent Foster, who was chief lawyer at the Rose Law Firm. More than a lawyer, he was a "deal guy" for Jack Stevens. Hillary Clinton was an attorney of record from Systematics. She represented that company in a key 1977 legal case, in which Jack Stevens, on behalf of the BCCI crowd, tried to take over a Washington bank holding company, which later became First American—you know, run by Clark Clifford and Robert Altman. Part of the deal was, they wanted to bring in Systematics to do all the data processing for that bank. Now when you understand that BCCI was essentially a huge, money laundering machine, involved in drug money laundering, bonds financing, and intelligence, then it starts to make much more sense here what was going on.

## VINCE FOSTER, MOSSAD SPY?!

**JN:** Now that gets us into this whole bank spying thing and that's how Vince Foster's picture/name came up in this. I went to Kentucky one night to interview this former intelligence guy who I was told was going to be able to fill me in on some of the uses for this software. As we were sitting there he was blowing smoke rings in the middle of the night, and he said, "Oh, you know, Vince, he was under investigation when

he died." I said, "Under investigation?!—for what?" And he said, "Well, it's spelled s-p-onage." And I said, "You've got to be kidding me!" And for months I was just incredulous about this. This is nuts. Vince Foster spying in the White House, come on!

**JR:** And the guy is really blowing smoke rings when he's telling you this!

**JN:** Yeah. He wasn't fooling. What we did then was go back and try to corroborate this through other channels in the intelligence community, thinking that, oh well, we'll get this denied right away. No. It came back corroborated. Yes, Foster was under an investigation. In fact he was under intensive surveillance by a bunch of government agencies, apparently. This was heavy duty stuff.

**JR:** What year was this?

**JN:** I'm told it began sometime between the election and the inauguration of Bill Clinton—that that's when Foster came under intense scrutiny. And it would have been a period of months prior to his death in July 1993.

**JR:** So he was already up to his knees in espionage prior to the election.

**JN:** Yeah. I'm told that he probably had a relationship for maybe 10 years or so with the state of Israel.

**JR:** The Mossad.

JN: Well, the state of Israel, and I guess the Mossad. They were paying big money for U.S. secrets. There's no surprise about this. This is what the Pollard case was all about. They spy on us. We spy on them. We're allies; we're friends. We cooperate in many ways, but there are many things we don't tell them. In fact, they were paying big bucks for high-level code, in particular, and nuclear secrets. How else can you explain how a debt-ridden little Third World country, basically, has amassed one of the most potent nuclear arsenals on the face of the Earth? It wasn't by sheer luck and by accident. It was well planned and heavily funded and they have done well. If I ran Israel, I'd do exactly the same thing. But the fact is, there were spying on us, and people here were selling out to them. What I think happened was in the process of—there was this small intelligence group—computer hacker group, basically, that was out there surveilling a foreign intelligence data base, again using this bugged software, that would allow us to basically snoop in and they actually downloaded like 50 data bases of foreign intelligence communities. Even the KGB was using this stuff, apparently, and they were able to download KGB files, which was, I am told, how they found about Ames, originally, going back to 1991—years before the CIA admits suspecting him.

**JR:** Right. Aldrich Ames.

**JN:** Right. From that suspicion they were able to go and they actually found the Swiss bank account that was Foster's. Actually several bank accounts at that bank, but one in particular had 3 million dollars in it, which had been traced to Israeli accounts. After some surveillance, they determined that this was Foster's account, that the money had come from illicit sources. In July 1, 1993 Foster bought a round trip ticket for a one-day trip to Geneva and back from the White House travel office. Mysteriously he cancelled that trip

before he took it. I think it's because he found out that that money had been raided. Once they were able to identify the money and that it was his account and once they could snoop inside the bank and actually get the authorization code of that account, they could go in and effect their own technically legitimate wire transfer of that money and they cleaned out the account. They pulled the money back to an account at the U.S. Treasury.

**JR:** This Fifth Column of intelligence agents with all of this incredible, sophisticated computer software had cracked all the banking codes, the access codes. They drained Vince Foster's bank account just before he apparently was headed over to do something with it, and Vince, realizing his account was now zippo—what happened then?

JN: He knew he was under surveillance. He knew the jig was up. That coincides completely with this mysterious bout of depression that everybody claims overcame Foster although Web Hubbell, his buddy and former Rose Law Firm partner had never really described it as depression. He said Vince was worried. He was afraid to use the White House telephones. He was nervous. He couldn't sleep at night. He had heart palpitations. His sister tried to set him up with some psychiatrists. He never contacted any of them. Instead he went out and hired a high-powered Washington lawyer, this guy Jim Hamilton, who—guess what—President Clinton had just appointed to the President's Foreign Intelligence Advisory Board. Very curious. There's something very fishy going on here. But the thing about this whole Foster case is—Foster ends up being just a tiny bit of the picture, because he's not the only one they found with one of these Swiss accounts. They found hundreds of other high-level U.S. Government officials.

I think that the intelligence community in general has known for a long time that there were a lot of these Swiss accounts. The problem was there was no practical way any law enforcement agency could go after them, because it was a bipartisan thing. Everyone was going to help cover this thing up. No agency had enough political power to actually go and nail any of these people. So what I think ultimately happened was this Fifth Column group, after witnessing this gridlock for years and years and years—for decades, I think this has gone on—they decided, look we can do this ourselves. They managed to get hold of a used Cray supercomputer from Clark Air Force Base after it closed. Normally civilians are not allowed to buy these things, partly because they are so useful for hacking, because they crunch numbers so fast. They can throw enough numbers at a security system they can bust their way in by sheer force. So civilians are generally not allowed to buy these things. They got hold of one used, cheap. I think it's a small air-cooled machine that can actually be put in the back of a truck and I think the thing is rolling around the country in what looks like a refrigerated truck with onboard generator and a satellite uplink. Otherwise the thing would be shut down. The feds would locate it and stop it. So I think by doing that for the past five years, they've been downloading data bases.

The first priority was the foreign intelligence data bases. They pulled those down—approximately fifty of them. Then they went after the banks, and I think it was going through the bank stuff, that's where they really came across the Foster stuff, which was then corroborated by their accessing the Mossad data.

### THE HILLARY CONNECTION

**JN:** And guess what! Hillary too! Hillary apparently has been under investigation for being a party to this—for taking a piece of the action off that Swiss account and probably for providing Foster with ex-

tremely sensitive stuff.

**JR:** And how many years have they been working together—15 years or something like that?

**JN:** This goes back to the mid-70s.

**JR:** Okay, a long time. Alright. It's looking pretty dark for Arkansas and the Clintons and all of their retinue right now.

**JN:** Yes. In fact, there is sworn testimony as part of the Senate investigation by Deborah Gorham, Vince Foster's executive assistant, that shortly before he died, Vince had given her two inch-thick ring binders that Deborah Gorham identified as being from the National Security Agency and Vince had her put those in the safe of Bernie Nussbaum, the White House counsel. Now, *Newsweek* ran this little blurb saying, "Oh, not to worry, it was just routine legal stuff from the NSA." Wrong. These were extremely sensitive binders. They had the code and more importantly, the protocols by which the President would authenticate himself to the Pentagon when he ordered military action, including the use of nuclear weapons.

**JR:** Those are the ultimate numbers. The big numbers.

**JN:** That's right. They're not launch codes, per se. That's a different set of codes.

**JR:** They're identifier codes, I got it.

**JN:** Yeah. This is how the guy on the other end of the phone at the Pentagon knows it's the President calling them up. These code books should only have resided in the safe in the Oval Office or in the possession of the military attaches who carry the so-called "football" with them. Or they could have been in the Presidential living quarters. How did Vince Foster end up with these things? What was he doing with them? Did he have a security clearance for them? No. But he did have a security clearance, apparently—a relatively low-level security clearance. That in itself is interesting because everybody denies that he had anything to do with the intelligence community.

The last few days of Vince Foster's life, a very curious chain of events occurred there. There was a strange meeting the weekend before he died. Vince and his wife, Lisa, took off for the eastern shore of Maryland, supposedly for a get-away weekend. By "sheer coincidence", they meet Webster Hubbell and Hubbell's wife down there. So they decide well, let's go over to Michael Cardoza's place. Michael Cardoza is now the head of Clinton's legal defence fund. He's the son-in-law of Nathan Landell, big deal Democratic contributor. Close ties to Israel. According to all the official reports, it was a casual weekend of poolside chit-chat. Wrong. It was damage control. At this point it was clear that Vince was under investigation. That this was heavy duty stuff. There was concern that he was going to crack. That he was going to spill the beans. Or maybe he himself was going to decide to just, you know, go public and expose some of this stuff, and I think he became a real liability. The man who knew too much.

Monday came and he went back in the office. The record shows he had a bunch of people come by soliciting how the weekend went. "Are you cool with everything, Vince? Is everything okay?" He seemed to be calmer as if he had resolved something in his mind. There was a strange two-hour meeting with Marsha Scott, one of the people in the Arkansas contingent there in the White House. Marsha claims she

doesn't recall what they talked about. But they met for two hours in his office. Very unusual. After which she went back and reported to her boss, Webster Hubbell, that Vince had apparently made the decision that he was worried about, or that he was thinking about. Then Tuesday, the next day, Vince apparently leaves early in the afternoon and shows up dead, supposedly in Fort Markey Park.

In fact, what I've been told—now we published this in the December issue of *Media Bypass*—he was under intense surveillance. I mean the Secret Service had him under surveillance while he was on the White House grounds. As soon as he left, the FBI and the NSA had surveillance teams on him. There's also CIA, I think, surveillance of the apartment that he was renting near the White House, where he went apparently and met a woman there, I am told, from the White House staff. Then there's apparently also video footage of a three-person team entering that apartment, supposedly identified as being connected someway to the Mossad. That's apparently where the death occurred. Who actually pulled the trigger? I don't know, but certainly it seems that elements of the Mossad were independently involved in knowing about it, setting it up, probably covering it up. It raises the question of whether elements of our own intelligence community participated in or facilitated this hit in some way. If you go back and look at the official records there are all these curious anomalies.

**JR:** It seems to me Vince Foster represented a danger to several intelligence agencies and governments all at the same time.

**JN:** That's right. Because, as I was saying, Vince is like a window that you can look through to a vast landscape of corruption. It wasn't just his Swiss account. It was all these other Swiss accounts. It's affected a bunch of people who were participating in the sale of state secrets. In fact, I think when the truth finally comes out, you'll see that a lot of people have been doing this stuff. They treat it like it's a perk of office. It's like checking in to a cheap motel. Anything that's not nailed down—the towels, the televisions, the pillowcases—we'll sell them. In this case, the towels are nuclear secrets.

You match that up and then you can assure yourself that the money in that account is basically dirty money. What these guys have done—they've just wire-transferred this money back to the U.S. Treasury, where it's being held, I'm told, in an escrow account, escrowed for use by the CIA. But only if the CIA gets rid of a bunch of its own corrupt bad apples. You have to realize that large portions of these senior and middle management of the CIA have got dirty hands from drug and arms dealing. The CIA has been fundamentally corrupted by these illicit businesses that it's been running, supposedly to further the covert, legitimate foreign policy aims of our government, but in fact, these people have been raking in the dough in their own pockets off this stuff. It's utterly corrupt.

## TRAVELGATE AND WHITEWATER: A SECOND LOOK

Hillary was very shrewd about this. Vince, in effect, was her bag man. Her fingerprints don't show up on this stuff, which is why I think they had a lay-down case against Vince and not so good against Hillary. That's why you're seeing the Travelgate and Whitewater stuff going on. Look. The crimes mentioned in these particular cases are penny-ante stuff in the grand scheme of things. It's not worth taking the president down over it. There's something else underneath here.

**JR:** Sure. Whitewater is the flea on the dog's back.

**JN:** Right. And so is Travelgate. But why were they so apoplectic about getting the professional people out of the Travel Office? Well, if Vince was taking periodic one-day trips to Geneva, booking it through the White House Travel Office, maybe you don't want that kind of information to get out anywhere. In fact, they've gone to great pains to NOT get it out. We found out about it because there was a private investigator in Arkansas who was able to get access to some of Foster's private American Express records, which showed these charges and the refunds. And in fact, just before Vince died they showed he'd bought \$2400 in travel to somewhere from the White House Travel Office. He never lived long enough to take it. Was he going to skip the country? That's an interesting thought. There's all kinds of ramifications.

The take, so far, I'm told, is over 3 billion dollars. When I started on this story, it was about 8 or 9 months ago—it was in the range of a billion eight, but they've just been going hog-wild lately, because I think time's running out. The story is going to get out. It can't go on forever. Every night, they're just pulling in more money. And it's not just Switzerland. It's the Caymans. It's the Channel Islands. It's Macao. It's all of these tax havens. All of these banking secrecy, money-laundering centers around the world.

The banking system is much more porous than anybody wants to admit. For proof of that, about three months ago now, Citibank admitted that some Russian, armed with no more than a PC, managed to hack his way into Citibank's cash management system and was moving around tens of millions of dollars in cash out of corporate accounts! Always keeping it in small denominations so it wouldn't trigger any internal bank alarms. Moving the money to Argentina and Finland, where he would have his buddies standing by to pick up the cash. It was only because someone tipped off Citibank that this was going on, I think, that they got wind of it and stopped and retrieved much of the money. But it just shows how vulnerable these banks are. In fact, what I am told is that most major banks are apoplectic because they are under persistent, sustained attack by the hacking community, looking for these same keys to the kingdom. So the banking community is utterly uptight about this.

**JR:** I would think. How are the Fifth Columnists selecting which people to drain financially of their Swiss accounts?

**JN:** They're going after the dirty money wherever they can find it. They have set a practical cut-off. They're not looking at anything under half-a-million dollars. Part of the thing they do, I think, is take a little bit out of somebody's account—spook 'em—make them move the money to another account. Then they can track it and lay hands on yet another hoard of money. So these people are uptight. They don't know where to put their money. They don't know where to put their dirty money anymore.

I don't know if this is true or not, but several months ago there was this hoopla about "Oh, great terrorist threat—more security at the airport—everybody's got to get searched—turn up the settings on the metal detectors" and that kind of stuff. There was no terrorist threat. They were looking for money. Cash. There is a metal thread that goes through currency, which if you have enough bills wadded together is going to set off the metal detector. They were looking for cash.

### AN OFFER THAT'S HARD TO RESIST

**JR:** Okay, so how do we get them out really quick?

JN: There's another fellow who publishes a little newsletter in Wisconsin and apparently he's been able to correlate some of this from his own congressional sources. What's happening is these people get hand-delivered a plain, brown paper envelope that contains actual transaction records of these bank accounts—their own bank accounts. They get to look at the this. The evidence is confrontive. They're confronted with it and a day or so they get a call from one of these guys in the Fifth Column who I've been referring to as the Angel of Death—the Avenging Angel—he basically reads them their alternatives. "Now that you've had time to read this and think about it, here are your choices, a: you can immediately announce your retirement." The purpose of that is that once somebody announces he's retiring from Congress, they aren't worth bribing anymore. They don't have a lot power anymore. People don't have to listen to them. They're lame ducks and it's only a matter of time before they actually resign, probably sooner rather than later.

Now the alternative is "Okay, you can stay and you can fight it, but we're going to release this data. If we have to we'll deliver it to every doorstep in your district. You will be prosecuted for tax evasion—willful tax evasion—the minimum sentencing for which is ten years in prison under federal sentencing guidelines. And guess what? When a public official gets convicted and sentenced to hard prison time, they can lose their pension, too. For some of these people that ain't chicken feed. For instance, the case of Pat Schroeder, a young woman, who has been in Congress a long time—her respective payout on her pension is going to aggregate over 4 million dollars over the rest of her life. That's big bucks here. Considering that these people have already had their Swiss accounts raided, they're probably trying to figure out how they're going to support their rather plush lifestyles out into the future. So you don't have to be a rocket scientist to figure out the bright thing to do is to go away, play along with it, be a nice guy, go away, and then maybe when the hammer finally comes down, then you plead guilty to tax evasion and maybe they won't hit you with a prison term. But there's no deal cut that says these people are not going to be prosecuted. I think they probably all will be prosecuted some way or other, eventually. Partly depends on who's the Attorney General. We're going to have a new one.

**JR:** So the Fifth Column doesn't make any promises. They say "you've got Plan A: resign now; Plan B: fight it and be exposed immediately with all the data of your private Swiss bank account or wherever it is—Cayman Islands. So most everyone has opted for Plan A. That's announcing a retirement or resignation.

**JN:** So far they all have; it's been 100% success rate on that score.

**JR:** And they have 24 hours to make that decision or something like that.

JN: It's pretty quick. Who they go after—it's been a bipartisan thing. I think it's been about 2/3 Democrat and 1/3 Republican, so far. There's no favorites being played here. As a practical matter, since the Democrats controlled Congress for so long, they're the ones who got all the bribes! Republicans weren't worth bribing until recently. There's a bunch of heavy-hitter Republicans leaving here. Even this guy, Bob Walker from Pennsylvania—right hand man to Newt Gingrich—powerful guy. He almost was elected House Majority Leader. He's gone. Clinger, the head of the committee that's investigating Travelgate. He's announced his retirement. These are not back-benchers. They are heavy hitters who are being asked to go here. People from safe districts—I mean, they have no worry about being re-elected. They're

young people, by and large. They could be there for many more years. This guy Jack Fields in Texas—Houston, young, Republican, and in his early 40s, chairman of the Congress subcommittee on telecommunications and finance—extremely powerful job. Holds a press conference and says he's going to spend more time with his family, breaks into tears, his wife breaks into tears, his mother breaks into tears. You'd thing they'd be joyous!

**JR:** Pretty odd reaction, isn't it?

**JN:** Yeah, what's going on here? This is so bizarre. And the mainstream media just blaps the stuff up and says, "Oh yeah, we can understand how nasty the politics are. Oh, I think it's so nice that people are going to spend more time with their families. The new atmosphere in Congress." Oh, come on! I don't understand how people can publish this stuff.

#### **RUNNING SCARED**

**JR:** What about the reaction to these spontaneous resignations from the insiders who have not been tainted so far. What do you hear?

**JN:** What I hear is that they're all scared to death about this. They're all worried that their accounts are going to hit. It's like it's a matter of time, you know. "When are they going to find out about my account?" It's like rats scurrying to leave a sinking ship. I think you're going to see retirements announced now before people even get handed their brown paper envelopes. Because they know it's just a matter of time. "Let's get out of here now."

**JR:** So James Norman is predicting more.

JN: Yes. Dozens. Maybe scores. It's going to stretch out over a period of years. It amounts to a rolling coup d'etat of our government. Think about it. In fact, what you have here is that the economy is not so much between Democrats and Republicans. It's between the haves and the have-nots in Congress. It's the people with seniority and the ranking committee positions who have been taking all this payola for all the years and letting the crumbs falling to the freshmen. Now you have this crop of freshmen who have come in here and they see at last there's a chance to break this cycle of corruption. I think they're in a mood to take no prisoners. Some of these guys are just chomping at the bit at the idea of cleaning away at this whole raft of corrupt legislators in our government. Not just in the Congress, but in the administrative branches of the government. There are unprecedented numbers of departures from the Justice Department from—and I'm told this is going on in the Treasury, Customs—I think there's a concerted clean-up effort going on in the government because, I think, finally some of the enforcement functions there—the Inspectors General, the internal audit functions within the government—are finally being emboldened to go after this stuff, because the corruption had just gotten so endemic. The Fifth Column has emboldened these people that "yes, something can be done about it."

**JR:** Wow. What super-patriots these five or six people must be, I guess. Although there may be the doubters and critics on the sidelines who will say, "Well, they're using blackmail and extortion and conspiracy to do it. That's not right either."

JN: Well, yeah. I've had some heated arguments with these guys. "How can you dare do it this way? You have to go public with this. You have to play by the rules." And they say—well, I won't tell you what they say—because they think about it in a completely different way. They look at it from an intelligence community standpoint, which is "let's get the job done and worry about the rules later." The appearances—"We don't care about the appearances. We want to get these crooks out of there." And they don't care about the media. They don't talk to the media. One of my guys, he's got a stack of 50 messages from all the big-deal media. He won't even return them. He thinks they're all whores. He talks to me, I think, just because he takes pity on me and because I was a persistent son-of-a-gun and went down there and talked to him myself. We developed some rapport and joked around together. I don't know. I think I've become sort of the one convenient mouthpiece, and I think they do want to get this story out somewhere.

## WHOSE PUPPET IS JANET RENO?

**JR:** What does Janet Reno have to do with any of this at all, or does she have anything to do with it? And furthermore, who is really controlling Janet Reno?

JN: Well, that's really the question. I think that Janet Reno is really kind of a figurehead there. I think she got the job specifically because she had a lot of—she's human; she has a lot of weaknesses; she has a lot of faults that people can hold over her head and manipulate and control her. And I think if you control the Justice Department, you can get away with all kinds of stuff. Is it Bill Clinton who controls her? I don't think so. I think there are other entities here. Look at this huge drug business that is underlying all of this. Look at the huge arms business that underlies all this stuff. All of which is basically based on illicit trade. I think that what is in the process here of this whole change of government—I think it's going to involve the executive office. I think it's going to involve the attorney general here before the election, I think—that the noose is tightening here. You can see that with Hillary Clinton.

**JR:** Well, she's going before the grand jury now.

**JN:** Yeah. Four hours of machine-gun questioning by Kenneth Starr. I mean this is not Travelgate and Whitewater. There is a reason they are going after her. And it is this whole espionage, potentially treasonous activity. The way the government works on this stuff—the object is just to find some felony that they could get her with and prosecute her and then throw the book at her. Treason and espionage might be too hard to prove, but they are going to find something. For sure, they want her out of there and it's going to happen. It's just a matter of time, I think. There is considerable speculation that the reason it hasn't happened sooner is that there is still just some dickering over the terms of surrender here. Will there be pardons? Will these people leave the country? This is a mind-boggling situation! This has never happened in this country. What we've said in these stories, and it's sadly coming true: this is the biggest political upheaval this country has faced since the Civil War. Make no mistake about it.

**JR:** Yes. A rolling *coup d'etat*, as you said. Rolling in terms of the semi-truck and trailer that's rolling around the country—maybe with, what, Piggly Wiggly markets on the outside? Who knows.

**JN:** Yeah, I don't know. The thing about a refrigerated truck is that they don't have to be inspected. They don't have to open up on the road, you know. They can bypass the weigh scales. Who knows? You can't

inspect every one of those things.

**JR:** Amazing. Let's shift gears just a little bit and look beyond our borders. The former president of Mexico, Salinas—just a LITTLE bit of dirty money around that guy. Let's talk about him.

**JN:** Only a half a billion or so. Massive amounts of money. Massive—drug money, other kinds of payola—all kinds of stuff they've been ripping off from the Mexican economy. It ended up mostly in Switzerland in Citibank accounts, apparently. Hmmmm. Didn't the vice-chairman just quit there suddenly? And didn't their chief financial officer just leave there all of a sudden—bolted out the door? I hear John Reed, the chairman, may be looking for another job, you know. Look, the thing you have to keep in mind here—you could not launder the amounts of money we're talking about here without the knowing and willing participation of major banks and brokerage houses. All the big guys. And I think in many cases, it has involved the corruption of senior officers in these institutions. They wink at this stuff.

**JR:** Hasn't there been a lot of City Bank stock being dumped lately?

**JN:** Yeah. A bunch of insiders are selling their stuff like mad in the last quarter partly, they could argue, because the stock was so high, but to me it is indicative that there's a bunch of these people going to bail out. That they're leaving the bank. So they're selling their stock. Probably part of negotiated separation agreements or something. There's more turmoil going on there. Look at some other countries here. Canada. Brian Mulroney, former prime minister there—under investigation by the Mounties for Swiss bank accounts. Apparently he'd been taking kick-backs on Airbus aircraft orders for Air Canada. And that's just the tip of the iceberg, I'm told.

JR: How much?

**JN:** Well, there I think, we're talking in the area of double digit millions.

## FOREIGN RULERS TOPPLE

JN: The Columbian Cali Cartel—let's look at them for a minute. My information is that they've had their computers raided, too, fairly recently—in the last couple months or so. Now let's say you could get into the Cali computers and find out who they've been paying off. Whew, there could be a lot of people get real nervous about that. One person they did find out they were paying off was our star witness in the Noriega drug case—which is going to get Noriega a whole new trial. They paid him a million-two or a million-five or something like that.

**JR:** We're looking at a potential here of Manuel Noriega going back—if he lives to go back to trial—this thing could get real amazing.

**JN:** He already has plans to move to Nevada and live there, I'm told. Or is it New Mexico or Arizona or somewhere? He's going to get off. He's going to be free. Let's look at Korea. Both of their past presidents are in prison right now. Together they've been implicated in slush funds aggregating over a billion dollars. Where? Well, Switzerland some of it. A lot it was in England, apparently. The English, apparently, are masters at money laundering. And probably the Bank of England itself has participated in

it. The prime minister of Japan has just resigned, Mr. Murayama. The word we got was that the opposition party probably got one of these brown paper envelopes with funny transactions, which, I think, forced his resignation.

Half the Italian government is in prison too. I forgot to mention that. By the way, there are record numbers of retirements in the English Parliament. Hmmmm. I think that's connected too. There's something going on here. I think this Column crowd has been sharing the information with a bunch of other governments. There's something very big here going on. Not just coincidence.

## WHO'S IN CHARGE?

**JR:** It has been said before many times, Jim Norman—you've heard this probably for years and years. The people in government don't run us anyhow. There's a hierarchy of power—multi-national corporations and so on—one that really sets the tone and pulls the strings. How does it look from your position as ten years with *Business Week* as a senior writer, five years at *Forbes*, senior editor. You know money as well as anyone would want to know money on a national and an international basis. Who is calling the shots, ultimately, here?

**JN:** I don't know. I thought I knew. I thought I understood perfectly how the world worked. And then I stumbled onto this story. And I realized nothing is what it seems to be. I mean all of this pretense, all of the facade of order and dignity and reason and rule of law. It's a charade. It's money. It's money that is calling the shots here. And it's greed that is driving these people. And they have polished this to a fine art. They know all the lies to tell. They know how to put on a great facade. But behind it, it's money, money, money.

## "BOP TROT": CLEANING OUT RATS' NESTS IN THE STATES

JN: You were asking at one point: is there any precedent for what we are seeing here? And actually there is and it actually involves, I think, some of the same Fifth Column crowd. It's an effort called—the code name for it is "Bop trot". I don't know where they get that. But it's a code name put on a major public integrity enforcement effort. It began about 5 years ago. It was manned by several hundred, I think hand-picked out of various federal enforcement agencies—FBI, Treasury, IRS, Customs, and I think some intelligence people were seconded to it. It was focused—it began on the state of Kentucky, just because that state, apparently, next to Louisiana, is known for being just a rat's nest of public corruption. They began a back-to-the-basics approach, looking at the assets that all these public officials had, trying to figure out how they could have afforded it on their meager public income, and going back, going through all their bank records, checking all this stuff, amassing powerful cases against these people, and then there have been some 65 indictments. It mean, it's a massive number of indictments—and a 100% conviction rate.

JR: In Kentucky alone.

JN: This is just in Kentucky. There has been very little publicity about it, partly because they have not

gone through the usual U.S. attorneys. Very little discussion in the press, although it showed up in the press a little bit down there. But before this raft of indictments there was this eerie wave of retirements and resignations of people, very similar to what we are seeing right now. There is a pattern to this.

**JR:** Maybe the Fifth Column was cutting its teeth here on some of these smaller operations and then got the big picture.

**JN:** I think so. In fact, they're rolling this out across the country. I think they went from Kentucky. There's a crew that was doing some work in Chicago. I've heard that Connecticut is on a hit list, maybe soon. I think there's like 16 states that it's going to roll out there. But this basically a federal effort aimed at state-level corruption. The problem is who is going to police the federal government? No government can really police itself. So that's the problem. The corruption at the highest levels. How do you get at it? That's why I think these people decided a vigilante action was about the only way to do it. But it's applying, essentially, some of these same techniques.

**JR:** You know it's amazing when think and you contrast the efforts of these five or six people—the Fifth Column—to the hundreds of thousands of Americans who have allied themselves with various militia and patriotic groups and they're studying the *Constitution* and so forth, and wanting very badly to take this country back from the graft and corruption which has permeated virtually every level of big government. And you've got five or six guys with high technology, a Cray computer and a truck, apparently—and this may be oversimplifying it—doing everything that most of us who care about this country would like to see happen.

**JN:** Well, it's not just these five guys. They're getting a lot of help from their buddies in the intelligence community and in other agencies. These guys are just like the rallying cry around which a lot of good people in government now are—I mean there is apparently information coming out of government like a sieve—files that people have been maintaining for years that they knew they could never do anything with. Now all of sudden, "Hey, here's another account you ought to go look at." And they start getting swamped with leads now.

I don't have records of these Swiss bank accounts yet myself, but I tell you this, nobody has sued me. Nobody has even written me a letter threatening me, and in fact, that brings me to another interesting point. The government's effort to suppress this story—you know I wrote this for *Forbes* and *Forbes* chickened out, wouldn't run it, but they gave me permission to publish it elsewhere. I think knowing that any other big-deal publication would dare touch it because of the heavy-duty issues involved here. Another place I took it was *Insight* magazine. Paul Rodriguez, the editor there, did a lot of work to corroborate it, made a lot of calls around Washington. He got a visit from a military intelligence guy from the Pentagon saying, "Lay off this subject. You don't know what you're dealing with." *Wall Street Journal* wouldn't touch it. *New York Times* scared to death of it.

It was *Media Bypass*, this funny little magazine from Indiana. I kind of refer to it as the sort of *Hustler* magazine of right-wing political writing. Actually they're quite eclectic, more of a libertarian sort of thing. They called me, because they had heard that I had this story out there from one of the sources and in fact they had managed to corroborate the key element on their own. They had found out from one of their sources that the IRS had a four-man team surveilling Foster during daylight hours. In fact one of those guys actually read part of the surveillance report off a computer screen to a source. So it wasn't that hard for

them to corroborate. I don't think it would be that hard for any of these big-deal media conglomerates to corroborate the fact that there was a surveillance thing going on. In fact, a Paris-based intelligence news-letter corroborated this, too. It's not that hard to prove, substantially.

Yeah, there's no documents, but I mean Woodward and Bernstein didn't have documents. They had trusted sources, and they went with stories when they believed they were true. Why the media hasn't touched this, I don't know. It's totally bizarre. In the case of *Media Bypass*, just as it was going to press—Jim Leach—his House Banking Committee staff—this was after I'd spent three hours with them in Washington, explaining all this stuff to them—when they found out the story was actually going to be published, they called up and requested a pre-release copy of the story and they immediately leaked it to the libel attorney for Systematics, which is now called All Tell Information...

JR: In Arkansas.

**JN:** Yeah. This is this Arkansas front company that Foster was involved with—so that their San Francisco attorney could try and threaten *Media Bypass* and prevent them from running the story. *Media Bypass* just thumbed their nose and said, "Go take a flying leap. We're going to run this story. We think it's true." They went away. They never sued. They never wrote a threatening letter. Guess What! A couple of weeks ago, John Streuve, CEO of Systematics, announced his retirement, at age 56, to go spend more time with his family.

The government went overboard to prevent the publication of this story in rather heavy-handed ways. Why? National security? Probably. I think just the fear of exposure of the corruption.

**JR:** Well, national security has taken on an entirely different meaning in many ways, hasn't it.

**JN:** Well, it's the rug under which you can sweep a lot of dust. Maybe we can put it that way.

#### JOIN UP

**JR:** What can individuals do, James Norman, to try to move this entire process forward besides stay on the sidelines and cheer loudly, as I'm sure many of them will do as the months roll by.

**JN:** Well, one thing I've started to do is pray a lot! We're making a modest proposal at *Media Bypass* that we all basically become members of the Fifth Column Society and start doing some of the basic legwork ourselves, of keeping these people honest. Actually it turns out it's not that hard to do, and in fact, we've got another story that's going to run in the March issue. It was written by a former Wharton University professor. This guy is a character. His name is Orlan Gravve. He's one of my heroes. After he left Wharton he started his own software company, developing software for pricing derivatives. Really arcane stuff, but this stuff became essentially one of the most frequently used pieces of software in major banks and brokerage houses for financial pricing of financial instruments. What do you know? The intelligence community comes to his company and says, "Hey, can we use you guys as a front company so we can help spy on all these banks and brokerage houses?" I think that's what sent him up the wall. He thought, "Holy smokes, we're living in a surveillance state here." So he got quite upset about it and he's actually written sort of a primer on the kind of data bases and public sources of information you can go to.

Basically, go back to the basics. Find out what kind of assets these people have. Where are they? What are they worth? How could they possibly have amassed this. You know, the home on Martha's Vineyard. The million-dollar condo in Washington, the two Volvos, the expensive kids' education, all of the perks and all of this stuff on their meager public salaries. The numbers don't add up. If you just go back and do this kind of stuff, and what we are proposing in *Media Bypass* is that everybody goes and does this stuff—send it to your local newspaper, send it to the IRS, and if nobody does anything about it, send it to *Media Bypass* and be sure and tell us what newspaper wouldn't print it. And we'll just keep going after this stuff. We can fill up this magazine for years and years on this kind of stuff. It will be a whole new career for us. I think it needs to be done. The government can't police itself. It's corrupt and the enforcement system is essentially corrupt. It takes the public doing this kind of stuff.

I think the pace is going to accelerate now, because I think the whole cover-up of Foster's death is unwinding. And as that becomes known, the position of President Clinton and Hillary Clinton is going to become untenable and it's going to just raise all kinds of questions and the rate of retirements—the lame excuses are not going to hold up anymore. The next time you hear someone announce their retirement, you can think "Swiss bank account" and it'll probably make a lot more sense.

**JR:** Wow. Amazing. What's next for James Norman besides coming back and visiting with us again I hope in about three or four months.

**JN:** Well, I guess I'm going to keep poking along at this and *Media Bypass* is eager to get more of this stuff. I haven't gone out looking for another job. Oh, that's another thing. I got fired from *Forbes*, basically. Not because of this story, necessarily, but because after it ran in Media *Bypass* and I was continuing to work on it on my own time, basically, I came across the fact that Caspar Weinberger had one of these Swiss bank accounts. The Secretary of Defense. He's the chairman of *Forbes*. He's the cochairman of Steve Forbes' presidential campaign now. His account apparently got raided for 2.3 million dollars. This account number that had been given to me—I didn't even know whose it was—I gave it to the Fifth Column guys and they played around with it for awhile. Months later, they said, "Oh yeah, didn't you know whose account that was? That was Cap's." BOING! Two hours after I put that in a memo to the boss, I was offered a buy-out and they said, "Hit the road. Bye." I am working on a book effort here and somehow or another, we're going to get this stuff into print.

**JR:** I think you need to do that and I think it will happen even if it's in these so-called underground or alternative media.

I can't thank you enough for spending two hours with us. It's been enlightening, to say the very least. I congratulate you. I salute you and a lot of our listeners would do the same. Thank you and have a good evening and we'll talk again.

#### CHAPTER 10

## THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 2/10/96

## THE TINY VICTIMS OF DESERT STORM

In November 1995, *LIFE* magazine published this special report on some of the children who have been born with horrific birth defects as a result of a parent's participation in Desert Storm. Written by Kenneth Miller and Jimmie Briggs, it is additional confirmation of the material we have already presented on the genocidal implications of Desert Storm. (See the January 9 issue of *CONTACT*, page 12, for one.) The photographs by Derek Hudson portray the youngest of those who are daily paying an unthinkable price as part of the Elite's agenda for the New World Order. [Quoting, in part:]

During the past year, *LIFE* has conducted its own inquiry into the plight of these children. We sought to learn whether U.S. policies put them at risk and whether the nation ought to be doing more for them and their families. We also aimed to determine whether, as some scientists and veterans allege, the military's own investigation is deeply flawed. The future of this country's volunteer armed forces—institutions dependent on citizens' willingness to serve, and therefore on their trust—may rest on the answers to such questions. Certainly, soldiers expect to forfeit their health, if necessary, in the line of duty. But no one expects that of a soldier's kids.

Researchers have been probing Gulf War syndrome since late 1991, when returning soldiers reported a spate of mysterious maladies. Conclusions have been slow to arrive. Last June the federal Centers for Disease Control (CDC) confirmed that Gulf vets were unusually susceptible to a dozen ailments—from rashes to incontinence, hair loss to memory loss, chronic indigestion to chronic pain. But in August, a Pentagon study concluded that neither the vets nor their loved ones showed signs

pict. kennedi

pict. cedrick

of any "new or unique illness". Veterans' advocates disputed that finding, as did the National Academy of Sciences' Institute of Medicine, which declared that the reports' reasoning...is not well explained." And while there is, as yet, no absolute proof that Gulf vets' babies are especially prone to congenital problems, patterns of defects have begun to emerge—patterns unlikely to result from chance alone.

## **CLUSTERING**

Clustering is the term epidemiologists use when an ailment strikes one group of people more than others—

and the phenomenon can be a key indicator that something more than chance is causing birth defects. The Association of Birth Defect Children says it has found the first cluster of defects in the offspring of U.S. Gulf veterans: 10 babies with severe Goldenhar's syndrome, a condition that usually strikes one in 26,000, according to ABDC executive director Betty Mekdeci. The ABDC, which has gathered data on 163 ailing Gulf War babies so far, is tracking four more possible clusters—victims of hypoplastic left heart syndrome, of atrial-septic heart defect, of microcephaly and of immune-system deficiencies. Significantly, not one of the parents in the ABDC survey has a family history of these types of birth defects.

### pict. lea

The difficulty in proving conclusively whether clusters are occurring is that no one—not Mekdeci, not the Pentagon—knows how many babies have been born to Gulf vets. The Defense Department's own survey of 40,000 birth outcomes, initial results of which are due in late October, is the largest study yet, but far from complete since it relies on data only from military hospitals. Along with the ABDC and Defense Department surveys, more than 30 other studies of Gulf vets and their children are underway. One that is no longer ongoing, by the Senate Banking Committee, folded last year when committee chair Don Riegle retired ["spontaneously"?]. Of the 400 sick vets who had already answered committee inquiries, a starling 65 percent reported birth defects or immune-system problems in children conceived after the war. Although Riegle is gone, there are a few others in Washington fighting for afflicted Gulf War families. One is [John D. III] Rockefeller [not too credible!], but in recent months he has lost clout. After last year's GOP's landslide, he was ousted as chairman of the Veterans Affairs Committee, which produced the 1994 report on PB and vaccine use in the Gulf. The new chair, Alan Simpson [who has since become another "spontaneous" soon-to-be-retiree!]

Then there is Hillary Rodham Clinton, the point person for an administration that, by pushing through a 1994 law mandating benefits for vets with symptoms, has cast itself as a friend of Gulf War syndrome sufferers. [Friends like these are DEFINITELY not to be counted upon for truth or help!]

Richard Arnold, who had fathered two healthy children before he went to war, was working for Lockheed in the Gulf. But he bunked in the desert with the troops—and that meant swallowing, inhaling and otherwise absorbing some very dicey stuff. According to a 1994 report by the General Accounting Office, American soldiers were exposed to 21 potential "reproductive toxicants", any one of which might have harmed them as well as their future children. They used diesel fuel to keep down sand. They marched through smoke from burning oil wells. They doused themselves with bug sprays. They handled a toxic nerve-gas decontaminant, ethylene glycol monomethyl ether. They fired shells tipped with depleted uranium.

## FINDING THE CAUSE: PB PLUS PESTICIDES?

Some physicians who have treated Gulf vets believe they may be suffering from a general overload of chemical pollutants—and that their body fluids are actually toxic. Other doctors, while agreeing that chemicals or radiation may have caused birth defects, think the vets' ills came from a germ—an unknown Iraqi biological warfare agent, perhaps, or some form of leishmaniasis, a disease carried by sand flies.

government scientists generally discount these theories. "The hard cold facts" are simply not there, says Dr. Robert Roswell, executive director of the Persian Gulf Veterans Coordinating Board. "The one argument that does deserve further study [concerns] the combination of pyridostigmine bromide with pesticides." Pyridostigmine bromide—or PB—is a drug usually prescribed to sufferers of myasthenia gravis, a degenerative nerve disease. But animal experiments have shown that pretreatment with PB may also provide some protection from the nerve gas soman. The U.S. military therefore gave the drug to most Americans in the Gulf. The Defense Department may have been taking a big chance with PB. In earlier, small-scale safety trials, Air Force pilots had reported serious side effects, including impaired breathing, vision, stamina and short-term memory. Even more alarming, PB was known to worsen the effects of some kinds of nerve gas. Nonetheless, as war threatened, the Pentagon persuaded the Food and Drug Administration to waive its prohibition on testing a drug for new purposes without the subjects' "informed consent". Mary Pendergast defends that ruling: "You can't have your troops being the ones to decide whether they'll take some step to keep themselves healthy."

If PB did cause lasting problems, the reason could be the way it interacts with bug spray. In 1993, James Moss, a scientist with the U.S. Department of Agriculture, found that when cockroaches are exposed to PB along with the common insect repellent DEET—used in the Gulf—the toxicity of both chemicals is multiplied. Moss says he pursued his experiments in spite of orders to stop. His contract wasn't renewed when it expired last year, and the researcher claims he was blackballed.

Pentagon officials deny that any PB-DEET mixture could have cause birth defects in male Gulf vets' children. Clearly, further research is needed to determine whether a PB-and-bug-spray combo can behave the same way.

## **INOCULATIONS?**

## pict jayce

One hundred fifty thousand soldiers took a vaccine against weapon-borne anthrax. A second vaccine, against botulism, was administered to 8,000 soldiers. A staff report issued last December by the Senate Committee on Veterans Affairs concluded that Persian Gulf veterans were... ordered under threat of Article 15 or court-martial, to discuss their vaccinations with no one, not even with medical professionals needing the information to treat adverse reactions from the vaccine." The Senate report noted that the particular botulinum toxoid issued "was *not* approved by FDA."

Whatever the White House fact finders discover, there's no guarantee that Gulf War babies will get government help. As it stands, a soldier's children receive free medical care only as long as a parent remains in the service. For parents who return to civilian life, the going can be grim. Moreover, the government's record on earlier military health grievances is hardly reassuring. Soldiers unwittingly used in radiation experiments in the 1950s, for instance, had to fight the VA for compensation until the 1980s. And Vietnam veterans claim that scientists manipulated evidence to hide the ravages of Agent Orange. [End of quoting.]

On the surface, this article seemed *sympathetic* to this issue, but what did they leave out? How about the evidence that points to the DELIBERATE nature of these crimes against humanity? *LIFE* magazine

wasn't about to tell you why "wars" like the Desert Storm are an essential item in the New World Order agenda. (For a memory refresher, see *Depopulation of a Planet, Part II* by Rick Martin in the December 5, 1995 issue of *CONTACT*, especially the *Report from Iron Mountain* on page 12.) Neither did they mention NWO's goals of destabilization, demoralization, and destruction of our society, all of which are "nicely" fed by a diseased and poverty-stricken populace.

With regard to the headline for this article, I am being nudged to remind you that, in Truth, there are no victims. As Sananda said in the *PHOENIX OPERATOR-OWNER MANUAL* (page 40), "ALL ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WHICH OCCURS WITHIN THEIR MANIFESTED ILLUSION..." Even the children in this article "chose" their challenges as learning opportunities before they entered this third-dimensional prison planet. That certainly doesn't excuse the perpe-traitors of these crimes, and who knows what challenges await them upon THEIR next trip to Earth—or wherever.

### **GULF WAR HYPOCHONDRIA**

This article from the January 19 issue of the *CHICAGO TRIBUNE* suggests that Gulf War Syndrome is the result of the power of suggestion, [quoting:]

A "nocebo" is a negative placebo. That is, while a placebo pill makes you feel better though unbeknownst to you, it's only made of sugar, a nocebo makes you feel bad though physiologically speaking it shouldn't be able to. [T]he nocebo effect is a major player in some of today's biggest health scares.

When a newspaper at which I worked moved to a new building somebody told the librarian there was formaldehyde in her new library bookshelves. Formaldehyde is a suspected human carcinogen and the librarian knew this. Soon she was suffering from a headache, aching joints and labored breathing—all classic psychosomatic symptoms. But then she heard there was no formaldehyde in the shelves. Suddenly the symptoms disappeared. Apparently the final word on the shelves was that they did contain formaldehyde but the librarian remained blissfully ignorant of this and hence free of symptoms. [There are certainly a lot of flaws in HIS logic, namely: a lack of short-term, discernible symptoms does NOT guarantee that there are no disease processes developing in the librarian at the subclinical level. It also sounds like "ignorance is bliss" is the way to go—the less you know, the healthier you'll be?? No thanks.]

"We think nocebo has a powerful effect," says AHF (American Health Federation) president Ernst Wynder, "particularly if the suggestion is made by your doctor and then your lawyer and then the newspaper." Examples? consider Gulf War Syndrome. Tens of thousands of Gulf War vets are now claiming that something they were exposed to in the Gulf is making them ill. Their list of symptoms totals more than 75, with the most common being the classic psychosomatic symptoms such as the librarian suffered. Yet study after study [done by your damage-controlling government] showed that Gulf War vets have no more discernible illness than one would expect in a group of that size and age category. [It gets worse:] Curiously, virtually none of the sick soldiers complained for the first couple of years after the war. [This writer doesn't know much about the workings of the human body—like that it can take time for symptoms to present.] Then reservists began to say they were sick but the active-duty soldiers still had no complaints. That's when it hit the newspapers and television, with every news report stating emphatically that the syndrome was real. [Did any of you hear this validation in the mainstream media?] suddenly the active-duty soldiers were falling ill, too. [The suggestion is then made that many soldiers

hope to gain lifetime disability pay and/or make lots of money in a class-action suit designed to hit the "deep pockets" of various chemical companies.]

Can the nocebo effect be cured? Sure. The media, the courts, and the general public need to take a healthy dose of skepticism. This won't be a popular remedy; it's not as emotionally gratifying as blaming bad guys (corporations, government) or as financially rewarding as suing them. But then, the best medicine seldom tastes good. It's just good for us. [I would refer the author of this article, Michael Fumento, to the previous article. Were the children's birth defects also the result of the parents' hypochondria? This is an example of a valid concept, i.e., the power of the mind to create, based on what it believes to be true—taken down the primrose path! But just in case he's right, please give this article to any vets you know suffering from Gulf War Syndrome in the hopes that, in learning that it's psychosomatic, their maladies will all disappear.]

### **ANTI-MALARIAL SUCCESS**

More misery in Africa, from the January 20 issue of the GLOBE AND MAIL, [quoting:]

Medical researchers working in Cameroon in West Africa are reporting a 100 percent cure rate among malaria patients taking an experimental drug called pyronaridine, says the British medical journal *Lancet*. The patients all had falciparum malaria, the most severe form of the disease. By contrast, patients in the study who took the most widely prescribed drug, chloroquine, had a cure rate of only 44 percent. However, the result is not wholly encouraging. New antimalarial drugs are constantly needed, since the parasites that cause the disease quickly develop drug resistance. Chloroquine, the first-choice medication since the 1940s, has stopped working in parts of Africa and Asia, and resistance is also developing to some backup treatments. Malaria causes 1.5 million to 2.7 million deaths annually, mostly of young children.

## MENINGITIS REPORTS NATIONWIDE

News of deadly meningitis outbreaks have come into The News Desk from Florida, Texas, and Los Angeles. This article comes from the January 25 issue of the *LOS ANGELES TIMES*, [quoting:]

Four people have died in Los Angeles County since January 1 from a virulent form of meningitis that is being linked to what doctors are calling the worst flu season in years. The deaths, including that of an infant, have been caused by meningococcus, a deadly form of bacteria that can be treated with antibiotics but can kill quickly if not properly diagnosed.

Although the deadly form of meningitis is not related to influenza, it occurs in heavy flu seasons when a person's immune system may have been weakened by a viral infection...[Does it make sense then, that if ones wanted to introduce a deadly disease, it could most effectively be done on the heels of a "little" cold or flu?] [End of quoting.]

From Florida, in the January 30 issue of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*,[quoting:]

Civilian and military health officials have vaccinated at least 9,000 children in an effort to halt an outbreak

of meningitis that has killed one youngster in the Florida Panhandle. Many of the children in the target area [TARGET AREA?!] are dependents of military personnel at Eglin Air Force Base and adjacent Hurlburt Field. The Air Force supplied vaccine and medical personnel to assist public health nurses and emergency medical technicians in giving the inoculations Saturday and Monday. [End of quoting.]

And in Texas, from the January 27 issue of the Fort Worth Star-Telegram, [quoting:]

Before 8 a.m. yesterday, grim-faced parents began lining up at Fossil Hill Middle School—some with children, some alone. Hundreds came to obtain doses of an antibiotic that protects against meningitis and meningococcemia, the disease that killed eighth-grader Kristi Burbach on Monday and hospitalized a classmate [in less than 24 hours] and his young sister. Physicians and other health authorities on hand told parents that the antibiotic, rifampin, will protect against the diseases. [Experience has, hopefully, taught us to be skeptical of what we are told by our governmental agencies, as demonstrated by the letter-to-the-editor that follows:]

## **BALTO: NOT WHAT YOU THINK**

From the January 6 issue of the *LOS ANGELES TIMES*, [quoting:]

The movie *Balto* is advertised as being based on the true story of a sled dog who brought life-saving vaccine to Alaska in the early '20s. However, in the 1949 book *The Drug Story*, an exposé of the pharmaceutical industry, author Morris Bealle told another version of the incident. Manufacturers of the diphtheria vaccine, needing a way to bolster sagging sales, decided to hype a supposed outbreak of the illness in Nome, Alaska. Although their drug could easily have been flown in, it was deemed more newsworthy to send it by dog sled, where the media could excitedly report each day's progress. The cutest dog was selected to lead and was given the catchy name Balto. After what was more a grim ordeal than heroic adventure, the medicine arrived in Nome. Unfortunately, Nome only had a few sniffles and sore throats common to the season. Embarrassed vaccine promoters announced they'd perform wide-scale vaccination anyway to prevent any future epidemic, an effort that ended up *causing* the biggest outbreak of diphtheria in Nome's history. Stace Aspey, Long Beach. [*Not much has changed, has it?!*]

#### CHAPTER 11

# JUDGES WHOSE NAMES DID NOT APPEAR ON THE ELECTION BALLOT

by Gary Wean 2/9/96

Editor's note: For our readers who have wondered what ever happened to Gary Wean's lawsuit against Gov. Pete Wilson, Judge Lance Ito, Attorney Johnny Cochran, et al., we have this update for you. You may recall that Johnny Cochran was the only person successfully "served" with this lawsuit. (Gary's entire lawsuit was presented in the 9/26/95 CONTACT as the Front Page story; see box on this page.) Well, the time came for Gary Wean to file what is termed a Request for Entry of Default with the court clerk in the County of Kern—and, without spoiling the punchline—you are about to read what happened. In the meantime, you'll also find in Part II of this series (in next week's CONTACT) documents from Gary that contain some VERY INTERESTING AND TELL-ING information concerning just HOW "they" are able to justify and/or rationalize judges, sitting on the bench dispensing justice, who were never elected by ballot. But, in the meantime, read on.

## CONTACT:

## PART ONE OF A TWO-PART SERIES

In the fall of 1995, the two convicted L.A.P.D. officers in the Rodney King case were due to be released from the federal penitentiary.

Los Angeles County Supervisor Michael D. Antonovich knew the terrible problems that had beset the two officers, Sgt. Stacy Koon and Officer Laurence Powell, and their families.

In a move of compassion for their families, Supervisor Antonovich arranged a dinner at the L.A.P.D. Academy to raise funds to pay lawyers fees and expenses incurred from the two trials.

The two officers were released to what is called a "rehab house" in Los Angeles, a preconditioning prior to their full release but still under parole conditions.

## paste up CONTACT hdline

The "rehab house" was attacked by a heavily armed man with the intent to kill Stacy Koon. Sgt. Koon was away at the time but several people were killed by the attacker before he himself was killed by the police.

In an act that amounts to vengeful persecution the federal judges are trying to increase the length of the original sentence and return the officers to the federal penitentiary.

Also, the ADL put terrific influence and power-pressure on Supervisor Antonovich to cancel the fundraising dinner.

The L.A. Police Academy is private property and this dinner in no way was connected to the city or county government or politics.

The first document you are about to read is a letter I wrote to Supervisor Michael D. Antonovich on November 2, 1995, regarding his intention of holding the fund-raising dinner. Along with this letter to the supervisor, I included a copy of my lawsuit, Case No. 229531 AEW. The initials are those of the judge, Arthur E. Wallace, in the County of Kern.

This setoff an eye-opening set of events that will amaze the citizens of America.

In his response, L.A. County Counsel De Witt W. Clinton stated that the lawyers and "unelected" judges relied totally on California Supreme Court case *Binns v. Hite* (1964) 61 Cal. 2d 107. The reading of this case, *Binns v. Hite* and a connected case, *Barrett v. Hite*, exposes the most fantastic California State corruption that, when seen and read by your own eyes, will be absolutely unbelievable.

Part II of this article (next week's *CONTACT*) will include a copy of the two infamous California Supreme Court cases and my letter of January 2, 1996, responding to Supervisor Antonovich and L.A. County Counsel De Witt W. Clinton.

In my lawsuit against Johnny Cochran, et al., there has been a little trickery conducted by the Kern County Court Clerk.

Johnny Cochran failed to answer the lawsuit and I filed an "Entry of Default", which a Deputy Clerk dated, initialed, and put in the legal file.

Due to a little clerk skulduggery, it became impossible to make a hearing set in Superior Court (Kern County) on February 9, 1996 at 8:00 a.m. On Wednesday, February 7, 1996, I sent the entire file to Superior Court Judge Arthur E. Wallace, Dept. 7, Kern County, California. Federal Express has guaranteed me that it will be (will have been) delivered to the Court Clerk not later than Thursday, February 8, 1996, 3:00 p.m.

/s/Gary Wean Feb. 8, 1996

\* \* \*

November 2, 1995

Supervisor Mike Antonovich:

You are absolutely right in arranging a dinner for Laurence Powell at the Los Angeles Police Academy.

Again, you are correct when you state that the officers were following procedures and orders laid down by their superiors when they lawfully arrested Rodney King. These commands that the officers were obeying came down all the way from the Police Commission.

Re: The prosecution of the Los Angeles police officers in the Rodney King Case.

<u>None</u> of the persons claiming to be municipal and superior court judges were lawfully elected to the position of judge.

None of the judicial procedures involved were conducted by lawfully elected judges. [Exhibit "A"]

The Los Angeles County Clerk is guilty of "high-grade" felonies for certifying and filing documents purporting that judicial <u>candidates</u> and <u>appointees</u> have been elected to office while knowing that they had <u>never</u> been on a ballot and had not received even <u>one</u> vote which is <u>necessary</u> and <u>required</u> to be elected as a judge.

new judge 2 pages

state officials 3 pages exh c

The Los Angeles County Clerk not only involved himself in criminal violations but can be sued as an <u>individual</u> in federal court for violations of civil rights laws (denying the people the right to vote for the candidate of their choice). In a Pennsylvania case of November 1991, the U.S. Supreme Court, in an 8-0 decision, ruled that state and county officials can be sued and forced to pay out of their <u>own pockets</u> for violations while acting under color of law. [Exhibit "B"]

Any money raised at the Police Academy dinner for the benefit of Powell should <u>not</u> be used to pay Powell's alleged legal bills. The money should be used to obtain Powell a new and trusted lawyer to file for <u>reinstatement</u> to his job and pension for the civil rights violations committed against him.

The entire trial at Simi Valley and prior judicial proceedings were a farce—a terrible, evil set-up wherein there was <u>no</u> legal judge presiding. <u>No</u> judicial jurisdiction or authority for any of the proceedings and <u>no</u> authority to select and activate a jury. It was a total <u>non-trial</u>, wholly void and ineffective.

The alleged federal trial and prosecution of Officer Powell and Sgt. Koon in Los Angeles <u>must</u> be dismissed. The most inflammable testimony presented and used to convict Sgt. Koon and Officer Powell in the federal trial was questionable self-serving statements made by Officer Ted Briseno in the Simi Valley Superior Court <u>non-trial</u>.

Recordings of Briseno's statements made in the superior court <u>non-trial</u> were played in federal court. These inadmissible recordings were the subject of a defense motion to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeal to reject the recordings. But Judge Harry Pregerson ruled that the recordings were admissible and Koon and Powell were convicted. Harry Pregerson's ruling and the ensuing result of a guilty verdict revealed Pregerson's and Stanley Mosk's involvement in a terrible, deep conspiracy against America which they have conducted for 50 years.

In 1946 and 1947 I was a member of the L.A.P.D. I was working Metropolitan Division (Narcotics and

Vice in Old Chinatown) and I observed Pregerson, Mickey Cohen, Abe Phillips, Nathan Turkebtahn and Sidney Bocarsky in clandestine meetings with international drug smugglers and dealers Abraham Davidian and Benny Wong. Shortly afterward this investigation led to the arrest of Abraham Davidian in possession of a large amount of narcotics. Davidian talked; he was going to testify against Pregerson, Chen and many more people—lawyers and judges including Stanley Mosk, presently a state supreme court justice. Federal narcotics agents took Davidian from L.A.P.D. jurisdiction and hid him out under their protection in a secret location in Fresno where strangely, while sleeping, Davidian was shot in the head and killed. Consequently Pregerson, Cohen, Mosk and many others who are still in high office escaped a prosecution that would have put them in prison for years and exposed their giant crime organization.

From that point on because of their extreme hatred for me, I have been harassed and tortured by Federal Judge Pregerson, Stanley Mosk and the vicious ADL. The constant harassment by Pregerson and Mosk through their secret contacts in the L.A.P.D. forced me to resign and I joined the Ventura City Police Department where, as a Det. Sgt., I discovered that Abe Phillips and Mickey Cohen were expanding their gangster operations northward into Ventura County. They were secretly associated with a lawyer, Ben Nordman of the Levy family who owned the Bank of A. Levy. Nordman was also a U.S. Commissioner and engaged in corrupt court operations involving bailbonds with Abe Phillips and his bonding scams. Ben Nordman's law partner was Jerome Berensonl, the presiding judge of Ventura Superior Court. I became the victim again of a severe conspiracy of job harassment when I, along with Det. Sgt. Ed Patton of the Oxnard City Police Department, exposed their involvement in narcotics and other gangster operations. In 1958 I returned to Los Angeles County and joined the L.A. District Attorney Bureau of Investigation. At that time I was working undercover and my pension fund money was transferred from Ventura to Los Angeles and, at the orders of Dist. Attorney William McKesson, it was placed in the hands of investigator Jack Livingston. Livingston was the agent officially designated by Dist. Attorney William McKesson to take care of my pension fund. I talked with Livingston numerous times about the condition of my pension fund and why it didn't reflect on my pay records and he repeatedly assured me that everything was taken care of and that they were just doing it that way so my status of working undercover could not be exposed through the office records.

At one time I discussed this matter personally with Dist. Attorney William McKesson at which time he assured me that everything was taken care of and there was no need to be concerned; Livingston was present at the time. Then Jack Livingston was mysteriously killed and I could learn nothing more about my pension fund status.

My partner for seven years, Frank Hronek, and I had informants and were investigating an operation of Mickey Cohen and Freddie O'Tash. They were bugging motel rooms and making tape recordings of Lana Turner and Marilyn Monroe having sex with Mickey Cohen's Italian "lover-boys" "Johnny Stompanato, Georgie Piscitelli, Sammy Lo Cigno, Joe Di Carlo who were operated by their Jew coordinator Roger Leonard. Roger's brother was Hollywood producer Herbert Leonard, who was one of Mickey Cohen's leads into Hollywood.

This bugging operation of Cohen's and O'Tash's coincided with our investigation into Cohen's and Menachem Begin's operations. We were recording and photographing their meetings at the Beverly Wilshire Hotel.

Our operator, Hank Jacobs was Jewish and understood them when Begin and Cohen talked in Yiddish. Our recordings were translated into English and Frank and I played them for D.A. William McKesson in his office. Only the three of us were present. Later we played the film of Cohen and Begin when they went to Melvin Belli's house and met with Caspar Weinberger. Later when we met with McKesson we played tapes of Cohen and Begin how they were going to "duke" Marilyn Monroe into JFK and get sex tapes on them so as to compromise JFK. When McKesson learned how Frank and I were digging into corruption of the Democratic Party and how it connected to Israel he flew into a rage screaming that he would kill us if we did any more investigating into JFK and the Democratic Party. He demanded the tapes, which we gave him, but we had made copies for our own safety. It was shortly after this that Jack Livingston mysteriously died.

Since 1958 when I was a Det. Sgt. with the Ventura Police Department I had been investigating information that the Oxnard National Guard Armory was going to be burglarized and large amounts of heavy caliber weapons and explosives were to be stolen. They supposedly were going to be taken to Israel. These crimes involved Commissioner Ben Nordman and Judge Jerome Berenson and lawyer William P. Clark, who worked for them and was a Democrat at the time. Clark later became a Republican when they duked him into Ronald Reagan. They also had a plan formulated by Begin and Cohen that they called "Race Riot and Revolution". Clark was a top operator of the plan to foment race hatred and riots between White and Black, and the outline and inspiration came from Stanley Scheinbaum and Ira Glasser whose headquarters were in Santa Barbara.

Clark was so certain of the coming riots that he kept one of the stolen Oxnard Armory 50 cal. machine guns and mounted it in his house. At that time he made statements that "when the revolution comes I'll kill every Mexican and nigger that comes in range."

Patton and I gave information to the FBI and they arrested and convicted two men. Mickey Cohen, Commissioner Ben Nordman and Judge Berenson were closely connected to these two men, who were supplied by Abe Phillips. We also advised the FBI that Mickey Cohen and Begin had hidden the weapons at a Jew retreat, Camp Ramah in the Ojai Mountains, California. The FBI never recovered the weapons or came out with the involvement of the ADL which we had told them of. Later an article appeared in the Oxnard paper that the FBI believed the weapons had been delivered to Mexican insurgents who were planning a revolution in Mexico. But this was a lie; the weapons were kept in Cohen's possession and later were transferred to Rabbi Meir Kahane when he formed the JDL and Kach Party.

When Kahane was killed, Irving Rubin took possession of the weapons. Rubin met with David Koresh in Hollywood and made a deal with Koresh to conceal the weapons and explosives at the compound in Waco.

In 1963 Frank and I had been investigating serious criminal child pornography, molestations and slavery of children by wealthy people. We came upon knowledge and evidence that certain officials in the Los Angeles District Attorney's Office were involved in flying young children, 10 to 14-year-old boys and girls from South America to Los Angeles and selling them to wealthy people in Beverly Hills.

Frank and I were called to William McKesson's office, where in a rage he threatened us that this time we were as good as dead—that he was going to have us killed if we didn't destroy every bit of evidence that

we had.

We were called to another meeting in Asst. D.A. Manly Bowler's office. Capt. Joseph McClure was there and certain details of Frank's and my evidence were discussed.

I was forced to resign and Frank Hronek was ordered to other duties and direly threatened if he did not keep his mouth shut.

I went to the L.A. District Attorney's Payment and Pension Fund Office and requested my records. I was told that my records were kept in William McKesson's office, but I could never get them from him. A short time later I was appointed to the civil service position of Chief Investigator for the Ventura County Public Defender Office. In 1966 I made numerous efforts to have the Los Angeles District Attorney's Office transfer my employment and pension fund records to Ventura County, which they never did. My Ventura City Police Department pension fund was commenced in January 1955, Los Angeles District Attorney's Office in July 1958, and Ventura County Public Defender Office in 1966 to 1970.

The Public Defender of Ventura County, Richard E. Erwin was a lawyer from Los Angeles with deep ties to William McKesson and Captain Joseph McClure and the Democratic Party.

Erwin (actually Richard Fish) came from another state to Los Angeles in the late '30s.

Mysteriously Fish assumed the alias Richard E. Erwin and, with false scholastic records, enrolled at Southwestern Law School.

Shortly before I was forced from the Los Angeles District Attorney's Office, Hronek and I were investigating the murder of our informant, Mary Mercadante, a close friend of Marilyn Monroe. A prostitute, Mary was a girlfriend of Georgie Piscitelli, one of Mickey Cohen's Italian "lover-boys". Then Mary became a girlfriend of lawyer Harry Weiss, who got Mary a job at Abe Phillips' bail bond office. Abe Phillips viciously sexually assaulted Mary in his office, and criminal charges were filed against Phillips. We had tape recorded death threats made by Cohen to Mary that if she didn't drop her charges against Abe that they would kill her, which they did. The D.A. prosecuted Phillips but without Mary's testimony he was acquitted. Shortly after this, Marilyn Monroe was killed, and soon afterward JFK was assassinated.

Mickey Cohen and Abe Phillips swore that they would destroy me and my job for my interfering with their gangster operations. Cohen, Capt. Joseph McClure and Richard E. Erwin, etc. conspired with Judge Jerome Berenson and Commissioner Ben Nordman to file false charges against me and I was discharged from my position as Chief Investigator for the Public Defender Office and denied my pension fund which Capt. Joseph McClure claimed he could find no record of in the L.A. County records.

From 1970 until the present I have suffered untold vicious harassment and attempts against my life and have been denied the right to a hearing in superior court and the federal court by Jerome Berenson, Stanley Mosk and Harry Pregerson and numerous other persons claiming to be judges. This is set out in the lawsuit attached to this letter.

At this time I <u>Request</u> and/or <u>Demand</u> that the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors review the circumstances and the facts of the death threats by McKesson and my job termination with the Los

Angeles District Attorney Office and the fact that I should have kept my job (as Frank Hronek did) until he and I would have retired. My back pay and pension should be calculated the same as Hronek's during that period.

For the last twenty years and more, there have been hundreds and hundreds of lawyers who have falsely operated as judges with <u>no</u> jurisdiction or authority to do so in L.A. County.

Hundreds of these phony judges received money from the county under false pretenses and fraud and many of them have retired and are still receiving pensions illegally. These monies amount to at least a trillion dollars that have been stolen from the people and they must be recovered. The intricacies of the Judges' Pension Fund are not understood by the taxpayers but the county supervisors are well versed in it—where the money comes from and who administers it.

The fantastic amount of money that can be recovered from these gangsters can cure the financial problems of the L.A. County government for years to come.

These gangsters will argue and threaten that such a disclosure of their phony judicial crimes will open the jail-house doors for thousands of criminals, but this is not so. It at most would allow them new trials, and lawyers would have a whole new bonanza of litigation and fees for their defense. For the people it would be a Godsend—the greatest chance ever presented to appoint and elect new, honest judges. America could return to a constitutional judicial system. The gangster lawyers could be cleansed like never before dreamed.

## alan 4 pages wean ch15 exh c

#### exh d

Politicians from L.A. to Washington, D.C. are grossly underestimating the temperament of the people and their terrible frustration and anger at judicial and political corruption and the fact that they cannot be heard.

I assure you it is a volatile situation that can burst at the slightest spontaneous provocation. Once it starts it could so damage our government framework that we could never get back to where we were.

Scum like Stanley Mosk, Harry Pregerson and Stanley Scheinbaum have been in absolute power over 50 years. The perversion and damage they have done to our country, our judicial system and the people cannot even be described to its fullest horror.

One of the surest signs that our government still exists with honor would be for our representatives to come forth in an unstoppable movement to put an end to the corrupt judicial conspiracy.

I had a lawyer in Los Angeles who was representing me, a Black lawyer. He was so viciously threatened [to cause him] to sabotage my case that he hid and concealed my documents in a closet in his office and did not file them. It was in this same case that Federal Judge Harry Pregerson ordered and conspired with

U.S. Supreme Court clerks to sabotage a Writ of Certiorari and prevent the justices from hearing it. A White female lawyer from L.A. who was representing me was threatened and terrorized so severely that she couldn't function. Another lawyer who was representing me, Dean Pic'l was paid off and he sabotaged my hearing. He was later convicted of stealing from and sabotaging his clients and was sent to prison.

I have physical evidence, intelligence reports, tapes, audio and video and documents, etc., etc., that Hronek and I obtained that will expose the entire corrupt judicial organization that Harry Pregerson and Stanley Mosk have built and operated over the last 50 years.

I wrote a book, printed in 1987, a report of more than 700 pages with index and took it and evidence to Washington, D.C. to Senator Joseph Biden, the chairman of the U.S. Senate Committee on the Judiciary. Biden covered it up. In the report written over 15 years ago I exposed the fanatical, insane rabbis of the Bar Ilan University where they taught Jew law that sanctioned assassination of anyone that they designated to be their enemy—and how this was connected to Harry Pregerson, Mickey Cohen and Menachem Begin, who was operating in America at the time. And how Rabbi Meir Kahane created the JDL and the Kach Party and how the National Guard weapons were transferred from Cohen to Kahane and then to Irving Rubin, an insane fanatical Jew assassin.

Chief Daryl Gates has a copy of the audio-video tape of Alfred Bloomingdale and Vickie Morgan having sadomasochistic sex, with government officials and Israeli spies involved. Gates will play it for you. He has played it for others. You will be amazed and disgusted when you see the danger these treasonous people put our country in. Vickie Morgan was murdered and her boyfriend framed. This was done by judges who weren't judges.

I gave Johnny Cochran information regarding who killed Nicole Simpson and Ron Goldman. Goldman was a "lover-boy", along with Kato Kaelin, working for the ADL the same as Mickey Cohen's "lover-boys" "operated. Instead of exposing the persons actually responsible for the murders, Cochran proceeded to use the information to frame the Los Angeles Police Department. Cochran's purpose in doing this was that he considered the people who committed the crimes as being far more powerful politically than were the police and that they could destroy his future as a lawyer.

The "lover-boys" "job is to get next to Hollywood women, compromise them and, as spies, pick their brains as to their husbands and families' political and business activity. They turn in their secret reports to their ADL handlers and are paid.

It was a setup because the ADL believed that O.J. Simpson and other influential Hollywood Blacks were connecting with Farrakhan in a Black power base and the ADL would lose control of the solid-Black Democratic vote that they have so long controlled.

The "lover-boys" spy reports of the espionage ring were being routed to Stanley Scheinbaum, the head of the Police Commission and a top ADL agent under Harry Pregerson.

Get the Vicki Morgan-Marvin Pancoast file; study who is involved, including detectives. Get the Ele, Esther Ruven murder file. Defendants Jehuda Avital and Joseph Zakaria were convicted. Observe how

Jew assassins handle knives in their merciless cutting and blood-letting of their victims—the same MO as Nicole Simpson and Ron Goldman.

Mayor Thomas Bradley was a paid agent of the ADL and his Jew handler was Rabbi Marvin Hier when they extorted millions of dollars from the Coors Brewery. Rabbi Meir Kahane, Irving Rubin and the University of Bar Ilan in Tel Aviv where they teach the Jew law of Halacha, that section of the Jew law that gives Jews the right to legally kill anyone that they have designated as their enemy. The Mishna is the 'first writing of the Jewish oral law' that rules all phases of a Jew's life. The Mishna, the Jew law, is taught to all Jews in their synagogues in America and Jew lawyers and judges constantly override and overrule American constitutional law in the courts in their conspiracy to destroy American law.

L.A. City Councilmen Marvin Braude, Joel Wachs and Zev Yaroslavsky were involved in a drug smuggling operation with Jerry Plotkin. When Plotkin returned to L.A. from Iran, the councilmen got Mayor Bradley to welcome Plotkin as a hero. In a bizarre ritual he was driven to City Hall in a gold limousine with a big yellow ribbon.

In 1981, California Governor George Deukmejian issued an Organized Crime Report in which he stated, "There is an Israeli Crime Organization, the Jews are competitors of the Mafia, they are involved in drug smuggling and specialize in narcotics dealing." The ADL-controlled judiciary quelled and quashed the court actions against Jerry Plotkin's drug scam and covered it up.

Top ADL operators Stanley Scheinbaum and Ira Glasser, from their positions as L.A.P.D. Commissioners, had been conducting a clandestine stalking of Nicole and O.J.Simpson for more than two years prior to the murders.

There are cancelled checks issued by secret bank accounts to pay the "lover-boys' " and treasonous police officials, who as paid agents of the ADL conduct sabotage operations against the L.A.P.D.

These terrible depredations by such evil people as Harry Pregerson, Stanley Mosk and Stanley Scheinbaum have been going on for over 50 years. America and its honest, loyal citizens cannot stand any more of it. It is high time that a few honest, brave American officials step forth and expose and destroy this evil menace; the cards must fall where they may, no matter whose face appears on the card.

Harry Pregerson, Stanley Mosk, Stanley Scheinbaum, Ira Glasser, Diane Feinstein, Richard Blum and Bobby Boxer, etc., etc., are all assassins connected to Irving Rubin and Meir Kahane and Menachem Begin's Kach Party. They are the American connection to the University of Bar Ilan in Tel Aviv, whose rabbis teach the Jew law of Halacha. This is the Jew law that allows a Jew to point at someone and designate him as an enemy so he can legally kill him.

Governor Pete Wilson has been taking money from the ADL and involved himself in the Marcia Clark and Fred Goldman scam to create chaos within the Los Angeles District Attorney's Office and the judicial system.

For the Republican Party to adopt Pete Wilson's strategy, evolved by the ADL to capture California's vote, will become a total disaster when it is revealed who the murderers really are. The Republican Party

would be far more responsible to stand strongly behind civil law enforcement and its loyal officers who take their duties to protect the people seriously.

The Rabin assassination has split Jews into two distinct, visible factions. Eighty-five percent or more of the Jewish people support peace with the Arabs and the return of their lands in Israel. This huge majority of Jews also demands the destruction of the ADL and JDL and its murderous Halacha assassins both in America and Israel.

Everybody has had enough of years of this small group of terroristic killers and their insanity.

There is no way possible that Pete Wilson can lead the Republicans to an election victory in California by bringing the ADL and JDL and their crazies into the party.

Further, the Black people have also become aware of the ADL and who has been behind their misery and they will vote in the coming national election accordingly.

In less than a month it will be 50 years since I joined the L.A.P.D. and went to the Police Academy. I was a Gunner's Mate 2/c and had only been discharged from the Navy a few weeks before. I felt like I was still at home; the L.A.P.D. inspired great pride. Like the U.S. Navy, the L.A.P.D. had class. It's a terrible sight to watch the ADL gangsters destroy the <u>civil law enforcement</u> of not only the L.A.P.D. but of the entire country.

The Jews have now split into two distinct, visible factions: one, the Jews who are attempting to form and maintain a good government in Israel and who want peace with the Arabs. These people of the Israeli government realize they can no longer afford to hide the fact that an organization of Jew assassins exists and travels back and forth between Israel and the United States and have infiltrated both the U.S. and Israeli governments.

The second faction of Jews are members and agents of the ADL Halacha Rabbis. Dedicated assassins who believe fanatically that the Jew law allows them to legally kill anyone they believe to be their enemy.

In 1974, Alan G. Sieroty was a California Assemblyman from Los Angeles and a dedicated ADL agent. As a major move in Harry Pregerson's scheme to take over the California judicial system, Sieroty set up an amendment designated as ACA 99. Subject: "De-masculinizes our state constitution." [Exhibit 'C']

State Constitutional Amendment, ACA 99, of May 8, 1974, per the Summary, amended the change of specified words pertaining to the substitution of 'non-sex'-linked references in places where 'masculine' references are made. [Exhibit 'D']

Now refer to Exhibit 'D'. Lines are drawn from the specific words to be changed to the side of the page where the exact words that are to be inserted have been typed.

Now refer to Section 16, sub-section (b) of Article VI. The following words have been secretly, conspiratorially and treasonously inserted, "The Legislature may provide that an unopposed incumbent's name not appear on the ballot." This horrendous crime designed by the ADL gangsters to seize control of the

judiciary was further capped by their passing Election Code sections based on the phony 'one-liner'.

All of the acts were feloniously committed without <u>legislative jurisdiction</u>. They are totally void. All persons wearing black robes who have never been on a ballot and received at least one vote are <u>'non-judges'</u>. They must be removed immediately and Governor Pete Wilson, who is a major conspirator of this fantastic, insane conspiracy, must be prohibited from making any further judicial appointments.

On the California State records of the 'Assembly Final History' of <u>ACA No. 99</u> are the names of assemblymen. [Exhibit 'E'] Sieroty, the ADA agent responsible for the criminal conspiracy is the first name; Wilson is third from the last.

Pete Wilson, as a United States Senator in 1987, was notified of this crime and many other judicial crimes, including murder, at his office in Washington, D.C. At that time he conspired with other senators to cover it up. Wilson has had knowledge of this crime and all the rest of the judicial conspiracy being committed in California since he was notified and advised nearly ten years ago, yet he continues to bring the ADL directly into the Republican Party.

It is not known or believed at this time that any of the other persons named on the document are knowledgeable of the criminal 'one-liner' which was inserted in sub-section (b) of Section 16 of Article VI of the *California State Constitution*, with the exception of Assemblyman Ken MacDonald. He was known to be a major conspirator from the beginning with Alan Sieroty, Harry Pregerson and Judge Jerome Berenson in Ventura.

These documents and others too numerous to itemize at this time were obtained by myself from the official records of the California Secretary of State, March Fong Eu. This was shortly before Fong Eu destroyed a major portion of the state's files. Fong Eu was involved in Asian drug smuggling with her husband and was nearly killed when her throat was slit. (You should get the police file.)

This murder attempt was committed by a man who was primed by the ADL but with the cover of just a common burglar. Fong Eu was appointed as an ambassador to Micronesia where her husband is deeply involved in drug smuggling but they are now controlled by the ADL Halacha Rabbis. The ADL has controlled the drug trade from Asia to the U.S. with an iron hand since before the early 1970s. Harry Pregerson's son Dean and his wife, both lawyers, had an office very close to Judge Jerome Berenson's headquarters in the old Ventura Courthouse. They were secretly sent to the South Pacific to coordinate and control the importation of drugs. At the same time they set up all the ground work for giant housing and commercial developments in Guam and the Pacific Islands. Billions of dollars of government money were involved in these transactions through banks and S&Ls in Beverly Hills and Oxnard, California, where at the same time they mixed in billions of dollars of drug money to be laundered. These criminal operations in the Pacific were overseen by Harry Pregerson's henchman Federal Judge Irving Hill, who made numerous trips to the Pacific to check on operations and bring back secret documents and money skimmed from the operations.

In the late 50s and early 60s Menachem Begin and Mickey Cohen were hitting up on the rich Jews of Hollywood and Beverly Hills for donations to Israel for arms and their military. These wealthy Jews had generated into an enormous group who had invested money in Israeli government land that Israel had taken from the Arabs. With ADL pressure Israeli courts ruled that Jews as individuals could buy these

stolen Arab lands. Wealthy Jews in Beverly Hills then invested billions if not trillions of dollars in commercial and residential developments. Huge areas covered with shopping malls, condominiums, apartment houses and hotels. With the Israel and Arab peace and the return of all these lands to the Arabs, the wealthy Jews in America who have invested trillions of dollars will lose their money. This group of wealthy Jews are ADL Halachas, fanatic Jews who do not intend to lose their money and investments. The most prominent leader of this group is Rabbi Marvin Hier, a dangerous, fanatical mad-man. If the ADL and JDL is not destroyed, there will be political assassinations and murders throughout the country.

In the mid-1950s George Bush was well known in the oil field industry of Ventura County. It was known as Ventura Avenue, an area of great oil activity and drilling equipment companies. One of the most popular water-holes for the big dealers in the oil industry was the Sportsman Bar and Grill on California Street, just a block below the old Ventura Courthouse. Bush became associated with William P. Clark, a wealthy oilfield operator and lawyer in Judge Berenson and U.S. Commissioner Nordman's law office. At the same time Bush became associated with Robert Lagomarsino whose father Emilio (Red) Lagomarsino owned the Ventura Bank of Italy and the Ventura

exh e wean ch15

exh f

Realty Company, which owned most of the town of Ventura and vast oil field investments, including most of the oil leases in the Los Padres National Forest. It was in these days of the fifties that George Bush, William P. Clark and Robert Lagomarsino became ADL agents for Berenson and Nordman. Robert Lagomarsino became a California State Senator, then a U.S. Congressman. William P. Clark and Robert Lagomarsino and George Bush were duked into Ronald Reagan and Clark became National Security Director and Secretary of Interior and George Bush became Reagan's Vice President.

The drugs from Asia were quietly shipped through Port Hueneme, Point Mugo Navy Base and Vandenberg Air Force Base, all within the perimeter of the huge ranches of the William P. Clark family, the Lagomarsino family and Reagan's ranch.

Right in the middle of this in Santa Barbara County was the ADL headquarters of Stanley Scheinbaum, Ira Glasser and their A.C.L.U. cover which coordinated the entire setup.

Mena, Arkansas was actually a minor point of drug distribution that was deliberately built up as a diversion to hide the extraordinarily huge shipments of drugs coming quietly through the government coastal ports that were completely covered and protected by Caspar Weinberger, the Secretary of Defense. From the California bases the drugs were easily shipped and routed across the nation.

An examination of the Mena, Arkansas operation easily discloses that, as a major distribution point of huge secret shipments of drugs, it is not a logistic possibility. The Columbian sources could in no way compete with the extreme volume of drugs coming from Asia, but it was a successful diversion to conceal the Asian

operation.

The Marcia Clark and Fred Goldman scam to change the jury system is an extremely dangerous operation with which Pete Wilson is involving himself and the Republican Party. George Deukmejian and all the others who were hoodwinked by the ADL's Alan Sieroty and Pete Wilson in the *California Constitution* scam have a responsibility to expose this conspiracy that could eventually end up as in Israel, with the people not being entitled to a jury at all, just an ADL <u>non-judge</u>. And what chance would anybody have with one of them?

One enormous load has been lifted from the backs of America's politicians and also every Christian in the United States. No longer is the threat of being called 'anti-Semitic' a thing to die of fright from, because the Jews have now visibly and officially split into two factions: one involved in maintaining the government of Israel and peace with the Arabs ,and the other a bunch of ADL fanatic Halacha Rabbis and their desperate followers who are poised to assassinate and kill anyone who tries to give the Arabs' land back to them, which would strip the ADL of their billions of dollars of investments. How can the ADL scream "anti-Semitic" at you for being on the side of the Israeli government Jews?

At the same time the citizens and taxpayers of Los Angeles County and California can recover up to two trillion dollars from the false <u>non-judges</u> and their pension fund. The people are not responsible in any way for this insane judicial debacle and should not suffer one iota because of it. The documents clearly reveal the guilty parties.

The fanatical Jews in America have infiltrated our government and <u>must</u> be quickly removed. I am a White Christian and the disgusting so-called White "Christians" who have secretly taken pay and promotions from the ADL and committed foul acts against America and its people must be treated even more severely. For instance, William Webster, former federal judge, who as Director of the FBI turned the entire FBI organization against America when he took the ADL pay. Richard Thornburgh, who brags constantly on Larry King's ADL program about how he prosecuted L.A.P.D. officers. Buck Revell, ex-FBI agent who has conspired for years with Morris Dees to frame and set up loyal Americans for the ADL.

The questions must be asked and an answer received from the FBI, the Department of Justice and Robert Rubin, the Secretary of the Treasury and in charge of the ATF. Why? Why has an insane ADL fanatic like Irving Rubin and his wife been allowed to create assassination, murder, mayhem and havoc in America and to maintain an armory of stolen National Guard weapons which purpose is the overthrow of America and the takeover of the Israeli government. The faction of Jews desiring peace in Israel outnumbers the ADL fanatics by ten to one, as voters.

ADL assassins prowl our nation without fear of the FBI and commit fearsome political murders. They have reached their most desperate period since the assassination of Rabin, and the Jews have divided into two factions.

Many more assassinations and murders are about to be committed if the ADL and its top leaders, such as Harry Pregerson and Stanley Scheinbaum and the Deputy Asst. Attorney General Mark M. Richard, are not exposed and removed from the power and influence of office in our government. Mark M. Richard is head of National Security Investigations and is the top ADL agent covering up the Halacha crimes. Mark

M. Richard gives Janet Reno her orders. He made several personal visits to Waco and was in charge of the Weaver murders in Idaho.

Governor George Deukmejian was correct in his Intelligence Report years ago when he notified the people that the Jews were in competion with the Mafia in drug dealing and crime. But he did not follow it up. Now it is his duty to expose the judicial corruption and its takeover by the ADL.

Certain people in the District Attorney's Office have joined in a political conspiracy to remove Gil Garcetti and return Ira Reiner to control of the D.A. office in Los Angeles. Reiner is a powerful ADL leader and represents the ADL fanatics in Beverly Hills and Hollywood who have invested enormous sums in the development of Arab lands and they have no intention of losing their money or their evil scheme of a Jewish Greater Israel. Their original plot for Greater Israel was to steal all of Lebanon for massive commercial and residential development. This is what got over three-hundred of our American military personnel bombed and killed in Lebanon. The reason President Clinton is fighting the budget is because Treasury Secretary Robert Rubin is demanding an increase of a trillion dollars in the National Debt which will be used to bail out the ADL Jews' investments in Israel the same as they were bailed out by Clinton in Mexico.

At this time of signing, Johnny Cochran has not filed an answer to my lawsuit No. 229531 which I filed in Kern County Superior Court on September 19, 1995 and served on Cochran on September 21, 1995. Mr. Antonovich, I can assure you that the people have become highly aware of what is happening to them because of the depredations put upon them by a corrupt and failing judicial system and they are gearing up for it as they see their civil law enforcement protection being destroyed, leaving nothing but themselves to protect their families and property. Their temperament and feelings of America going down the drain have been stretched to the breaking point. The evil and madness that the ADL and JDL have put on them must be stopped. At this time it is the responsibility and duty of the people's representatives to prevent a looming spontaneous incident and chaos that can destroy our country. It is not going to go away and will only get worse until action is taken.

The Jews have divided to the point that they are killing each other. Even Yaroslavsky will have to reveal which side he is going to be on.

The L.A. County Board of Supervisors run the county—<u>NOT</u> the judges. Through your official contacts with the County Boards of Supervisors of every county in California they should be informed of these facts and their duties to destroy judicial corruption—particularly Orange County, who would regain enough funds to dissolve their financial problems and return to governmental sanity.

Sincerely,

/s/ Gary L. Wean P.O. Box 1857 Cave Junction, OR 97523

exh. g wean 3 pages

#### CHAPTER 12

#### THE NEWS DESK by Phyllis Linn 2/16/96

#### PEACEKEEPERS IN BOSNIA SUFFER RASHES, POST-TRAUMATIC STRESS

From the January 26 issue of *THE PALM BEACH POST*, [quoting:]

Dozens of U.S. Army soldiers involved in the Bosnia operation have contracted full-body rashes and low-grade fevers after visiting a military storage area in Belgium where investigators are now focusing their hunt for the source of the mysterious illness. All 70 of the soldiers, afflicted with the disease over the past month have recovered within several days of becoming sick, according to Army officials who say the outbreaks have not affected the overall pace of the deployment of the U.S. forces to Bosnia. But concern that the viral infection could spread has prompted senior Army officers in Europe to order an intensive search for the germ's origin.

And from the January 22 issue of *THE TORONTO STAR*, [quoting:]

About one in six Canadian peacekeepers return from the former Yugoslavia with serious psychological problems, a senior military psychiatrist says. "You could call it peacekeeper syndrome," Lt. Cmdr. Greg Passey said. An estimated 15 percent suffer from post-traumatic stress disorder and about 13 from depression. About 40 percent of those with post-traumatic stress are clinically depressed.

"What they've been exposed to is traumatic," he said. "A buddy steps on a landmine, they see kids blown up, they're pulled out at gunpoint and told they'll be shot in the head by the time they cross the street." Their symptoms include withdrawing from people, difficulty sleeping, heavy drinking, conflict at home and on the job and an inability to experience emotions. 'And this doesn't begin to address the casualties as far as the families," he said, adding that some cases lead to abuse.

#### **BOSNIA REALITIES**

"Peacekeeping" for the U.N. will likely be the origin of something we later call "Bosnia Syndrome. Here are highlights from an article by Trisha Katson that appeared in the February 5 issue of *THE SPOT-LIGHT*, [quoting:]

Clinton Administration policy makes Bosnia an experimental laboratory for the nation-building by the global elites in the New World Order, according to Rep. Duncan Hunter (R. Calif.). Under the so-called Dayton Accord, there will be no sovereignty or independence for Bosnia. Bosnia's constitution, police, central bank, refugees and "human rights" will be laced in the hands of foreign officials for at least the rest of the century.

"Where once its existence was threatened by advancing Serbian troops, it has now been rendered incompetent by a (bewildering) constitutional structure," said Hunter. "The remnants are then absorbed by international organizations and foreign bureaucrats. The poor suffering Bosnians faced a more honorable fate in open combat."

The foreign authorities are not constrained by any constitutional checks and balances despite all the rhetoric about upcoming "free elections".

Bosnia's new constitution is "inspired by the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the International Covenants on Civil and Political Rights and on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, and the Declaration on the Rights of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic, Religious and Linguistic Minorities, as well as other [*United Nations*] human rights instruments." At the end of the constitution is attached a list of 15 other human rights instruments including the 1979 Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination Against Women, the 1989 Convention of the Rights of the Child and the 1990 International Convention on the Protection of All Migrant Workers and Members of their Families. [*Were we so naive as to think that the output from all those UN conventions would not be USED?*]

National sovereignty is surrendered under Article II which declares "The rights and freedoms set forth in the European Convention for the Protection of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms and its Protocols shall apply directly in Bosnia and Herzegovina. These shall have priority over all other law."

Bosnia's highest court, the Constitutional Court, will be dominated by foreign judges. The three judges who will hold the balance of power cannot be citizens of Bosnia.

Bosnia's central bank, for the first six years, "may not extend credit by creating money"—a prohibition consistent with the desires of the International Monetary Fund (IMF). [The UN peacekeepers are stooges for the international bankers—the New World Order Elitists. That's about it, isn't it?]

#### **EXPANDING COSMOS**

From the January 20 issue of the *MODESTO BEE*, [quoting:]

On Monday, a team of astronomers announced that, using the Hubble Space telescope [a suspicious beginning since, according to Hatonn, the Hubble was never launched into space], they had found 1,500 to 2,000 new galaxies in a slice of the heavens only one-25th of a degree wide. They estimate the discovery multiplies by fivefold the number of galaxies in the universe to some 50 billion. They have discovered that the universe contains perhaps 100 billion billion more stars than previously estimated. [Amazingly, there are many, many people who still insist there is no life outside of our own planet Earth. Then there are the rest of us who are still trying to find intelligent life on Earth!]

JUDGE HAROLD H. GREENE: TELECOM CZAR FRETS OVER NEW INDUSTRY RULES

In addition to his role as unofficial telecom czar, Harold Greene presided in the federal court in which Eustace Mullins filed his one-hundred-million-dollar law suit against the ADL—and inappropriately dismissed his case with prejudice, meaning it could never be refiled. The bracketed comments are from Eustace's article which appeared in the September 26, 1995 issue of *CONTACT* (pg. 23). Here's the article which appeared in the February 12 issue of *THE WALL STREET JOURNAL*, [quoting:]

On the day President Clinton signed the historic telecommunications bill last week, the ceremony at the Library of Congress was packed with politicians and everyone who was anyone in the telecom industry. U.S. District Court Judge Harold H. Greene wasn't invited. Technically, Judge Greene oversaw the 1984 consent decree governing the breakup of the old American Telephone & Telegraph Co. In practice, he became this country's telecom czar, profoundly affecting the shape and direction of an entire industry. The seven newly created Baby Bells had to go before Judge Greene, hats in hand, for his permission on many matters. And in more than 160 major rulings and hundreds of minor decisions, he dictated what they could—and couldn't—do.

The new act nullifies the consent decree, prompting some industry wags to call it the Judge Greene Retirement Act. Judge Greene says in an interview that he worries abut whether the new law is tough enough to stop phone giants from essentially re-erecting the monopoly that he spent a career helping to tear apart.

Harold H. Greene was born Heinz Grunhaus into a Jewish family in 1923 in Frankfurt. He fled [or, like Max Warburg, was allowed to leave] the Nazis at age 20 to emigrate to the U.S., where he changed his name. He served in the U.S. Army [in intelligence in Germany with Henry Kissinger] until 1947 and settled in Washington, D.C., attending law school at night and working days as a translator and watchmaker. [He was recruited into the Sonnefelt-Kissinger Axis, a cabal of German Jews who soon infiltrated the federal government on behalf of the Rockefellers and their German Partners, the notorious I.G. Farben chemical monopoly. In Washington, they replaced the Harold Ware cell, an espionage group run by Felix Frankfurter, Supreme Court Justice, which had to go underground because of the exposure of Alger Hiss.] He later joined the Justice Department and worked on the Civil Rights Act of 1964. President Carter appointed him to the federal bench in Washington, and on his first day on the job—May 19, 1978—he was handed the case of a lifetime: the antitrust lawsuit against AT&T.

The resulting consent decree spun off the seven Bells and banned them from equipment and long-distance service. In the later years, the Bells tried repeatedly to evade the bans. Judge Greene usually turned them down. Yet when an appeals court overturned him on several key issues, the Bells say he was slow to give them what they had won.

In his most celebrated defeat, Judge Greene in 1987 refused to let the Bells get into on-line services, arguing they might trample the fragile new market. In 1990, an appeals court overturned him. He later issued an order lamenting the risks and granting the Bells entry—but immediately suspended it until all appeals had been exhausted. The Bells filed an emergency appeal, and the appeals court granted them immediate relief, noting that Judge Greene's decisions to stay his own order was "an abuse" of his judicial discretion. [This is one of the more insignificant examples of the treasonous crimes committed by Greenhaus in his fifty years in this country.]

Some of these names may be familiar to *CONTACT* readers. From the January 23 issue of *THE RATON RANGE* (New Mexico), [quoting:]

A group of recently arrived Raton residents claims documents filed with the Colfax County clerk—seeking the creation of a new legal currency, the arrest of the 50 states' governors, and the establishment of a new court system—are simply the means to get the United States "back to the constitution." A group calling itself "Citizens of the Soil" has filed numerous documents in the clerk's office since Dec. 1. One of the people listed as a filer of the documents said the group plans to file more documents in support of its claims. Rex Weeks said he is part of a group of people "simply documenting evidence and presenting it to get the change we believe is necessary for the country."

The filed documents claim the American people "have remained under the yoke of commercial tyranny and warfare" imposed by the government. The federal government and "its corporate subdivisions"—states—have "escalated" their actions into "outright theft, unlawful imprisonment, mayhem and murder," the documents claim. The documents accuse the government of "excessive taxation" and "unlawful fines imposed through intentional misapplication of the laws."

The group has submitted its documents to the U.S. Supreme court, asking the country's highest judicial body to support, and thus order into effect, the statements and actions contained in the documents. Along with Weeks, those signing the documents are David and Shirley Newby, Ronald and Betty Jackson, Charles Miller, Alfonso Velazquez and Donnah Wintch.

Talk about the Citizens of the Soil has circulated among officials at the county courthouse, as well as some local residents ever since several members of the group tried to file documents in late November. During one of the visits to the courthouse, members of the group visited with District Judge Peggy Nelson. Nelson said they wanted training in "common law" procedure and inquired about the availability of court room space. The judge described the group's understanding of common law as "entirely different" from hers.

"I believe they have no basis in law or reality to pursue a parallel court system," Nelson said. According to Melvin Belli, a lawyer and author who founded the International Academy of Trial Lawyers, common law is defined as a system in which disputes were settled by a judge who based his decision on "what was customary in the community", and where there were no established customs, the decision was based on "common sense and fairness". Common law has its origin in early England, and was brought to America by the colonists during a time when few legal precedents were available on which to base court decisions," according to Belli's book, *Everybody's Guide to the Law*. Nelson pointed out interpretations of common law can very widely.

Weeks claimed Washington, D.C. was incorporated in 1871 "without consent or knowledge of the people", and the federal government's jurisdiction should reach only as far as the 10-mile radius of Washington's boundaries. "States should govern themselves" with limited federal authority.

Among the claims and demands made by the Citizens of the Soil are:

\* An order to nullify U.S. treaties and agreements, including NAFTA and GATT.

- \*A mandate that the mint of the U.S. Department of Treasury be used to print "only new lawful currency".
- \* Each of the 50 governors of the U.S. states be arrested and held "pending investigation into their acts". The filed documents accuse the governors of "working in collusion with foreign entities to subvert this nation and place its People into slavery."
- \* "Through collusion with the British Prime Minister, Winston Churchill (former President Franklin D.) Roosevelt maneuvered the Japanese government into a position of having to bomb Pearl Harbor" in 1941.
- \* The federal income tax "has become a prime source of commercial warfare being waged against the People of this nation."
- \* The United Nations is "a repugnancy and an oozing sore" whose sole purpose is the destruction of this nation, and all others, in order to place itself in a position of authority over the entire planet."
- \*An order that all national debt be forgiven, except for that owed to "Sovereign Citizens of the Republic".

#### CHAPTER 13

# STATE SUPREME COURT RULING HITE CASE SETS FLIMSY PRECEDENT ON NON ELECTION OF JUDGES by Gary Wean 2/9/96

Editor's note: In last week's CONTACT, Part 1 included some pertinent exhibits (A thru G). We are printing again (immediately below) the introduction with some additions and references to the exhibits.

#### *CONTACT:*

#### PART TWO OF A TWO-PART SERIES

In the fall of 1995, the two convicted L.A.P.D. officers in the Rodney King case were due to be released from the Federal Penitentiary.

Los Angeles County Supervisor Michael D. Antonovich knew the terrible problems that had beset the two officers, Sgt. Stacy Koon and Officer Laurence Powell, and their families.

In a move of compassion for their families, Supervisor Antonovich arranged a dinner at the L.A.P.D. Academy to raise funds to pay lawyers fees and expenses incurred from the two trials.

The two officers were released to what is called a "rehab house" in Los Angeles, a pre-conditioning prior to their full release but still under parole conditions.

The "rehab house" was attacked by a heavily armed man with the intent to kill Stacy Koon. Sgt. Koon was away at the time but several people were killed by the attacker before he himself was killed by the police.

In an act that amounts to vengeful persecution the federal judges are trying to increase the length of the original sentence and return the officers to the federal penitentiary.

Also, the ADL put terrific influence and power-pressure on Supervisor Antonovich to cancel the fund raising dinner.

The L.A. Police Academy is private property and this dinner in no way was connected to the city or county government or politics.

The first document you are about to read is a letter I wrote to Supervisor Michael D. Antonovich on November 2, 1995, [see p. 22 of 2/13/96 CONTACT] regarding his intention of holding the fund-raising dinner. Along with this letter to the Supervisor, I included a copy of my lawsuit, Case No. 229531 AEW [see Front Page story in the 9/26/95 CONTACT]. The initials are those of the judge, Arthur E.

Wallace, in the County of Kern.

On December 1, 1995, Supervisor Antonovich responded to my letter [see Exhibit F in last week's CONTACT]. He had requested the L.A. County Counsel De Witt W. Clinton to review and respond to my lawsuit [see Exhibit G in last week's CONTACT], which named Governor Pete Wilson, Johnny Cochran, Robert Shapiro, and Judge Lance Ito as defendants. This set off an eye-opening set of events that will amaze the citizens of America.

In his response, L.A. County Counsel De Witt W. Clinton stated that the lawyers and "unelected" judges relied totally on California Supreme Court case *Binns v. Hite* (1964) 61 Cal. 2d 107 [*see page 12*]. The reading of this case, *Binns v. Hite* and a connected case, *Barrett v. Hite*, exposes the most fantastic California State corruption that, when seen and read by your own eyes, will be absolutely unbelievable.

Part II of this article includes a copy of the two infamous California Supreme Court cases and my letter of January 2, 1996, responding to Supervisor Antonovich and L.A. County Counsel De Witt W. Clinton. In my lawsuit against Johnny Cochran, et al., there has been a little trickery conducted by the Kern County Court Clerk.

Johnny Cochran failed to answer the lawsuit and I filed an "Entry of Default", which a Deputy Clerk dated, initialed, and put in the legal file.

Due to a little clerk skulduggery, it became impossible to make a hearing set in Superior Court (Kern County) on February 9, 1996 at 8:00 a.m. On Wednesday, February 7, 1996, I sent the entire file to Superior Court Judge Arthur E. Wallace, Dept. 7, Kern County, California. Federal Express has guaranteed me that it will be (will have been) delivered to the Court Clerk not later than Thursday, February 8, 1996, 3:00 p.m.

/s/ Gary Wean Feb. 8, 1996

\* \* \*

January 2, 1996

Supervisor Michael D. Antonovich Fifth District Room 869 500 West Temple Street Los Angeles, Calif. 90012

Sir:

RE: Your request of County Counsel De Witt W. Clinton to "review and respond" to my correspondence of November 2, 1995, MDA:tsh 24148.

I received a copy of County Counsel De Witt W. Clinton's 'review' dated December 15, 1995, and I appreciate your prompt action of helping me to obtain this information.

Lawyer De Witt W. Clinton and his assistant Halvor S. Melom's delusive "review" and trickery deception RE: "unelected judges without any jurisdiction" reveal their secret agenda.

It is an agenda totally separate from that of the County Supervisors whose duty is to protect the people and their well-being.

The Orange County Board of Supervisors fell victim to the County Counsel of Orange County and his assistant Robert Austin. They deliberately and feloniously lied to and misled the Supervisors for over a year regarding fraudulent financial manipulations involving billions of dollars. Under these ruthless conspiratorial machinations the Orange County Government fell apart.

County Counsels are lawyers; they have their own private, exclusive organization with its secret political and financial agendas. They are committing these treacherous deceptions and misleading county supervisors in concerted, connecting and coinciding operations in every county of the state of California.

Clinton and Melom in their "review" rely totally on California Supreme Court case *Binns v. Hite*, L.A. 27737, (1964) 61 Cal 2d 107 and Election Code Sections, 25304 and 8203. They also rely on *Barrett v. Hite*, L.A. 27736, which they do not mention in their review but is very important in their deception. This pair of flagrant crooks, Clinton and Melom, are well aware that Election Code Sections 25304 and 8203 will never hold up in full light of U.S. Supreme Court decisions; the Voting Rights Act of 1965; and the *United States Constitution*. They are placing the Los Angeles County Government in dire peril.

The entire illegal "unelected judge" scam was a treasonous "set-up" from the very beginning. Engineered by Harry Pregerson, Mickey Cohen, Menachem Begin, Caspar Weinberger, Melvin Belli, Stanley Mosk, Ira Glasser and Stanley Scheinbaum, etc., etc., it has enslaved the citizens and government of California and the federal Ninth Circuit in a corrupt judicial web of absolute horror.

The people have been blocked out completely from access to judicial due process as known and practiced by Americans. I and others have been laughed at and derided by 'unelected judges' stating from the bench that they do not recognize the *U.S. Constitution* and that if I bring it up again I will be found in contempt of their court and jailed.

By 1960-'61, Harry Pregerson, Mickey Cohen, Menachem Begin and Stanley Mosk had put into action their plans to completely take over the California state judiciary and the federal judicial system of the Ninth Circuit. Much of the technical layout was actually implemented by Melvin Belli and Stanley Mosk with their associates in the Assembly, and money from their narcotics activities was used to buy off the politicians. Stanley Mosk at this time was highly involved personally in drug smuggling from Mexico with his mistress a black madam operating in the Wilshire District. Mosk was pulling political strings in Sacramento to assist his madam in some businesses she used for a front.

By 1962 the Assembly, with Mosk and Belli's outline, had cooked-up an amendment to Section 6 of Article V1 of the state Constitution. This amendment they put in place was clearly unconstitutional and

was done conspiratorially and knowingly without the necessary legislative jurisdiction to even consider it.

The amendment had to do with superior court judges who had been appointed by the governors, and they wanted them to become permanent judges without their names ever appearing on a ballot. This amendment only included counties with a population of 5,000,000 or more. Los Angeles was the only county in California who had this population.

In 1963, under Mosk's and Belli's instructions, the California Legislators, using the unconstitutional amendment they'd made to Section 6, Article V1 of the Constitution, legislated a new Election Code statute without having legislative jurisdiction. This Election Code statute was called Section 25304. Now, at this point in their game, the conspirators had feloniously and fraudulently managed a new unconstitutional Election Code Section, 25304 which was derived from an unconstitutional amendment of Section 6, Article V1 of the California State Constitution.

Back in the 1950s and 60s, during Pregerson and Begin's treasonous activities, my partner Frank Hronek and I were observing Mickey Cohen and Menachem Begin. We made film and audio tapes of their meetings with various people: to name a few, Caspar Weinberger, Melvin Belli and Stanley Mosk. Our operator, Henry Jacobs, recorded conversations between them regarding their operations of taking over the judiciary. At this same time there were discussions re: JFK and their anger at him.

Candy Barr, Cohen's girlfriend was present at some of these meetings and Cohen was flying Candy every week to 10 days to Dallas, Texas where she was meeting with Jack Ruby. Mary Mercadante and Marilyn Monroe were both being used by Mickey Cohen's "lover-boys", Georgie Piscitelli and Sammy LoCigno. The women were getting wise to them—the same as Nicole Simpson became wise to the "lover-boys"—and to how the women were being used to pick the brains of important men. This got all of them killed; in 1961 Mercadante was killed, and in 1962, when Monroe was threatening to tell the Kennedys how they were being sabotaged, she was killed. Both Mary and Marilyn were killed by Piscitelli at the orders of Cohen and Begin.

Many other women were caught up in the ADL spying insanity and have been killed between the time of Monroe-Mercadante and the present with Nicole Simpson. These murders were ordered by the same conspirators and for the same reason of covering up their horrendous treasons and corruption and the harm they have done to America. One notable case you should be totally aware of is the Vickie Morgan murder, which will expose the ADL Halacha fanatic mad-men assassins and the whole mess.

All of this ADL insanity was going on while Dist. Attorney William McKesson was threatening to have Frank and me killed if we did not stop our investigations.

In my last correspondence to you I said that I was fired after the meeting we had in Manley Bowler's office. That was what I had thought at the time because Capt. Joseph McClure came to the Investigation Bureau and told me that Mr. Bowler had fired me. But I later learned that Mr. Bowler had not fired either Frank or me and that Capt. McClure had lied.

In 1963 the situation was that Pregerson was prepared to move ahead on his judicial takeover of California—the conspirators had loaded the municipal and superior courts with "governor-appointed"

#### ADL shyster lawyers.

In a fast shuffle like "who's on first, no, who's on third" Superior Court Judge Walter R. Evans declared that Election Code Section 25304 was unconstitutional. But he neglected to rule at the same time that the Amendment to Section 6, Article V1 with the same wording was also unconstitutional. Election Code Section 25304 was derived from this unconstitutional amendment.

In 1964 Benjamin S. Hite, the County Registrar of Voters, then declared himself a principal of the ruling that Section 25304 was unconstitutional. Harold W. Kennedy, County Counsel and Edward H. Gaylord, Asst. County Counsel shuffled in to represent Registrar Hite so that he could put a stop to the people's right to vote for their choice of judges.

In 1964 just before the primary election of June 2, 1964 the tempo of the "fast-shuffle" picks up. Mosk and Belli's associates at the State Supreme Court set up a hearing "In Bank". Walter S. Binns et al., is the plaintiff and respondent—Loeb, Loeb and Selvin represent the plaintiffs who, in actuality, were the lawyers who were appointed as municipal court judges by the governor. Hite, the Registrar of Voters, the alleged defendant in this judicial abortion, was represented by the County Counsel.

Registrar Hite and the appointed judges were both after the same thing; they both wanted the reversal of the judgement that called Statute 25304 unconstitutional. This would give them both the absolute power and control they wanted so as to deny the people's constitutional right to vote for the person of their choice.

During all of this corrupt judicial Mutt and Jeff set-up, no one at any time represented the people and their constitutional right to vote. The decision by Chief Judge Gibson and five other "In Bank" judges was so deliberately, outrageously unconstitutional that it was unbelievable—legitimate lawyers and top constitutional students gasped in astonishment.

In Gibson's own words, "Obviating the need for balloting and the tabulating of votes did not abridge the rights guaranteed by the Constitution section entitling every citizen to vote at all elections authorized by law." Gibson went further: he declared that, "Obviating the need for the qualified electors to cast votes was not repugnant to the Constitution."

It must be understood that to "Obviate the need to vote" means only one thing: "wipe-out, disposal of, or removal of the people's right to vote."

So at the finale—to pin it down, this Obviation by the "In Bank" judges in the Appeal of *Binns v. Hite*, Case no. L.A. 27737, March 11, 1964, spells out two things: it encompasses only Election Code Section 25304 and pertains only to appointed municipal court judges and their election without being voted for, in relation to "any Judicial District" containing a population of 2,000,000 or more, of which this special law only fits Los Angeles County.

On the same date, March 11, 1964, Chief Judge Gibson, again "In Bank" with the same five judges, in Case No. L.A. 27736, *Barrett v. Hite* ruled that superior court judges who were appointed did not have to be elected. Except, that the amendment to Section 6, Article V1 of the Constitution requires that this only affects superior court judges in any county, or city and county containing a population of 5,000,000

or more.

As in the *Binns v. Hite* case, Hite was again represented in the *Barrett v. Hite* case, by County Counsel Harold W. Kennedy and Asst. Edward H. Gaylord. Newell Barrett, et al., who were actually the superior court judges, were represented by Loeb, Loeb and Selvin, who were closely connected with all the appointed municipal and superior court judges. Again Hite and the superior court judges both were after the same thing, which was the reversal of the judgement that Election Code Section 25304 was unconstitutional. No one was present at any time to represent the people or their constitutional right to vote.

In Case No. L.A. 27737, *Binns v. Hite*, et al.; the Municipal Court judges were the Plaintiffs and Respondents and Hite, the Registrar of Voters, was the Defendant and Appellant.

Everybody wanted the same thing, but in Case No. L.A. 27736, *Barrett v. Hite*, et al., the superior court judges became the Plaintiffs and Appellants and Hite, the Registrar of Voters, had become the Defendant and Respondent. And still no one was there to represent the people and their right to vote for the person of their choice.

It was the most vicious, corrupt judicial set-up ever perpetrated against the people...the rulings in these cases were bounced back and forth like a ping-pong ball—using both of them at the same time back and forth to bolster one insane ruling on top of another.

In this ridiculous clown atmosphere, with the twisting, tortuous mutilation and contortion of the meanings and intent of words and sentences, the California Election Code became the California Selection and Choose Code.

Listen to the brain of Chief Judge Gibson, "After recognizing that 'elected' and 'appointed' ordinarily are not synonymous, in its broadest sense, however, the word 'elected' means merely 'selected'. When used in that sense the word 'elected' is synonymous with the word 'appointed', so, the county clerk or registrar is to declare that the 'incumbent' without being on a ballot is again 'chosen' or 'selected' to hold the office of judge, as so construed not only does the word have an acceptable meaning but also the term 'incumbent' is given full effect and all portions of the amendment are now harmonized."

According to Gibson, "In Bank", 1964, his ruling on statute 25304 is based on the California Constitution amendment to Section 6, Article V1 of 1962. Gibson stated that the amendment of 1962 provided that with respect to superior court judges in counties containing a population of 5,000,000 or more candidates did not need to have their names appear on a ballot. Now, at this time, while still determining *Binns v. Hite*, L.A. 27737, Gibson held that municipal court judges in relation to 25304 did not need to have their names appear on the ballot in counties containing a population of 2,000,000.

Gibson admitted that section 25304 is in violation of section 11 of Article V1 of the Constitution which states that municipal court judges shall be "elected" by the qualified electors of the district.

But Gibson states that section 11 also declares that except as such matters are otherwise provided in this Article, the Legislature shall provide the manner in which judges of municipal courts shall be "elected"

or "appointed".

Then Gibson jumps back to case No. L.A. 27736 in which he has just ruled that the word "elect" does not mean what it really means but actually means to "select" or "choose".

With all the insanity up to now of actually changing the true meaning of words and sentences, Gibson has reached his necessary and critical point where he denies the people their right to vote.

The following "trick" sentence was put in place: "The word 'elect' has the broad meaning of 'select' or 'choose' as well as the narrower meaning of 'elect' by vote." Gibson then proceeds to rule that "The Constitution does not require that there be an actual balloting and tabulation of votes, PROVIDED there is some appropriate procedure by which the 'selection or choice' is made by the 'electors'."

Gibson then lays out his outrageously corrupt mumbo-jumbo—he presents his appropriate procedure to the voters wherein it works out that if the voters do not carry out his orders, which they are required to do if they want to vote, then they have not voted—and if they have not voted then the judicial candidates whose names are not even on the ballot become elected because they "did not" receive even one vote.

Gibson proceeds with his obscene requirements against the voters which he claims will "simplify an otherwise unduly long and confusing ballot by eliminating the necessity of voting for judges who have no opposition."

Actually all that is necessary to do is put the candidate's name on the ballot and a box after it with the words "yes or no" to be checked.

But Harry Pregerson does not want that; he wants his ADL shysters put in "black robes" without any possible chance for rejection or someone else running against them and winning.

Gibson's "requirements"—listen to this—"If 'electors' want to prevent a candidate from becoming a judge without his being elected then they must file a petition that a write-in campaign will be conducted. If the voter does this, then the name of the incumbent will be placed on the ballot. The choice as to whether the incumbent's name will be on the ballot is thus left to the voter and if they do not take these steps it is obvious by their inaction that they have 'elected', chosen to retain the incumbent in office without requiring that his name be on the ballot and submitted to an actual vote."

Consequently Gibson then orders that the county clerk or registrar is to declare that the incumbent is again 'chosen' or 'selected' to hold the office of judge. Repeat: the clerk does not have jurisdiction to declare that the "judge" has been "elected", only that he has been "chosen" or "selected". This is what Gibson calls "SIMPLIFYING"—simplifying elections. The regulations as ordered by Gibson necessitate that 100 electors must file a petition indicating that a write-in campaign would be conducted for the judicial office. *Binns v. Hite*, L.A. 27737 was heard on March 11, 1994. *Barrett v. Hite* L.A. 27736 was also held on March 11, 1994.

The election for municipal and superior court judges that turned on these two cases was held on June 2, 1964. There were over one hundred judges in Los Angeles County alone who were up for election.

The requirement that 100 electors must file a petition for write-in meant that in each judicial district wherein one judge was up for election, 100 citizens must come forth and prove to election officials that they were qualified electors. In a large county like Los Angeles, if any lawyer felt brave enough to want to oppose Pregerson's shysters they would have done so before the end of the filing period.

Since no legitimate lawyers had come forth, that meant that 100 qualified voters must get together—form an organization, a political force and canvas law firms all over Los Angeles County desperately seeking and soliciting some lawyer whom they knew nothing about to run as a write-in. If they did get some lawyer who would allow his name to be used they would have to solicit funds to run a campaign. It would take a lot of money to be gathered in a very short period. The qualified electors would have to turn into money-grubbers—political hacks—run a complex campaign—and how many lawyers have ever been elected judges in Los Angeles by running a write-in?

Gibson states that his requirements "do not impose an unreasonable burden upon voters. In view of the comparatively small number of electors signatures required in order to attain the placing of the candidate's name on the ballot there will be no difficulty in obtaining the signatures." Gibson states that, "None of this is repugnant to the Constitution."

Now, during this short period between the "In Bank" abortion on March 11, 1964 and the election on June 2, 1964 the voters are faced with enormous unbelievable burdens to themselves forcing them to become politicians, advertising experts and hucksters, and as amateurs run a giant write-in campaign just to force Pregerson's shysters to put their names on a ballot. This is viciously outrageous; their personal time and expense for most people would be prohibitive. In 1964 in Los Angeles County there were over a hundred appointed municipal and superior court judges. A hundred voters necessary for each judge would be over ten thousand voters running around trying to put together a write-in campaign. In opposition to Gibson's mumbo-jumbo, all this paper work, tabulation of write-in votes etc. would create such confusion and cost for the election office and registrar that it is ridiculous for Gibson to talk of reducing costs and chaos to the county by "selecting" "unelected judges".

1964 was thirty-two years ago; hundreds and hundreds of Pregerson's shysters have become judges without any of them ever being on a ballot. They have become judges in perpetuity without ever receiving one vote. Statute 25304 has been revised, changed, manipulated so many times that it is not even recognizable—it has now become Statute 8203, which was a number that was long ago repealed—8203 being a lower number than 25304 makes it appear to be a statute that has been in place for many years. Actually they resurrected 8203, and in 1994, 25304 was again legislatively manipulated and twisted to fit the "unelected" judges purposes in their horrendous, treasonous fraud against the people. The supposedly necessary requirements of 5,000,000 and 2,000,000 limiting this insanity to Los Angeles County had disappeared and 25304 became 8203.

In June 1990 there were 120 Pregerson shysters in Los Angeles who had been appointed as judges and who wanted to perpetuate their "black-robes" by not having their names placed on a ballot. This meant that over 12,000 qualified voters would have to come out and form campaign organizations, to raise huge sums of money to run write-in campaigns just to get these gangsters to put their names on a ballot. This increases chaos and the costs of the election office a thousand-fold over what it would be if only the names had already been put on the ballot with the words "yes or no" to be checked off.

After the 1964 election the qualifications of 5,000,000 and 2,000,000 have disappeared and shysters in every county in California are perpetuating themselves as "unelected judges" and are conducting courts without having any judicial jurisdiction.

Unbelievably, after 32 years of judicial corruption there are still some of the original shysters of 1964 still wearing black robes in Los Angeles County.

In June of 1996, the people and voters of California face another monstrous judicial perpetuity of Harry Pregerson's gangster shysters in black robes.

Binns and Barrett v. Hite are Mishna, the "Jew Law" straight from the fanatical Rabbis of the Bar Ilam University of Tel Aviv, Israel. It has no place in the United States of America. By American constitutional law pursuant to Article V1, Section 1, Clause 2 the amendment to the state Constitution in 1962 is wholly void and ineffective for any purpose. Since unconstitutionality dates from the time of its enactment, and not merely from the date of the decision so branding it, an unconstitutional law, in legal contemplation is as inoperative as if it had never passed.

Since 1962 Harry Pregerson and his ADL Rabbi gangsters wearing "black robes" are responsible for every civil and criminal miscarriage of justice that has occurred in California courts. Their salaries must be returned to the people—their pensions are forfeit and must be returned to the people and they are held personally responsible for every vicious travesty of justice that they have perpetrated against the people.

The California Appellate Courts and Supreme Court are likewise liable because they were aware of the black-robe gangsters and that they themselves had no judicial jurisdiction to rule on any of the decisions made by the "unelected judges" who were without jurisdiction. The California Assembly in 1962 had no legislative jurisdiction to make their unconstitutional Amendment to Section 6, of Article V1.

Citizens, taxpayers, voters, lawyers and politicians, etc., etc., throughout the cities, counties and states encompassing the Ninth Circuit of the U.S. Courts of Appeals are highly aware of the monstrous judicial corruption involving murder, assassination, mayhem, fraud and theft of citizens' life savings and their right to due process of law in a court proceeding.

In Chelan County, Washington, the County Supervisors have filed a lawsuit against the Governor of Washington, challenging that the state illegally gave powers to controlling boards that are not allowed by the state or federal constitutions.

U.S. Senator Slade Gorton, (R) Washington, is promoting legislation to split the 9th Circuit, cut California out of the other Western States. Gorton, while the Atty. General of Washington in the 1970s, argued cases before the San Francisco-based U.S. Appeals Court and soon learned first-hand how corrupt the ADL gangster judges really are. This legislation to split the 9th Circuit passed the Senate Judiciary Committee on December 7, 1995 but has not yet been scheduled to be heard by the entire Senate. Gorton's plan for a new circuit (No. 12) would include the following states, Alaska, Washington, Idaho, Montana, Oregon, Nevada and Arizona.

That would leave California, Hawaii, Guam, and the Northern Mariana Islands in the 9th Circuit. And

it would leave the entire 9th Circuit in Harry Pregerson's and the ADL's possession, a Kingdom with no restrictions or supervision from the rest of the U.S. Government whatsoever—Pregerson and Mosk and Feinstein in total control of all the dope coming in from the entire South Pacific and Asia. That's what you call cutting up America "Big-Time".

For Senator Gorton and Conrad Burns of Montana to fail to take into consideration the fact that Pregerson for years has had his agents and provocateurs networked and placed in key positions throughout the other Western States that would become the new 12th Circuit is not only the height of naivety but reckless strategy. Pregerson's judicial agents and provocateurs would soon have the new 12th Circuit right back in their pocket.

This is the answer as to why Specter and Feinstein did not stop Gorton's "New Circuit" legislation cold in the Senate Judiciary Committee.

Senator Conrad Burns, (R) Montana, is also aware of the massive federal judicial corruption in the 9th Circuit and has blocked nominations to fill four vacancies on the appeals court, and both he and Gorton will make things difficult until their legislation passes.

But, there is a much better plan than this "split-legislation" and that would be to destroy the evil corruption and the gangsters behind it once and for all and return the existing 9th Circuit to America.

The "Split-Plan" is worthless so far as solving anything. It is totally unfair, immoral and against the health and well-being of the California citizens left within the 9th Circuit and at the mercy of Pregerson.

To abandon these millions of people to this treasonous, murderous Harry Pregerson without any hope of "due process of law" is unconscionable. It is also very stupid strategy. If the Republicans ever hope to regain the Presidency and remove it from the treasonous hands of the likes of Willie Clinton, they need the Electoral Vote of California and Hawaii.

Specter and Feinstein of the Senate Judiciary Committee have slyly sold Gorton a bill of goods or maybe a deal. Look at the results: Feinstein and Pregerson will still control the California Electoral Vote and the Presidency—and all the dope smuggling—and that doesn't mean that they won't still be conspiring and working feverishly on "taking over" the Senate and House seats of the states in the new 12th Circuit. They never cease their treasonous machinations.

Senators Gorton and Burns, as representatives of the citizens, have the duty and responsibility to protect all of the citizens in the country not just the ones in a new 12th Circuit.

The best "plan" is for the Senators to support the County Supervisors of every county in California to combine and follow the courageous example and actions of the Chelan, Washington, county supervisors. Halt the pay checks and pension payments to the phony, "unelected judges" in every county in California—file a lawsuit against Governor Pete Wilson who has been a paid tool of the ADL from the very beginning and prohibit him from "appointing" new "unelected judges".

Give the states within the 9th Circuit a gift of life: remove all corrupt judges and replace them with new blood, honest, new judges who respect America and the Constitution and dispense due process of law.

To officially hand Harry Pregerson, Stanly Mosk and Diane Feinstein a Piece of America for their own Kingdom of Corruption is not acceptable to the Citizens of the 9th Circuit. By doing so it would solidify the permanent loss of California's Electoral Vote and forever prevent the American people from putting a person of their own choice in the White House.

The citizens and voters of California must be given back their right for their votes to be balloted and tabulated for an honest determination in the power of the Electoral Vote.

Recovery of all the salaries, pension payments, pension fund and interests thereon, fraudulently and conspiratorially stolen by Pregerson's illegal, "unelected judges", would be a money shower of enormous proportions on every county in California. A substantial lowering of property taxes would take place and further enhance the county and citizens' prosperity. This would be a "bloodless" revolution freeing the people from a terrible oppression by gangsters of unparalleled evilness.

The astronomical power of the phony "unelected judges" in bleeding the life's blood from America is revealed in their unmerciful "bond-peddler" scams. But now every bit of these billions upon billions of dollars plus interest can be recovered by the people.

In Ventura County phony Judge Jerome Berenson and his partner, U.S. Commissioner Ben Nordman, devised a "bond-scam" that would initially cost the taxpayers 2-hundred-and-50-million dollars and ultimately build to over a billion.

These shysters' scheme was to move the courthouse's official site to a location ten miles away and build a new courthouse. They floated a "bond-issue" that was twice turned down by the voters. With connivance of corrupt members of the Ventura County Board of Supervisors and Ventura City Council members they devised a way to "obviate" the people's vote.

Bypassing (obviating) the voters' rights, the conspirators "set up" an allegedly "non-profit" corporation and they misleadingly called it the Ventura County Public Facilities Corporation and they went right ahead against the people's wishes and sold bonds anyway.

The Public Facilities Corp., behind the scenes, was actually the phony judges' and the County Counsel's, James McBride, all of whom were closely tied in with Pregerson. They prepared to quietly sell bonds indebting the taxpayers 250 million dollars plus interest.

I filed a lawsuit prohibiting the Public Facilities Corp. from selling the bonds. The "unelected judges" went berserk because they had already flown the "Big-Time" bond dealers out from New York to finalize the transaction.

In relation, in Phoenix, Arizona, these ADL gangsters had another of their organizations, the "Arizona Public Service". An investigative reporter for the *Arizona Republic* newspaper, Don Bolles, was investigating major land manipulation frauds involving the Arizona Public Service and their plan to build a nuclear power plant at Palo Verde, Arizona. This scheme involved the Los Angeles Water and Power Co., which would buy power from Palo Verde. Bolles had uncovered massive fraud involving powerful politicians and the Palo Verde scheme and had connected Arizona Public Service to another of Pregerson's corporations

in Los Angeles, the Southern California Public Powers Authority.

Bolles was about to expose the whole mess with "blazing headlines" when, on June 2, 1976, he was blown to pieces in his car after being "set up". Three days later, on June 5, 1976, with my lawsuit preventing Pregerson, Berenson and Nordman from selling their Public Facilities Corp. bonds, they tried to kill me in the driveway of my home. There were eye witnesses to their attempted murder and a sheriff's official report was made.

In Los Angeles, a citizens organization, the Alliance for Survival, had filed a lawsuit to prevent an illegal adoption of the Palo Verde bond issue by the City Council. This was being worked by Pregerson's associates on the City Council, Joel Wachs, Marvin Braude and Zev Yaroslovsky, who is now a member of the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors and still up to his ADL scams with Pregerson.

The Southern California Public Powers Authority was the same type of outfit as their Public Facility Corp. in Ventura, working their bond operation. With the lawsuit by the citizens in Los Angeles blocking the illegal sale of the bonds, you would think they were in trouble—but not so, this is where the power of their "unelected judges" came in—Los Angeles Superior Court Judge Leon Savitch merely banged his gavel and dismissed the taxpayers' lawsuit and ordered, as a starter, that 5-hundred-and-forty-million dollars of bonds must be sold immediately and that Los Angeles County taxpayers must pay principal and interest.

The politicians in Arizona that Don Bolles had uncovered were Senator Barry Goldwater, Harry Rosenzweig, Nathan Waxman and Dennis DeConcini. DeConcini was elected to the U.S. Senate in 1976 at the very time of Bolles murder.

Goldwater and Rosenzweig were tightly associated with Harry Pregerson, and the actual orders to kill Bolles came from Pregerson and Berenson in California. Their contact and "set-up" man was Max Klass who arranged the "set-up" so Bolles would park his car in a parking lot which was overlooked by Klass' office. Klass could keep his eye on the whole procedure and was one of the first persons at the scene. Klass told police that Bolles had whispered names to him, but these things that Klass claimed Bolles had told him misled the investigation and engulfed persons who were not involved.

My lawsuit against the Ventura County Public Facilities Corp. was dismissed by two "unelected judges", Robert Shaw and Robert Willard, and the bonds were sold.

Later Jessica Savitch, who was involved in the ADL's bond deal machinations was killed, along with an associate by Bar Ilan assassins. Records of the bond transaction involving all the above-mentioned organizations were secreted at the First Interstate Bank building in Los Angeles—the bond records of the Ventura County Public Facilities Corp., which revealed all the phony judges and County Counsel James L. McBride's manipulations of the bonds' ownership and cover-ups, were also kept at this bank location.

When pressure of investigations and lawsuits that I had been filing mounted, the bond records were secretly removed from the First Interstate Bank building and a fire was set in the area where the bonds had been kept to cover up the removal. A man was killed (murdered) in this fire.

An associate of mine and I met with a Los Angeles Deputy District Attorney who was assigned to prosecute these types of cases and a Dist. Atty. Investigator. The four of us met in a restaurant in Woodland Hills and talked for over two hours. After introducing and identifying ourselves the D.A. asked if we minded if he recorded our conversation. We agreed to this and his investigator set their recorder on the table. I said that he should have no objection to us also recording the conversation and I set our recorder on the table.

This Dep. D.A. was given the name of the man who had removed the bond records from the Interstate Bank and the location in Phoenix, Arizona where they had been taken; that the security company for the bank where the fire occurred was under the control of the same people who had the security at Palo Verde. The D.A. was given documented evidence revealing that Judge Jerome Berenson and U.S. Commissioner Ben Nordman had stolen over 23-million dollars in cash from the funds that they had used in the construction of the new Ventura County Courthouse. These funds had been fraudulently removed from the Federal Omnibus Safe Streets Act (the California Criminal Justice Organization), which "unelected Judge" Jerome Berenson controlled. These millions were fraudulently spread around and deposited in numerous S&Ls within Los Angeles County and later furtively removed.

The Dep. D.A. assured us that he was going to open an investigation and at my insistence he twice stated that he was going to personally advise Dist. Atty. Ira Reiner of the whole situation and particularly because the murder at the bank appeared to have been committed during the arson.

Several days later my associate and I contacted the Dep. D.A. by phone. He told me that he had been desperately sick and had not yet contacted Reiner but he was going to take care of it soon and he would contact us. The Dep. D.A. never did contact us and from that time on we diligently attempted to reach him numerous times but he refused to talk to us.

Dist. Atty. Ira Reiner covered up murder, bond fraud, grand theft and his ADL associate, Harry Pregerson's evil depredations, but now he presently appears on Larry King's ADLTV show and displays grim-faced, vitriolic anger that O.J. Simpson was found "not guilty" and has gotten away with killing the son of the influential Jewish Goldman family—and that he intends to see that full justice will be done against Simpson in their "unelected judges" civil trial, conducted by an "unelected judge" and Santa Monica jurors.

Actually, this great, terrible anger coming from Ira Reiner and other ADL Jews is because their most carefully laid conspiracy to cause the most horrendous, destructive race riots the cities of the entire United States had ever experienced had fallen apart with Simpson's exoneration.

In *Ronald Chisom v. Roemer, Governor of Louisiana et al.*, 90-757, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that judges are representatives of the people the same as prosecutors, sheriffs, state attorneys general and state treasurers. This includes clerks of the court and supervisors of the county board.

There is absolutely no difference between a judge and any of the other officials named above. Judges must be chosen by popular election which means being on a ballot and receive votes and be tabulated.

De Witt W. Clinton, the County Counsel of Los Angeles maintains that if judges and all the other

officials are the same, then none of them have to be elected by the qualified electors; they only need to be appointed.

In the Voting Rights Act of 1965, the Supreme Court held that the Amendment of 1982 is coextensive with the coverage provided by the Act prior to 1982 and that judicial elections are embraced within that coverage.

In the April 26, 1995 landmark *Lopez* case the U.S. Supreme Court ruled very clearly as to Congress' lack of jurisdiction to legislate unconstitutional statutes. Nor can the California State Assembly legislate unconstitutional amendments to the State Constitution and then legislate Election Code Statutes derived from such unconstitutional amendment—they do not have jurisdiction.

The U.S. Supreme Court did not hesitate to strike down the unconstitutional statute in the *Lopez* case although it conceivably could release federal prisoners other than those who had been convicted under this "non-law".

The Court obviously felt that unconstitutional law could not be allowed to stand no matter what the consequences. They also understood that the entire blame lies directly with the persons who set up these treasonous, destructive "non-laws" for their own benefit and it was no fault of the defenseless citizens.

In Los Angeles, at the California "State Bar" building, large plate glass windows have been blasted out far above the ground floors by bullets from high-powered rifles.

These acts of violence were not committed by terrorists nor by good, honest citizens who have had all their life's savings stolen by "unelected judges" and have no legal recourse. These violent acts of striking back were committed by a small group of ethnic lawyers in Los Angeles. Terrible frustrations have been built up within this group who merely wanted to file to run for a judge's seat but knew they couldn't. The terrible frustrations assailing this group center on the fact that they were warned and threatened that if they interfere with "unelected judges" and force them to place their names on a ballot that their bar license will be "ripped" from their office walls.

Obviously such destructive insanity as the unconstitutional California Constitution Amendment and Election Codes 25304 and 8203 cannot be allowed to continue their evil and be upheld by such further insanity as the *Binns and Barrett et al. v. Hite* cases.

Title 28 USC., Sec. 1257, Sub. Sec. (a), "Final judgements or decrees rendered by the highest court of a State in which a decision can be had, may be reviewed by the Supreme Court by Writ of Certiorari where the validity of a statute of any State is drawn in question on the ground of its being repugnant to the Constitution."

The ADL (Anti-Defamation League) is the most destructive, evil organization ever to be allowed to operate in the United States. It openly began its murderous saboteur, provocateur, and espionage operations against the people of America in 1913, the same time the Mishpucka (Jew Crime Family) dropped the devastating Federal Bank System on the people.

Presently certain politicians in the U.S. Congress are calling upon the Justice Department to force Farrakhan to register as an agent of a foreign country (Libya). At this time, every good American citizen should phone, fax, send letters and telegrams and contact in person each and every Senator and member of the House and demand that the Justice Department force Abraham Foxman, the official head of the ADL to register as an agent of a foreign country (Israel). I can guarantee you that Farrakhan and Libya have not done one-trillionth of the damage to America that Israel and their ADL have done.

At this time I ask that you please respond to my request and/or demand that the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors review and act on the facts and circumstances of my job termination, loss of pay and pension, as I asked in the last paragraph of page 5 and continued on page 6 of my communication to you on November 2, 1995.

Sincerely,

/s/Gary L. Wean
P.O. Box 1857
Cave Junction, Oregon 97523

#### CHAPTER 14

#### SUPREME COURT RULINGS ON JUDGES "ELECTIONS"

37 Cal.Rptr. 323 Walter S. BINNS et al., Plaintiffs and Respondents,

v.

Benjamin S. HITE, as Registrar of Voters etc., Defendant and Appellant. L.A. 27737.

> Supreme Court of California, In Bank March 11, 1964.

Action for declaratory relief. The Superior Court, Los Angeles County, Walter R. Evans, J., declared statute unconstitutional, and defendant appealed. The Supreme Court, Gibson, C.J., held that constitution provision that judges of municipal court be "elected" by qualified electors did not require that there be actual balloting and tabulating of votes, provided there was some appropriate procedure by which selection or choice was made by electors, and statute obviating need for balloting as to unopposed incumbents but permitting 100 electors to obtain printing of incumbent's name on ballot by filing petition indicating that "write-in campaign" would be conducted for office was not repugnant to constitution, since electors could be deemed to have "elected" to retain incumbent in office without requiring that his name be submitted to actual vote if they did not take steps permitted by statute.

Reversed.

#### 1. ELECTIONS <— 171

Statute authorizing elimination of "uncontested judgeships" from ballot was applicable to incumbent municipal court judges who had been appointed to office as well as to judges who had been elected. West's Ann. Elections Code, 25304

#### 2. JUDGES <— 3

Constitution provision that judges of municipal court be "elected" by qualified electors did not require that there be actual balloting and tabulating of votes, and statute obviating need for balloting as to unopposed incumbents but permitting 100 electors to obtain printing of incumbent's name on ballot by filing petition indicating that "write-in campaign" would be conducted for office was not repugnant to constitution, since

electors could be deemed to have "elected" to retain incumbent in office without requiring that his name be submitted to actual vote if they did not take steps permitted by statute. West's Ann.Const. art. 6, 6, 11; West's Ann.Elections Code, 25304.

See publication Words and Phrases for other judicial constructions and definitions.

#### 3. ELECTIONS <— 27

Legislature has power to establish reasonable regulations governing write-in procedures, and statute obviating need for balloting where incumbent municipal court judge is unopposed but requiring incumbent's name to be printed on ballot if petition indicating that write-in campaign will be conducted for office is filed did not abridge rights guaranteed by constitution section entitling every citizen to vote at all elections authorized by law; disapproving dictum in *Cohn v. Isensee*, 45 Cal.App. 531, 188 P. 279. West's Ann.Const. art. 2, 1; art. 6, 11; West's Ann.Elections Code, 25304.

#### 4. JUDGES <— 3

Statute obviating need for balloting where incumbent municipal court judge is unopposed was within bounds of legislature's power to provide "manner" in which judges of municipal courts should be elected. West's Ann.Const. art. 6, 6, 11; West's Ann.Elections Code, 25304.

#### 5. STATUTES <— 77(1)

Legislature may make reasonable classifications.

#### 6. STATUTES <— 101(1)

There was proper basis for making distinction between districts having population of 2,000,000 or more and those which were smaller, since number of uncontested judicial offices would be greater in larger districts and, therefore, statute obviating need for balloting where incumbent municipal judge was unopposed was not invalid as special law, even though it was presently applicable only to Los Angeles Judicial District. West's Ann. Elections Code, 25304; West's Ann. Const. art. 4, 25.

\_\_\_\_\_

Harold W. Kennedy, County Counsel, and Edward H. Gaylord, Asst. County Counsel, for defendant and appellant.

Loeb & Loeb and Herman F. Selvin, Los Angeles, for plaintiffs and respondents.

GIBSON, Chief Justice.

Defendant Benjamin S. Hite, as registrar of voters of Los Angeles County, appeals from a judgment

declaring that section 25304 of the Elections Code, added in 1963, is unconstitutional and should not be applied by defendant. \*The judgment was rendered in an action for declaratory relief instituted by plaintiffs, who are duly elected or appointed judges of the Municipal Court of the Los Angeles Judicial District and who are candidates to succeed themselves as such judges at the primary election to be held on June 2, 1964. The action was tried prior to the last day for the filing of a declaration of intention to become a candidate, and after this appeal was taken it appeared that candidates have filed in opposition to only two of the 26 plaintiffs.

[1] Section 25304 provides, in brief, that in any judicial district containing a population of 2,000,000 or more in which only the incumbent has filed nomination papers of the office of municipal court judge his name shall not appear on the ballot at either the primary or the general election unless, within certain designated times, a petition signed by 100 registered voters has been filed indicating that a write-in campaign will be conducted for the office and that if, in conformity with this section, the name of the incumbent does not appear on either the primary or the general election ballot, the county clerk or registrar, on the day of the general election, shall declare the incumbent reelected.<sup>2\*</sup> By almost identical language a 1962 amendment to section 6 of article VI of the Constitution provided for a similar procedure with respect to superior court judges in counties containing a population of 5,000,000 or more. In *Barrett v. Hite*, Cal., 37 Cal.Rptr. 320, 389 P. 21944, we held that the amendment to the Constitution is applicable to incumbent judges who have been appointed to office as well as to judges who have been elected, and a similar construction must, of course, be given to section 25304.

[2] Plaintiffs assert that section 25304 is contrary to the provision in section 11 of article VI of the Constitution that judges of the municipal court "shall be elected by the qualified electors of the district"; Section 11, however, also declares that, except as such matters are otherwise provided in this article, the Legislature shall provide "the manner in which" judges of municipal courts shall be elected or appointed, and in our opinion section 25304 relates to the "manner" of the election. As we held in Barrett v. Hite, Cal., 37 Cal.Rptr. 320, 389 p.2d 944, the word "elect" has the broad meaning of "select" or "choose" as well as the narrower meaning of elect by vote. The Constitution does not require that there be an actual balloting and tabulation of votes, provided there is some appropriate procedure by which the selection or choice is made by the "electors". Section 25304 furnishes such a procedure with respect to an incumbent judge who is unopposed and as to whose office no petition for a write-in campaign has been filed. Under the terms of this section, if there are electors who wish to prevent an incumbent from succeeding himself in office, they may present another candidate or may file a petition indicating that a write-in campaign will be conducted, and when either step is take the name of the incumbent must be placed on the ballot. The choice as to whether the incumbent's name will be on the ballot is thus left to the electors, and if they do not take one of the steps permitted by section 25304 it is obvious that, by their inaction, they have "elected", i.e., chosen, to retain the incumbent in office without requiring that his name be submitted to an actual vote.

The fact that the procedure devised by the Legislature requires electors who are interested to take the initiative if they wish the incumbent's name to be on the ballot does not impose an unreasonable burden upon them. In view of the comparatively small number of electors' signatures required in order to attain the placing of the incumbent's name on the ballot, it is readily apparent that if there is sufficient opposition to the incumbent to have any significant effect at all, there will be no difficulty in obtaining the necessary signatures.

The case of *Chamber v. Terry*, 40 Ca. App.2d 153, 155-156, 104 P.2d 663, 666, relied upon by plaintiffs, is not in point. The court there held that the Legislature has no power to impose qualifications upon municipal court judges where such qualifications are precluded by the provision in section 11 of article VI which excepts from the powers of the Legislature "such matters as 'are otherwise provided in the article". As we have seen, the statute does not conflict with the requirement of section 11 that municipal court judges are to be elected by the qualified electors of the district.

[3] Plaintiffs also assert that section 25304 conflicts with the declaration in section 1 of Article II of the Constitution that every citizen, with certain exceptions not pertinent here, "shall be entitled to vote at all elections which are now or may hereafter be authorized by law: \*\*\*". Their position is that the constitutional guaranty includes the write-in vote and that the statute abridges it. The Constitution contains no express provision permitting write-in votes or forbidding the Legislature from prescribing conditions under which write-in votes may be cast. We are not confronted here with an attempt by the Legislature to abolish write-in votes but rather with a statute regulating the use of such votes, and in the absence of a clear limitation in the Constitution the Legislature has power to establish reasonable regulations governing write-in procedures. Moreover, any other interpretation of section 1 of article II would be anomalous in view of the recent amendment to section 6 of article VI of the Constitution providing for a similar procedure with respect to the closely parallel situation concerning superior courts in counties having a population of 5,000,000 or more.

Our conclusion is not contrary to *Cohn v. Isensce*, 45 Cal.App. 531, 188 P. 279, cited by plaintiffs. It was there held that sections 1196 and 1197 of the former Political Code, construed together with an act providing for recall of elective officers of incorporated cities and towns (Stats. 1911, Ex. Sess. 1911, ch. 32, p. 128), required that ballots in a recall election contain suitable blank spaces for writing in names of persons whose names are not printed on the ballots. The opinion contains language to the effect that the statutes would be unconstitutional if construed to prohibit electors from voting for persons whose names are not printed on the ballots and that this would be true even though a voter, together with other electors, could by filing a nomination paper have the name of another candidate placed on the ballot. (45 Ca.App. at pp. 538-540, 188 P. 279.) This language, however, was not necessary to the decision, and it is disapproved insofar as it is inconsistent with the views expressed here.

[4] The procedures set forth in section 25304 are without doubt reasonably designed to accomplish the legitimate purposes of the statute. As pointed out in *Barrett v. Hite*, supra, Cal., 37 Cal.Rptr. 320, 389 P.2d 944, relating to the election of superior court judges, the purposes of such legislation include simplification of an otherwise unduly long and confusing ballot by elimination of uncontested offices, reduction of the length of the ballot, facilitation of vote tabulation, and reduction of election costs. The sections permits an incumbent candidate's name to remain off the ballot only if he has no real opposition, and it provides readily available methods by which even a very few persons can obtain the printing of the incumbent's name on the ballot. When the necessity of accomplishing the purposes underlying section 25304 is weighed against the comparatively slight burdens imposed upon electors who desire to have an incumbent candidate subjected to a write-in vote, we are of the view that the statue is within the bounds of the Legislature's power to provide the manner in which judges of the municipal courts shall be elected.

[5,6] There is no merit to plaintiff's assertion that section 25304, being presently applicable only to the Los Angeles Judicial District, is a special law and therefore invalid under section 25 of article IV of the

Constitution. The Legislature, of course, may make reasonable classifications (Johnson v. Superior Court, 50 Cal.2d 693, 699, 329, P.2d 5), and there is a proper basis for making a distinction between districts having a population of 2,000,000 or more and those which are smaller. The need for legislation such as section 25304 is greater in proportion to the number of uncontested judicial offices which would appear on the ballot in absence of the statute, and obviously the number of such offices will be greater in the larger districts. The Los Angeles Judicial District has 49 municipal judges, more than three times the number in the next largest district, San Diego, which has 16. (In other large districts San Francisco has 15 judges, Oakland-Piedmont 9, Sacramento 8, San Jose-Alviso 8, Anaheim-Fullerton 6, and Long Beach 6.) The sharp difference between the character of the Los Angeles Judicial Distinct and the others in the state warranted the Legislature in drawing the line where it did.

The judgement is reversed.

TRAYNOR, McCOMB, PETERS, TOBRINER and PEEK, JJ., concur.

\*\*\*

389 P.2d 944 Newell BARRETT et al., Plaintiffs and Appellants,

V.

Benjamin S. HITE, as Registrar of Voters etc., Defendant and Respondent.

L.A. 27736.

Supreme Court of California,

In Bank.

March 11, 1964.

Action for declaratory relief. The Superior Court, Los Angeles County, Walter R. Evans, J., rendered the judgement challenged by plaintiffs' appeal. The Supreme Court, Gibson, C. J., held that the word "elect" has broad meaning of "select" or "choose" as well as narrower meaning of "elect by vote", that in constitution section providing for eliminating "uncontested judgeships" from ballot, word "re-elected" was used in broader sense; and that even those incumbent superior court judges who had been appointed rather than elected were entitled to benefit of constitution section.

Affirmed.

#### ELECTIONS < 171

The word "elect" has broad meaning of "select" or "choose" as well as narrower meaning of "elect by vote"; in constitution section providing for eliminating "uncontested judgeships" from ballot, word "reelected" was used in broader sense; and even those incumbent superior court judges who had been appointed rather than elected were entitled to benefit of constitution section.

See publication Words and Phrases for other judicial constructions and defections.

\* \* \*

Loeb & Loeb and Herman F. Selvin, Los Angeles, for plaintiffs and appellants.

Harold W. Kennedy, County Counsel, and Edward H. Gaylord, Asst. County Counsel, for defendant and respondent.

#### GIBSON, Chief Justice.

The plaintiffs in this actions for declaratory relief are judges of the superior court for the County of Los Angeles. Each of them was appointed to that office by the Governor since the last primary or general election, none of them has ever been elected by a vote of the electors, and each is a candidate to succeed himself in office at the primary election to be held on June 2, 1964. The actions was brought to determine whether the names of incumbent judges who have been appointed but not elected to office should be placed on the ballot at the primary or general election if it appears that only the incumbent has filed nomination papers for the office and if it further appears that no petition has been filed indicating that a "write-in campaign" will be conducted for that office. The question presented involves the construction of section 6 of article VI of the Constitution as amended in 1962, and the trial court held that the amendment applies to all incumbent superior court judges whether or not previously elected by the voters and that defendant should follow the provisions of the amendment as so construed.

Section 6 of article VI as amended provides, among other things, that each county, or city and county, shall have a superior court, for each of which at least one judge shall be elected by the qualified electors of the county, or city and county, at the general state election, "except that in any county or city and country containing a population of 5,000,000 or more" \*\*\* in which only the incumbent has filed nomination papers for the office of superior court judge, his name shall not appear on the ballot unless there is filed with the county clerk or registrar of voters, within 20 days after the final date for filing nomination papers for the office, a petition indicating that a write-in campaign will be conducted for the office and signed by 100 registered voters qualified to vote with respect to the office. If a petition indicating that a write-in campaign will be conducted for the office at the general election, signed by 100 registered voters qualified to vote with respect to the office, is filed with the county clerk or registrar of voters not less than 45 days before the general election, the name of the incumbent shall be placed on the general election ballot if it has not appeared on the direct primary election ballot. \*\*\* If, in conformity with this section, the name of the incumbent does not appear either on the primary ballot or general election ballot, the county clerk or registrar of voters, on the day of the general elections shall declare the incumbent re-elected." (The quoted provisions were added by the 1962 amendment.)

Plaintiffs contend that by employing the word "re-elected" the amendment discloses an intent that it apply only to incumbent judges who have previously been elected by the voters. They argue that in ordinary or popular usage the word "elected" means chosen to office by vote of the electorate as distinguished from "appointed", which means chosen by some official or small body of officials, and that a judge never before elected cannot be "re-elected".

The word "re-elected" appears in the latter portion of the amendment and relates only to the declaration to be made by the county clerk or registrar. The other portions of the amendment, which set forth the principal rules to be followed, refer, without qualification, to the "incumbent" in designating the persons to whom the amendment is applicable. The word "incumbent" is, of course, sufficiently broad to include all persons holding office at the times referred to in the amendment, whether elected by the voters or appointed by the Governor. Giving effect to the word "re-elected" in the manner urged by plaintiffs would therefore result either in an implied qualification of the word "incumbent" or in the creation of a conflict between the portion of the amendment using the word "re-elected" and the various other provision which by their terms apply generally to all incumbents. We are of the view, however, that the word "re-elected" may properly be interpreted so as to avoid either of these unfortunate choices.

Although it is true, as plaintiffs point out, that ordinarily "elect" refers to a determination made by voters, the word also has a broader meaning, namely, "to make a selection of: Choose \* \* \* to choose (a person) for an office \* \* \*" (Webster's New Internat. Dict. (3d ed.1961) p. 731), "to make choice of (a person) \* \*" (Funk & Wagnall's New Standard Dict. (1958) p. 798), and "to pick out, choose \* \* \*" (Oxford English Dict. (1933) vol. III, p. E-74). Roget's International Thesaurus (1946) p. 420, gives as synonyms the following: "choose, elect, select, pick \* \* \*; appoint, elect, assign, \* \* \* designate, \* \* \* place in office, choose for a post or position. \* \* \*" (Italics added.) In accord with these definitions the court in Odell v. Rihn, 19 Cal.App. 713, 719, 127 P. 802, 805, after recognizing that "elected" and "appointed" ordinarily are not synonymous, stated: "In its broadest sense, however, the word 'elected' means merely 'selected'. When used in that sense the word 'elected' is synonymous with the word 'appointed'; \* \* \* " (See also Main v. Claremont Unified School Dist., 161 Cal.App.2d 189, 194-195, 326 P.2d 573.)

The more reasonable interpretation of the amendment is that the word "re-elected" is used in its broader sense, i.e., that the county clerk or registrar is to declare that the incumbent is again chosen or selected to hold the office of judge. As so construed not only does the word have an acceptable meaning but also the term "incumbent" is given full effect and all portions of the amendment are harmonized.

Moreover, our construction of the amendment will tend to promote its purposes whereas the position taken by plaintiffs, if adopted, would render the measure less effective. The argument contained in the ballot pamphlet in favor of the amendment explained that the purposes of the measure were to simplify elections by making it possible to eliminate "uncontested judgeships" from the ballot, to direct attention to contested offices, to avoid confusion, to reduce the length of the ballot and costs of elections, to increase accuracy and speed of vote tabulations, and to make use of mechanical vote-counting more feasible. It was there pointed out, among other things, that in a prior election the voters were forced to search through 65 uncontested judicial elections in order to find three offices for which there was a contest. It is obvious that these declared purposes would be thwarted to the extent that the names of unopposed incumbents who had been appointed rather than elected were placed on the ballot. The argument submitted to the voters contains nothing suggesting that a distinction was intended between elected and appointed incumbents, and it seems likely that there would have been comment on the matter if such a distinction had been contemplated.

This action was tried prior to the last day for the filing of a declaration of intention to become a candidate. After the appeal was taken it appeared that a candidate had filed in opposition to one of the plaintiffs, and,

of course, the name of the opposed judge must be on the ballot. Time for the filing of write-in petitions has not yet expired, and if such a petition, properly signed, is filed the name of the incumbent judge of the office affected must also be placed on the ballot.

The judgment is affirmed.

TRAYNOR, McCOMB, PETERS, TOBRINER and PEEK, JJ., concur.

\* \* \*

#### **NOTES OF DECISIONS**

Appointments 5
Candidate for judgeships 2
Construction and application 1
New judgeships 4
Nonpartisan elections 6
Vacancies 3

\* \* \*

#### 1. CONSTRUCTION AND APPLICATION

Only if the electoral process cannot be carried out or a vacancy occurs prior to the qualification of a candidate or candidates for an office in the year in which an incumbent's term expires does subd. (c) of this section permit the postponement of an election for a superior court office beyond the sixth year of a term. *Stanton v. Panish* (1980) 167 Cal.Rptr. 584, 615, P.2d 1372, 28 C.3d 107.

Registered voters have the right to vote for and elect judges in their judicial distinct. *Koski v. James* (1975) 120 Cal.Rptr. 754, 47 C.A.3d 349.

The only effect of the 1966 revision governing appointments to fill vacancies in the superior court judge-ships is to eliminate requirement that election be held during the last year of an incumbent's term if vacancy accrues during that year and to assure that the appointee will not have to stand for election until a general election two years hence. *Anderson v. Phillips* (1975) 119 Cal.Rptr. 879, 532, P.2d 1247, 13 C.3d 733.

Where person elected to superior court judgeship dies before assuming office at start of elected term but after himself having been appointed to serve out remainder of term of predecessor, the appointee filling such vacancy may continue to hold office until a new election is held and the newly elected judge assumes the office. Id.

Whenever it is possible to carry out the fully elective process, no more than six years should elapse between elations for a superior court office. *Pollack v. Hamm* (1970) 90 Cal.Rptr 181, 475 P.2d 213, 3 C.3d 264.

Exception contained in this section providing that appointee to office of superior court judge does not stand election in year of accrual of vacancy which he is appointed to fill was not applicable to case involving appointment on May 8, 1966 of petitioner whose predecessor, who himself had been appointed in January 1966 to succeed previous judge dying on December 25, 1965, had died 30 days prior to 1966 primary election and after time had expired for candidates to file for that election. *Barber v. Blue* (1966) 52 Cal.Rptr. 865, 417 P.2d 401, 65 C.2d 185.

The word "elect" has broad meaning of "select" or "choose" as well as narrower meaning of "elect by vote"; in this section providing for eliminating "uncontested judgeships" from ballot, word "re-elected" was used in broader sense; and even those incumbent superior court judges who had been appointed rather than elected were entitled to benefit of this section. *Barrett v. Hite* (1964) 37 Cal.Rptr. 320, 389 P.2d 944, 61 C.2d 103.

All judges of supreme court and all judges of courts of appeal should stand for election at gubernatorial general election whether for a full term or for the balance of unexpired term. 49 Ops.Atty.Gen. 88, 5-16-67.

The provisions of Art. 11, 7 1/2 and 8 1/2, which purport to provide for local courts in chartered counties and cities, are superseded by the revision of this article. Op.Leg. Counsel, 1966 S.J. 1046.

\* \* \*

#### 25304. INCUMBENT IS ONLY NOMINEE; HOW NAME PLACED ON BALLOT WHEN REELECTED

In any county or any judicial district in which only the incumbent has filed nomination papers for the office of superior court judge, municipal court judge or justice court judge, his name shall not appear on the ballot unless there is filed with the county clerk or registrar of voters, within 10 days after the final date for filing nominations papers for the office, a petition indicating that a write-in campaign will be conducted for the office and signed by 100 registered voters qualified to vote with respect to the office.

If a petition indicating that a write-in campaign will be conducted for the office at the general election, signed by 100 registered voters qualified to vote with respect to the office, is filed with the county clerk or registrar of voters not less than 68 days before the general election, the name of the incumbent shall be placed on the general election ballot if it has not appeared on the direct primary election ballot.

If, in conformity with this section, the name of the incumbent does not appear either on the primary ballot or general election ballot, the county clerk or registrar of voters, on the day of the general election, shall declare the incumbent reelected.

(Added by Stats.1963, c. 1535, p. 3119, 1. Amended by Stats.1965, c. 1016, p. 2650, 1; Stats.1967, c. 17, p. 835, 30; Stats.1970, c. 615, p.1217, 31, eff.Aug. 6, 1970; Stats.1986, c. 866, 19.)

#### 1. VALIDITY

Legislature has power to establish reasonable regulations governing write-in procedures, and this section obviating need for balloting where incumbent municipal court judge is unopposed but requiring incumbent's name to be printed on ballot if petition indicating that write-in campaign will be conducted for office is filed did not abridge rights guaranteed by Const.Art. 2, 2, entitling every citizen to vote at all elections authorized by law; disapproving dictum in *Cohn v. Isensee*, 45 Cal.App. 531, 188 P. 279. *Binns v. Hite* (1964) 37 Cal.Rptr. 323, 389 P.2d 947, 61 C.2d 107.

#### 2. IN GENERAL

If election is in fact held for municipal judgeship, prevailing candidate is elected on day of election, and not on day results of election are officially declared. *Brown v. Hite* (1966) 48 Cal.Rptr. 869, 410 P.2d 373, 64 C.2d 120.

Under this section, date most closely analogous to day of election is last day upon which petition can be filed giving notice that write-in campaign will be conducted, and if at that time no petition has been filed, name of incumbent does not appear on general election ballot, opposition to candidacy is precluded, and he should be deemed to have been elected, for purpose of determining whether he is entitled to hold office for succeeding term. Id.

Provision of this section authorizing elimination of "uncontested judgeships" from ballot was applicable to incumbent municipal court judges who had been appointed to office as well as to judges who had been elected. *Binns v. Hite* (1964) 37 Cal.Rptr. 323, 389 P.2d 947, 61 C.2d 107.

If an incumbent judge should run without opposition and his name does not appear on the primary ballot in accordance with this section, an attorney who was not eligible for the primary election might become a write-in candidate at the subsequent general election in accordance with the provisions of this section. 69-97, 52 Ops. Atty. Gen. 101, 6-6-69.

#### 3. RESIGNATION

Judge's resignation prior to election created vacancy in that office to be filled by governor, and prevented his subsequent election as unopposed incumbent, even though judge resigned after determination had been made, pursuant to this section, that he was unopposed incumbent whose name did not have to appear on ballot, and even though after election, Secretary of State declared judge to be successfully elected candidate, as resignation effectively removed him from office and terminated his status as incumbent, thereby removing him from purview of this section. People ex rel. *Superior Court of Orange County v. Robinson* (App.3 Dist. 1987) 235 Cal.Rptr. 369, 190 C.A.3d 334

#### **HISTORICAL NOTE**

Section 8202.05, added by Stats. 1965, e. 1935, p. 4465, 1, required state central committee meetings to be held in Sacramento. See, now, 8710, 8711, 9210.

Section 8202.1, added by Stats. 1963, e. 2017, p. 4132, 18, related to notice to state central committee delegated and to duties of delegates. See, now, 8100.

Section 8202.15, added by Stats. 1965, e. 1691, p. 3819, 2, related to appointment powers of special election candidates. See, now, 8663, 9164.

Section 8202.2, added by Stats.1963, e. 2017, p. 4133, 18.1, as amended by Stats.1965, e. 867, p. 2467, 2, related to form of appointment. See, now, 8101.

Section 8202.3, added by Stats.1963, e. 2017, p. 4130, 6, derived from former section 8014, enacted by Stats.1961, e. 23, p. 703, 8014: amended by Stats.1961, e. 2223, p. 4579, 1: Stats. 1963, e. 2018, p. 4138, 8, was renumbered section 8202.35 and amended by Stats.1964, 1st Ex. Sess., e. 32, p. 163, 7; Stats.1961, 1st Ex. Sess e. 147, p. 527, 1: Stats. 1964, e. 2010, p. 4540, 1, and related to appointment of state central committee. See, 8661, 9161, 9162.

Section 8202.3, added by Stats. 1963, e. 2017, p. 4133, 18.2, related to form of proxy. See, now, 8102.

Section 8202.35 was renumbered from 8202.3 (added by Stats.1963, e. 2017, p. 4130, 6) and amended by Stats. 1964 1st Ex.Sess., e. 32, p. 163, 7; Stats.1964, 1st Ex.Sess., e. 147, p. 527, 1; Stats. 1965, e. 2010, p. 4540, 1. See, now 8661, 9161, 9162.

Section 8202.4, added by Stats.1963, e. 2017, p. 4132, 19, was renumbered 8202.45 and amended by Stats. 1964, 1st Ex.Sess., e. 32, p. 163, 8. See, now, 8104.

Section 8202.4 was renumbered from former 8015 (enacted by Stats.1961, e. 23, p. 703, 8015) and amended by Stats.1963, e. 2017, p. 4130, 7. See, now 8666, 9167.

Section 8202.45 was renumbered form former 8202.4 (added by Stats.1963, e. 2017, p. 4134, 19) and amended by Stats.1964, 1st Ex.Sess., e. 32, p. 163, 8. See, now, 8104.

Section 8202.5 was renumbered from former 8016 (enacted by Stats. 1961, e. 23, p. 703, 8016) and amended by Stats. 1963, e. 2017, p. 4130, 8. See, now, 8664, 9165.

Section 8202.6 was renumbered from former 8017 (enacted by Stats.1961, e. 23, p. 703, 8017) and amended by Stats.1963, e. 2017, p. 4131, 9. See, now, 8665, 9166.

Section 8203, enacted by Stats.1961, c. 23, p. 705, 8203; derived from Elec.C. 1939, 2816 (Stats.1939, c. 26, p. 154, amended by Stats.1941, c. 344, p. 1599, 8); Stats.1913, c. 690, p. 1405, 24; Stats.1917, c. 711, p. 1358, 10; Stats. 1919, c. 35, p. 49, 3; Stats.1927, c. 372, p. 608, 1; Stats.1929, c. 834, p. 1767, 1; Stats.1931, c. 1002, p. 2005, 1; Stats.1937, c. 398, p. 1221, 2; Stats.1937, c. 407, p. 1359, 1; related to proxies. See, now, 8740, 9240.

#### 8202. ARRANGEMENT ON BALLOT.

The numerically designated offices shall be grouped and arranged on all ballots in numerical order. No person may be a candidate nor have his or her name printed upon any ballot as a candidate for any numerically designated office other than the one indicated by him or her in his or her declaration of intention

to become a candidate.

(Added by Stats. 1994, c. 920, 2.)

### 8203. JUDICIAL INCUMBENT ONLY NOMINEE.

In any county or any judicial district in which only the incumbent has filed nomination papers for the office of superior court judge, municipal court judge, justice court judge, or constable of a justice court, his or her name shall not appear on the ballot unless there is filed with the elections official, within 10 days after the final date for filing nomination papers for the office, a petition indicating that a write-in campaign will be conducted for the office and signed by 100 registered voters qualified to vote with respect to the office.

If a petition indicating that a write-in campaign will be conducted for the office at the general election, signed by 100 registered voters qualified to vote with respect to the office, is filed with the elections official not less than 83 days before the general election, the name of the incumbent shall be placed on the general election ballot if it has not appeared on the direct primary election ballot.

If, in conformity with this section, the name of the incumbent does not appear either on the primary ballot or general election ballot, the elections officials, on the day of the general election shall declare the incumbent reelected. Certificates of elections specified in Section 15401 or 15504 shall not be issued to a person reelected pursuant to this section before the day of the general election.

(Added by Stats. 1994, c. 920, 2.)

#### 8204. DEATH OF JUDICIAL INCUMBENT NOMINEE; EXTENSION PROVISION FOR JUDGES.

- (a) If an incumbent of a judicial office dies on or before the last day prescribed for the filing of nomination paper, or files a declaration of intention but for any reason fails to file his or her nomination papers by the last day prescribed for the filing of the papers, an additional five days shall be allowed for the filing of nomination papers for the office.
- (b) Any person, other than the person who was the incumbent, if otherwise qualified, may file nomination papers for the office during the extended period, notwithstanding that he or she has not filed a written and signed declaration of intention to become a candidate for the office as provided in Sections 8023 and 8201. (Added by Stats. 1994, c. 920, 2.)

#### CHAPTER 15

## A TIMELY MESSAGE FROM GARY WEAN RE: A CONSTITUTION FOR THE WORLD by Gary Wean 6/5/94

Editor's note: The following belated correspondence fits well with what is happening on our TV news regarding presidental candidate hopefuls and the New World Order. As you can see, they have been planning this for a long time. You can read "A Constitution For the World" in Phoenix Journal #96: HEAVE-HO (Phase Two). See Last Page for ordering information.

#### Letter to *CONTACT*:

In the *CONTACT* newspaper, Volume 5, Number 10, May 31, 1994, Page 5, Commander Hatonn brings to the attention of the American citizens the ungodly terror of the New World Constitution.

And that, "This Constitution was published by the Center for the Study of Democratic Institutions (1965), formerly located in Santa Barbara, California."

Approximately in 1991, I commenced an addendum to my book, *There's a Fish in the Courthouse*, which was first printed and sold in 1987. This addendum, when completed, will be part of the new edition soon to be printed. The following are excerpts taken from my addendum in context with Commander Hatonn's writings in above mentioned *Contact*.

In the mid and late 1950s I was a Det. Sgt. with the Ventura City Police Department. Ventura is a small city situated between Los Angeles and Santa Barbara. At this time I learned that the Center For The Study of Democratic Institutions in Santa Barbara was a secret Anti-Defamation League organization run by Stanley Scheinbaum along with two more Mishpucka lawyers, Norman Dorsen and Ira Glasser. These Mishpuckas were powerful heads of the so-called American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU). For a period of several years during the late 1950s, Los Angeles Police Department Chief William Parker was running to Santa Barbara for secret meetings with this evil conclave of anti-American Mishpuckas. Policeman Daryl Gates, later to become Chief, was the driver of Parker's expensive city vehicles.

Parker was doing corrupt acts for the Mishpuckas (giving them confidential police files on innocent citizens to be used for blackmail by the ADL) and the ADL, in turn, was promising Parker that their extraordinary influence and money would be used to make him the next director of the FBI. This, Parker wanted more than anything else in the world. He sold out the LAPD and citizens for these Mishpucka promises.

Ed Patton, a former Det. Sgt. with the Oxnard PD, but who in 1968 was working for the Wackenhut Security Company, and I met secretly with Bobby Kennedy in an Oxnard alley. We gave Kennedy phone company documents disclosing that a phone call had been received by the FBI fifteen minutes before the assassination informing them that JFK was going to be killed. The phone call was made from the law office of Ben Nordman and his partner, Judge Jerome Berenson. (The name of the woman making the call was given to Kennedy.)

For many years Patton and I were of the belief that Robert Kennedy had flown into Oxnard Airport and from there had driven to meet us, then had returned to the airport and flew back to San Francisco.

Since Kennedy was killed within only a few hours after we had met with him we figured he had shared the information with someone on the plane or in San Francisco who had quickly set up his murder to prevent him from acting on our evidence and information; consequently, we had focused our thoughts on who those persons would be.

However, just recently, with the killing of Don Scott, a wealthy landowner in the Malibu Mountains, by the L.A. Sheriffs Dept. in conjunction with the Ventura County Sheriff Dept., I was delving into several aspects of the case. These aspects dealt with environmentalists and the California Coastal Commission in which a Mishpucka lawyer, Paul Zifren, and his family were and still are deeply involved.

I came upon startling knowledge revealing that Kennedy <u>had not</u> just flown into the Oxnard Airport and left the same way on the day he met with Patton and me.

Instead Kennedy and his family had been staying at the home of Paul Zifren in Malibu and, within one hour of Patton and I giving him our information, he had confided it to Paul Zifren, who was a high ranking member of Kennedy's political campaign.

Knowing what Kennedy would do with his new information when he got back to Washington, D.C., the Mishpucka had an extreme emergency that had to be 'taken care of' immediately.

The decision and mechanics of eliminating Kennedy were a rush job, but the Mishpucka is capable of just such emergencies.

Kennedy was re-routed through the kitchen of the Ambassador Hotel where a psychedelically, mind-prepared 'killer-scapegoat' Sirhan Sirhan was strategically placed.

The critical re-routing through the Ambassador Hotel's kitchen, which would be free of any police or government protection, was repeatedly insisted on by Frank Mankiewicz, a Mishpucka associate of Paul Zifren and a member of the Democratic Party Campaign for Kennedy. Mankiewicz was a longtime, powerful member of the ADL and associated with Stanley Scheinbaum, Norman Dorsen and Ira Glasser, etc.

I came upon this Zifren connection through looking into Irwin Lachman, a rich Mishpucka and land developer. Zifren and family have inside control of the Coastal Commission and are associated with Lachman in developing the Malibu Mountains, which involves Don Scott's ranch.

Lachman claims he is developing a campground for which he does not have to obtain a conditional use permit or prepare an environmental impact report.

Going before the Coastal Commission and the LA County Board of Supervisors where the Mishpucka has already paved the way, it will quickly and quietly be approved.

But Lachman does not intend a campground area for people to come to nature's wilderness and relax.

He is going to make Latigo Canyon into a ranch resort with facilities for 400 people. It will sport a major restaurant, fitness center, basketball and tennis courts, two swimming pools and an amphitheater. Fees will be \$125.00 a night. This is a development that will project a 50 to 75-million-dollar income annually. It will be done without public hearings or input.

At this point, it should be simple for anyone to see how the Mishpucka becomes outlandishly wealthy: you simply kill people, take their property and do with it what you want.

Examine this scenario: Could an Italian pull off this kind of operation and get away with it? Could the Mafia's top Mafioso Carlos Marcello design and carry out such a scheme?

No way, not in a thousand years, but the Mishpucka has these operations going every day of the week.

A short time after Robert Kennedy was murdered, the Zifren family pulled off a little scam—designed to take the heat off them and make people believe they were also in jeopardy from the Sirhan Sirhan Arabs who had killed Bobby. They reported a phony bomb scare at their home in Malibu. The Sheriff came out and roped off the scene and blocked off the road in a big bomb investigation, but that's all that it was—a phony Mishpucka scam.

All of these Mishpuckas are ADL members and associates of Stanley Scheinbaum, who also was a member of the LAPD Commission. With their conspiracy of riot and revolution they manufactured the 1965 Watts riots, and in the meantime, roped in Daryl Gates, who had become the Chief, and made him the same offer they had made Parker—to make him Director of the FBI, which Gates wanted just as bad as did Parker.

The Rodney King episode and subsequent Watts riot (which I had warned them of <u>one year</u> before it happened) engineered by the ADL and Stanley Scheinbaum was a scheme to take over the LAPD Police Commission and to appoint a new Chief.

Willie Williams, a Black man, was appointed the new Chief and was met at the L.A. Airport by Stanley Scheinbaum and limousined to Stanley's Beverly Hills palace where Andrea Ordin, Warren Christopher, Mickey Kantor and other powerful ADL Mishpuckas gave Willie his orders. His first priority was to confine all future riots within Watts and other Black areas and under no circumstances allow them to spread to Beverly Hills and other areas where they could destroy the Jews investments.

At this time, they also promised Willie that if he performed the way he was told, that in the future they would make him the first Black Director of the FBI. Assuredly the Mishpucka is lying to Willie the same as they did to Chief William Parker and Chief Daryl Gates. They already have their man, Louie Freeh, in as FBI Director.

While Gates was Chief of Police, Alfred Bloomingdale and U.S. Defense Secretary Caspar Weinberger and other buddies of Pres. Ronald Reagan were secretly filmed engaging in sado-masochistic kinky sex with Vickie Morgan, Bloomingdale's mistress.

These audio-video tapes were being used as blackmail and involved national security secrets involving

Israel (Iran-gate).

In the process Vickie Morgan was murdered and her boyfriend was framed for the murder. The involvement of Weinberger and other high-ranking government officials was covered-up.

Ramroding the cover-up were Mishpuckas, Judge David Horowitz and prosecutor Stanley Weisberg, who refused to allow any evidence of the tapes into the trial. Then Stanley Weisberg became the judge in the Rodney King trial in Simi Valley and was responsible for precipitating the Watts riot in which hundreds of people were injured and killed and millions of dollars in property damage.

This is just a tiny scenario of the chaos in government and chaos among the people that the Mishpucka is bringing down on America to destroy and subjugate the people.

There is one thing the people can do to destroy the Mishpucka before they destroy America.

Daryl Gates has copies of the Vickie Morgan affair and the treasonous acts of government officials involving our national security.

An investigation of this affair by a secret Grand Jury, run by an honest, competent justice department prosecutor could open the door, free America from all the insanity, all the chaos the Mishpucka has embroiled our country in for the past 50 years.

Perhaps someone like the prosecutor in the Rostenkowski case—reading off an indictment on TV of the ADL Mishpucka, and its crimes of treason, murder, spying, drug smuggling, money laundering, and judicial corruption, etc. I realize, of course, that President Bush pardoned Caspar Weinberger for his treasonous acts against national security in the Iran-Contra affair so maybe Weinberger can't be tried and put in prison for that but perhaps Weinberger can be tried and executed or imprisoned for something else. Bush did not pardon Weinberger for murder—and for murder there is no statute of limitations.

Then again, perhaps George Bush himself was a participant of the orgy with Vickie Morgan and violations of the national security. In this event did Bush have the presidential right to pardon Weinberger and consequently himself of violations of national security and the trust of the people??

You can see how the ADL Mishpucka entangle and entwine themselves with their terrible lies and conspiratorial evil machinations.

Did Weinberger blackmail George Bush into pardoning him under threat of exposing him and the other government officials involved in the sick sex caper and murder??

All these terrible facts and possibilities bring to full light the insanities of the ADL Mishpuckas, revealing how they drag entire countries and governments through a hell on Earth, and the misery and fear they pour into the communities of diverse races bearing on their conspiracy of racial riot and revolution.

Our country cannot continue under these assaults of the ADL Mishpucka without an all-encompassing Grand Jury investigation and full blown prosecution of the treasonous criminals.

The only thing in the world that can bring the country back to sanity is bringing out the truth—the whole truth and nothing but the truth for the entire people of the country to see and to know that there is nothing, nothing at all left hanging over their heads.

The light of truth is the <u>only</u> thing that can save America.

/s/ Gary Wean

#### 5/27/94 #1 HATONN

Excerpt from 5/31/94 issue of CONTACT, page 5:

#### A CONSTITUTION FOR THE WORLD

INITIATIVE for a World Constitution launched in California, 20 December 1993, as "Philadelphia II", to qualify for 8 November 1994 GENERAL ELECTIONS.

This "Constitution" was published by the Center for the Study of Democratic Institutions (**1965**) financed by the Fund for the Republic, *A FORD FOUNDATION* [H: Oops!]!

Formerly located in Santa Barbara, California, the Center appointed Socialist-oriented University of Denver Chancellor Maurice B. Mitchell as new head and merged with the Aspen Institute, Aspen, Colorado, a world government policy promotion agency. Aspen Institute Chairman is Robert O. Anderson, chief executive officer, Atlantic Richfield Company; member, Committee for Economic Development for International Education (laid the groundwork for Regional government [which would abolish individual states as they presently exist]).